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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S

BRRAT R R
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
BETTT BEFT BB BB BEF
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Results

Profit before taxation 472,187 509,973 472,459 29,761 94,865
Income tax (expense)/credit (36,125) (14,042) (15,490) 9,648 (7,169)

Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company 436,062 495,931 456,969 39,409 87,696

BT
HKS THOUSAND

600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000

100,000 87,696

s NATURE OF PROFIT/(LOSS)
600,000
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(100,000)

K2 R B SR B AS m A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

495,931

456,969
436,062

39,409

2020 12021 12022 2023 2024
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0 (- \

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Ordinary business H# %7  ® Dilution in shareholding BR#E#5%
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
BEFT BT BEFT EEFT BEFT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&E Assets
ME  BERZE Property, plant and equipment 12,396 14,849 14,586 14,109 13,110
EHEEE Right-of-use assets 13,483 14,158 13,628 13,099 13,511
B -IES Investment properties 173,113 175,626 173,342 172,329 165,348
Bena Associates 6,117,020 6778417 6550270  6442,09% | 6,360,035
BATEGTAEMPENE  Financial assets at fair value through
NEREE i other comprehensive income 361,001 805,914 606,943 630,093 544,501
BB EREREE  Debtinvestments at amortised cost - - - 156,174 256,802
ZERZBHEATERFH  Pledged and restricted term deposits 325,816 111,733 352,072 354,542 337,917
BERFGHEE Deferred income tax assets 170 19 - - -
REBRENEE Insurance contract assets - - - 1461 3,447
BRERANEE Reinsurance contract assets - 5,160 11,738 15,019 17,757
EICRERA Deferred acquisition costs 40,440 - - - =
{RER EW Insurance receivable 63,218 - - - -
BERBAE Reinsurance assets 8,135 - - - -
BEERENEFERRL  Credit-impaired loans to customers
JELFI 2. and interest receivable 21,034 17,979 15,921 15,102 11,257
Bl —RBLNERE Dividend receivable from an associate 4,754 - 4527 - >
EfEUER - BAIFKE  Other debtors, prepayments and
®e deposits 45,614 14,553 3,399 5,573 33,057
A E A GHIE Current income tax recoverable - 35 - - 30
BRATEEBERIIELN  Financial assets at fair value through
EREE profit or loss 369,978 742,997 742,080 626,443 112,592
EHER Term deposits 530,690 356,369 444,095 323,270 471,378
RekReSEN Cash and cash equivalents 319,002 467,149 236,256 415,415 574,329
wEE Total assets 8,405,864 9,504,958 9,168,857 9,184,725 | 8,915,071
B Equity
BA Share capital 1,715,377 1715377 1715377 1715377 | 1,715,377
Hivfifae Other reserves 1,512,068 2,285,582 1,513,274 1,508,881 | 1,318,872
REBH Retained profits 4,370,646 4,712,307 5,032,738 4845192 | 4,783,898
KARRE Total equity attributable to
ElEEGAE shareholders of the Company 7,598,091 8,713,266 8,261,389 8,069,450 | 7,818,147
& Liabilities
RBAENARE Insurance contract liabilities - 72,204 103,754 146,260 169,086
BREBANEE Reinsurance contract liabilities = 3,129 8,821 8,498 4,790
REEAY Insurance contracts 129,216 = = = =
RBER K \ Insurance payable 31,135 - - - -
HufERARETEA  Other creditors and accruals 36,450 24,957 24,427 36,930 37,493
BEAE Lease liabilities 65 1,063 833 586 2,163
RITER Bank borrowings 371,583 497,308 692,59 855,570 758,497
PERRAR R E TR Loan from the controlling shareholder 149,943 99,985 - = 78,000
BN ARSI Current income tax payable 28,340 29,584 27,699 4,582 4,541
ERFEHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 61,041 63,462 49,340 62,849 42,354
HeE Total liabilities 807,773 791,692 907,468 1115275 | 1,096,924
ExKkEE Equity and liabilities 8,405,864 9,504,958 9,168,857 9,184,725 | 8,915,071

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AATRREGESEEE
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
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RAMAERNEEH 2024 FRHMZE
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| am pleased to announce the full
year results of the Group for 2024.

79

FE ¥k
Chairman WANG Fei
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BB AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

2024 was a challenging year and the global political and
economic landscape continued to be turbulent, with macro
uncertainties persisted. Despite the challenges, the Group
remained resilient and focused on key strategic actions to
develop business prudently and diversify its income sources
in pursuit of performance growth.

OUR PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, we conducted our business
prudently to minimise operational risks, seized new
opportunities while adapted to and responded to the
uncertainty of changes in the external environment and
enhanced our core competitiveness continuously.

The Group achieved encouraging results during the year
under review. The Group recorded a profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) of HK$87.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2024, increased by
122.5% when compared to the previous year, mainly due to
the satisfactory increase in share of results of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”) for the year ended 31
December 2024 as compared to the same period in 2023.
Basic earnings per share was 14.68 HK cents.
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FTREHRES
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued)

During the year under review, we paid a final dividend for
2023 of 9 HK cents per share to Shareholders, bringing
satisfactory returns to Shareholders.

However, having considered the challenges and uncertainties
in the market and to preserve more cash resources for the
Group’s future investment opportunities, the Board has not
recommended the payment of a final dividend for 2024.

Total assets of the Group recorded a decrease of 2.8% to
HK$8.92 billion at 31 December 2024 as compared to HK$9.18
billion at the end of 2023.

XIB (together with its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited (“CYB”) and Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB"),
are collectively referred to as “XIB Group”) is the most
significant financial investment of the Group and has
contributed about 148.2% of the results of the Group in 2024.
The Group's share of profit after tax of XIB Group was HK$130
million in 2024, an increase of 97.1% as compared to
HK$65.95 million in 2023.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its balance sheet.
Total assets of XIB Group recorded an increase of 1.8% to
RMB1,141.07 billion at 31 December 2024 as compared to
RMB1,120.42 billion at the end of 2023.

The total assets of our banking business accounted for 71%
of the Group’s total assets at 31 December 2024. The net
asset value per share of the Company amounted to HK$13.09
at 31 December 2024, about 81% came from the investment
in XIB.

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024
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BB AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued)

As the first city commercial bank in Mainland China that owns
full-featured subsidiary banks both in Hong Kong and Macau,
XIB actively leverages its strategic branch networks in
Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau and its core advantages of
internationalisation to continuously promote high-quality
reform and transformation of its business. XIB comprehensively
promotes strategic transformation, management
transformation and market transformation to deeply cultivate
local communities and serve real economy and continuously
increases efforts to prevent and resolve financial risks. XIB
promotes the deep integration of technological innovation
and industry through innovative technology financial
development, green finance development and digital
financial transformation, and builds Overseas Chinese
financial development. XIB will use financial services as a link
to close economic and financial ties between the Mainland,
Hong Kong and Macau, and strive to become the “Preferred
Bank for Overseas Chinese Finance”. We are confident that
our banking business will achieve sustainable and reasonable
value growth.

XIB was ranked 156th in total assets and 168th in Tier-one
Capital in the 2024 Top 1000 World Banks announced by The
Banker. XIB had been rated as one of the top 200 for
consecutive years.

2024 is an important year in the development milestone of
Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Global credit
rating agency AM Best has assigned a Financial Strength
Rating of B++ (Good) and a Long-Term Issuer Credit Rating of
bbb+ (Good) to Min Xin Insurance during the year under
review. The outlook assigned to these Credit Ratings is stable.

We continued to pull resources together to vigorously
expand the insurance business and strived to improve the
quality and profitability of the underlying business during the
year under review. Insurance service result recorded a surplus
of HK$21.42 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, an
increase of 85.9% as compared to HK$11.52 million in 2023,
mainly due to the decrease in claims costs. Insurance finance
expenses of HK$4.15 million were recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2024, a decrease of 21.7% as compared
to HK$5.3 million in 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The management team of our insurance business will
continue to invest sufficient resources to proactively develop
new products and new business, and will continue to
implement innovative technology-enabled strategic
transformation in order to continuously improve service
quality and underwriting professionalism in an increasingly
competitive market environment. We are confident that we
will strengthen the sustainable development of our business
and achieve better financial performance.

PROSPECTS

Embracing the dynamic and complicated market landscape,
the Board maintains a cautiously optimistic view towards our
business growth and financial performance sustainability in
2025 and remains vigilant in managing our business. The
Group will maintain its prudent risk management approach
and continuously strengthen its core competitiveness,
continue to focus on proactive business diversification and
flexible development strategies to take advantages of growth
opportunities that will continue to come from the Greater
China region and enhance its revenue-generating capacity
and profitability.

Finally, | wish to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
appreciation to my fellow board members for their invaluable

advice and support, and thank the management team and all
our staff for their commitment and dedicated services.

WANG Fei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

11



12

SI1RB51m K D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fi50ORE

2024 FANAR IR —F - FHEX B EI
AREBHENRE - AXGERRERHE
R EHRBERRMEREERRKSS -
BENRITEBRENNE  AKEDNSFT
RENEE - A BIMESEUARAR
BERAETEXRDHESRKIMNEE -

A e g
REXE

REER 2024 FEB AR AT ([RRE ) fE
1l % F) B % 8,770 & 7T+ LLER2023 F Ay B HE
3,941 BTG NAE 48298 T80 122.5% ° &
BENMEZEARNENEPIBERRITRO BR
NEI(TER]DEE2024F12 A31BILFE
XEE 2023 FRIHEAEMN - FRABRELRR
B 14,681l » #2023 FH) B 6.611118
B 8.08 11l °

i A AR 75

AEENETRRGEHEREBRBENER
BEnRER(EREAMBRRSERBITAR
~El([&&]) FRFBBRRITRDER AR
(MR DGR EREE ] 2BIRPEA
M~ BESOBRFIRERITER - UERRFE
N E &/ NRERET ©

REBWSRARTEEER 2024 F T R
HMB#10,773 87T LLE2023 F /) B 5,563
BT EABI% BEEMETEARELE
IRA 2024 FEXELER EFEIEMFTE -

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW

2024 was a difficult year with continued geopolitical and
macro challenges. Higher interest rates and conservative
investment sentiment have led to slower economic growth
and sluggish performance. The Group achieved a solid
performance due to the improved results of our banking
business. However, high Hong Kong dollars interest rates and
fluctuations in the exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars continued to have an unfavourable impact.

Operating Results

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) of HK$87.7 million in 2024,
representing an increase of HK$48.29 million or 122.5% as
compared to HK$39.41 million in 2023. Such increase is
primarily due to the increase in share of results of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”) for the year ended 31
December 2024 as compared to the same period in 2023.
Basic earnings per share for the year was 14.68 HK cents, an
increase of 8.08 HK cents as compared to 6.6 HK cents in
2023.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes the
engagement of banking business through its major associate,
XIB (together with its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited (“CYB”) and Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB"),
are collectively referred to as “XIB Group”) in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau respectively, and the provision of
micro credit business in Mainland China.

The Group’s financial services business reported a profit after
tax of HK$107.73 million in 2024, an increase of 93.7% as
compared to HK$55.63 million in 2023. Such increase in the
results is primarily due to the increase in share of results of
XIB in 2024 as compared to the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business

XIB Group offers comprehensive financial services in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau through its well-
established branch network and technological
infrastructures.

XIB Group reported a profit after tax for the Group’s reporting
purpose of RMB1.39 billion, an increase of RMB0.72 billion or
107.5% as compared to RMB673.51 million in 2023. Such
increase was mainly driven by the increase in investment
income and net fair value gains from financial instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss, and partially
offset by the decrease in net interest income and the increase
in credit impairment charges in 2024 as compared to the
previous year. Net interest income decreased by 15.2% in
2024 as compared to the previous year, which was mainly
due to a decrease of 4.4% in interest income while interest
expenses decreased by 1.8%. The non-interest income
increased by 88.3% which was mainly due to the increase in
investment income and net fair value gains from financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, and
partially offset by the decrease in net commission income.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its total assets at 31
December 2024. At 31 December 2024, the total assets grew
by 1.8% to RMB1,141.07 billion as compared to RMB1,120.42
billion at the end of 2023. Gross loans to customers were
RMB594.81 billion, a decrease of 5.5% as compared to
RMB629.21 billion at the end of 2023. The gross impaired
loans and advances as a percentage of gross loans and
advances to customers was 2.36%, increased by 0.36
percentage points as compared to 2% at the end of 2023.
Total deposits from customers were decreased by 2.7% to
RMB707.35 billion from RMB726.61 billion at the end of 2023.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, had been engaged in the provision of micro
loans to small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals
in Sanming City, Fujian Province. Sanyuan Micro Credit
continues to proactively apply all measures to recover its
impaired loans.

The application for the reduction of the paid-in capital of
Sanyuan Micro Credit was approved on 7 March 2024.
Sanyuan Micro Credit remitted RMB120 million to the
Company in April 2024 and the paid-in capital of Sanyuan
Micro Credit decreased to RMB180 million. During the year,
the Group recorded a one-off loss of approximately HK$21.93
million for the proportionate share of the exchange losses
previously recognised in the exchange translation reserve
and transferred directly to consolidated income statement by
the Group upon reduction of the paid-in capital of Sanyuan
Micro Credit during the year.

Sanyuan Micro Credit recovered the principal of impaired
loans of RMB3.43 million, as compared to the principal and
interest income of impaired loans of RMB5.21 million and
RMB2.77 million respectively in 2023. The impaired loan
balances at 31 December 2024 were RMB143.24 million, a
decrease of 2.3% from RMB146.6 million at the end of 2023,
which was mainly due to the recovery of impaired loan
principal. Sanyuan Micro Credit recorded a loss after tax of
RMBO0.31 million (equivalent to HK$0.33 million) in 2024, as
compared to a profit after tax of RMB8.96 million (equivalent
to HK$9.9 million) in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance recorded insurance revenue of HK$187.38
million in 2024, decreased by 2% as compared to HK$191.13
million in 2023. Insurance service result, which reflected
insurance revenue less insurance service expenses and net
expenses from reinsurance contracts held, recorded a surplus
of HK$21.42 million in 2024, increased by 85.9% as compared
to HK$11.52 million in 2023, which was mainly due to the
decrease in claims costs. Insurance finance expenses, which
reflected the change in the carrying amount of the insurance
contracts arising from the effects of time value of money and
financial risk, recorded an expense of HK$4.15 million in 2024,
a decrease of 21.7% as compared to HK$5.3 million in 2023.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$13.81
million in 2024, increased by 183.6% as compared to HK$4.87
million in 2023, which was mainly due to the combined
impact of the increase in insurance service result and
investment income.

With the Financial Strength Rating of B++ (Good) assigned by
AM Best in 2024, the management team of Min Xin Insurance
will continue to broaden distribution channels and identify
new business opportunities, and at the same time will make
great efforts to implement the anticipated business plan and
improve business quality in an increasingly competitive
market to achieve a better financial performance.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Huaneng A-Shares

At 31 December 2024, the Shanghai Composite Index
increased by about 12.7% as compared to that at the end of
2023. The closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) as quoted on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange decreased from RMB7.69 per share at 31
December 2023 to RMB6.77 per share at 31 December 2024.
The fair value of the Group’s investment in A-Share of
Huaneng (“Huaneng A-Shares”) measured with reference to
the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng stood at
HK$489.09 million (equivalent to RMB460.03 million). In 2024,
the Group recorded a loss of HK$85.2 million (2023: HK$11.01
million) arising from the net movement in its fair value
change in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).

Huaneng declared a final dividend for 2023 of RMBO0.2 per
share during the year. The Group recorded dividend income
totalling RMB13.59 million (equivalent to HK$14.6 million) in
2024. Huaneng did not declare or pay a final dividend for
2022 last year.

Huaneng has announced its 2024 annual results under the
PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue decreased
by 3.5% and the operating expenses decreased by 6.8% as
compared to 2023. Its profit attributable to shareholders was
RMB10.14 billion in 2024, increased by 20% as compared to
RMB8.45 billion in 2023, primarily attributable to the
combined effects of the year-on-year decrease in domestic
unit fuel costs and the profit growth generated from the
orderly expansion of the renewable energy portfolio. Earnings
per share was RMBO0.46 for the year under review, as
compared to earnings per share of RMB0.35 in 2023. The
board of directors of Huaneng recommended to declare a
final dividend for 2024 of RMBO0.27 per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Property Investment

The property investment business of the Group represents
the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2024, the property investment business reported a
loss after tax of HK$1.13 million as compared to a profit after
tax HK$0.35 million in 2023, mainly due to the increase in the
revaluation loss of investment properties.

The market rental of office space in Fuzhou, Fujian Province
remained soft in 2024. The occupancy rates of the leased
commercial properties and parking spaces in Fuzhou (the
“Fuzhou Property”) of the Group were 79.2% and 50.4%
respectively (2023: 79.5% and 74.7% respectively) at 31
December 2024, the monthly rental of certain new leases
have declined as compared to the expired leases. The Group
recorded a rental income of RMB1.76 million in 2024,
decreased by 15.8% as compared to RMB2.09 million in 2023,
mainly due to the decline in monthly rental and increase in
vacant units as compared to the corresponding period in
2023. At 31 December 2024, the fair value of the Fuzhou
Property was HK$41.03 million, a decrease of 12% as
compared to the fair value of HK$46.61 million at the end of
2023. The Group recorded a fair value loss of HK$5.58 million
and net fair value loss after deferred tax of HK$2.56 million in
2024, as compared to a fair value loss of HK$3.21 million and
net fair value loss after deferred tax of HK1.48 million in 2023.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position.

Net Asset Value per Share

Based on 597,257,252 ordinary shares in issue at 31
December 2024 (2023: 597,257,252 shares), the net asset
value per share was HK$13.09 at 31 December 2024 (2023:
HK$13.51).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group’s
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had borrowings totalling
HK$836.5 million which comprised HK$758.5 million granted
by several banks and HK$78 million granted by the
controlling shareholder, decreased by 2.2% as compared to
HK$855.59 million granted by several banks at the end of
2023. Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan facilities, all outstanding amounts will mature and are
repayable within one year. The Group will consider to arrange
refinancing of the borrowings if necessary. These loans are in
Hong Kong dollars with mix of fixed and floating interest
rates. The fixed-rate loans consist of the three-year term loan
of HK$198.6 million (2023: the three-year term loan of
HK$198.6 million and the short-term loan of HK$140 million)
and the floating-rate loans consist of all other revolving bank
loans and loan from the controlling shareholder. The effective
interest rate at 31 December 2024 ranged from 2.7% to 6.3%
(2023: 2.7% to 7.6%) per annum.

In addition, the Group had withdrawable revolving bank loan
facilities and loan from the controlling shareholder of
approximately HK$630.1 million and HK$62 million
respectively at 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, the three-year fixed-rate term loan of
HK$198.6 million (2023: HK$198.6 million) was secured by a
standby letter of credit issued in favour of the lending bank.
The standby letter of credit was collateralised by a three-year
bank deposit of RMB200 million (equivalent to HK$212.63
million) (2023: RMB200 million, equivalent to HK$219.8
million) placed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2024, a portion of the revolving bank loans
totalling HK$285.88 million (2023: HK$223.53 million) was
secured by the self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$8.11 million (2023: HK$8.37 million) at 31
December 2024. The fair value of the property was HK$210
million (2023: HK$240 million) at 31 December 2024.

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of credit
issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of a reinsurance
company that has entered into the Non-life Reinsurance
Facility with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, that
wholly-owned subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of HK$15
million (2023: HK$15 million) as a collateral for the standby
letter of credit at 31 December 2024.

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were
pledged at 31 December 2024 and 2023 respectively.

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2024, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$1,096.92 million (2023: HK$1,115.28 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to Shareholders
was 14% (2023: 13.8%).

At 31 December 2024, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings divided by net assets) was 10.7% (2023: 10.6%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash Position

The Group’s balances with banks are interest bearing at
prevailing market rates. At 31 December 2024, the total
balances with banks of the Group amounted to HK$1,337.36
million (2023: HK$1,061.83 million) of which 14.6% were in
Hong Kong dollars, 79.3% in Renminbi and 6.1% in other
currencies (2023: 25.4% were in Hong Kong dollars, 69.5% in
Renminbi and 5.1% in other currencies).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance Authority,
Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary, shall maintain
at all times a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16
million in the name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as a statutory
deposit. Accordingly, Min Xin Insurance has placed fixed
deposits of HK$16 million in the name of “Insurance Authority
account Min Xin Insurance Company Limited” with a bank in
Hong Kong for fulfillment of such requirements at 31
December 2023. The requirements to maintain at all times of
its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the name of
“Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited” were rescinded and the term deposits were released
on maturity during the year.

At 31 December 2024, Min Xin Insurance has maintained
bank deposits of MOP18.41 million (equivalent to HK$17.87
million) and HK$69.45 million (2023: MOP18.41 million,
equivalent to HK$17.87 million and HK$69.45 million) for
fulfilling certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance (Decree-Law no. 27/97/M of 30 June) (the “Macau
Insurance Ordinance”).

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, thus the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises
from currency fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. As the Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi are both
under managed floating systems, the Group reviews and
monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Commitments

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.18 million (2023: HK$0.65
million).

At 31 December 2024, the commitment of capital
contribution to the Partnership was RMB28 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$29.77 million) pursuant to
the Partnership Agreement entered into by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2024, the Group had 70 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
employees including but not limited to retirement benefits
and medical scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees to
enhance and develop their professional knowledges and
skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and workshops
for our employees as well as encourages them to attend
seminars and trainings with topics of relevance to their jobs
and duties sponsored by the Group. The Group also organises
recreational activities such as Christmas party.
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CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group's insurance business, we are
committed to establishing good long-term business
relationships with our brokers and agents. Insurance products
together with the pricing philosophy and other guidelines
will be provided to brokers and agents if needed. Our staff of
business department visit our brokers and agents regularly to
maintain good relationships. Our claims and customer service
staff swiftly and carefully manage and respond to our brokers’
and agents’ enquiries in relation to the insurance products
and other related matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues to
support the environmental protection initiatives to conserve
the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting and use of
public transportation to reduce energy consumption. In
addition, we proactively encourage staff to consume less
energy, water and paper, by applying such as e-filings and
paper recycling in our offices. Details are disclosed in the
Environment, Social and Governance Report to be issued by
the Company pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The following key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group are not exhaustive or
comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Insurance and Financial Risks

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety of
insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s insurance risk
and financial risks exposures are set out in Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Business Risks

Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,
including the growth of gross domestic product, inflation
levels, changes in laws and regulations related to banks and
financial products, changes in macroeconomic control
policies, market liquidity, changes in credit policies, changes
in loan demands as well as progress of financial reform and
interest rate liberalisation. XIB Group may be unable to
maintain its growth rate as a result of an adverse change in
any one or more of the above factors or any other factors,
which could have a material and adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are highly
regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business in Hong
Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation from Insurance
Authority and Autoridade Monetaria De Macau respectively
and are subject to the requirements imposed by Insurance
Authority and Autoridade Monetéria De Macau from time to
time. Authorisation will only be granted to insurers when
certain requirements under the Insurance Ordinance (Chapter
41 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Macau Insurance
Ordinance are met. Compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations may restrict the operations of the Group’s
insurance business and requires the Group to deploy
significant resources and to devote considerable time to such
compliance efforts. New or revised laws, rules and regulations
may be introduced from time to time and such changes may
have an adverse effect on the insurance business of the
Group in Hong Kong and Macau.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Huaneng A-Shares

Huaneng is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Huaneng A-Shares is classified as a long-term financial asset
of the Group. The dividend income from Huaneng A-Shares is
affected by various factors which are beyond the Group’s
control, included but not limited to the results of operations,
liquidity position and dividend policy of Huaneng.

The Group is required to measure Huaneng A-Shares at its fair
value at the end of each reporting period and the change in
fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity. The fair value of Huaneng
A-Shares is measured with reference to the closing bid price
per A-Share of Huaneng. The closing bid price per A-Share of
Huaneng may be volatile and is affected by various factors
which are beyond the Group's control, included but not
limited to the results of operations of Huaneng, investor
sentiment or confidence in the stock market and changes in
economic conditions of Mainland China.

Property Investment

The monthly rental and the occupancy rate depends on
various factors, including but not limited to prevailing supply
and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental.

The Group is required to revalue its investment properties at
the end of each reporting period and the change in fair value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. There is
no assurance that changes in market conditions will continue
to generate gains or losses on revaluation at similar level or
at same level, or there will be no further decline in the fair
value of the Group's investment properties.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr WANG Fei, aged 58, has been appointed as the Chairman
of the Board, an Executive Director, the Chairman of both the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee, and an
Authorised Representative of the Company since February
2023. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the University of Birmingham, United Kingdom and a
Doctorate Degree in Economics from Department of
Economics of Xiamen University. He is a Senior Economist in
Mainland China. He is a deputy to the 14th National People’s
Congress. He has extensive experience in corporate
development and management, financial investment
management as well as financial institutions and venture
capital management. He is currently the secretary of the Party
Committee, the chairman of the board of directors and the
legal representative of Fujian Investment & Development
Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG"), the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

He was the vice chairman of the Board, an executive director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
from August 2014 to September 2020. He had previously
assumed the positions of the deputy general manager of
Investment Management Department of Fujian Investment
and Enterprise Corporation, the deputy general manager of
Development and Research Department of Fujian
International Trust and Investment Corporation, the general
manager of Development Department and Financial
Investment Management Department of Fujian Investment &
Enterprise Holdings Corporation, the assistant to general
manager, a member of the Party Committee and the deputy
general manager of FIDG, the controlling shareholder of the
Company and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee,
the director-general and the vice chairman of Fujian Rural
Credit Union. He was a director of Industrial Securities Co.,
Ltd. (Stock code: 601377) from December 2014 to June 2021
and Xiamen King Long Motor Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
600686) from September 2014 to March 2016, both of which
are companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He
was a director of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., the
chairman of Haixia Goldenbridge Insurance Co., Ltd., a
director and the vice chairman of Haixia Capital Management
Co., Ltd., the chairman of Fujian Venture Investment
Management Co., Ltd., a director of Alltrust Insurance
Company Limited and the chairman of 1212 % & ¥ AERE
A @ B BR 22 Al (Fujian Industrial Equity Investment Funds
Company Limited*). He was a director and the chairman of
Vigour Fine Company Limited which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company from September 2014 to
December 2018.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUANG Wensheng, aged 56, has been appointed as the
Vice Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company since
February 2023. He has also been appointed as the General
Manager and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since March 2024. He is also the chairman of
the board of directors of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited
and Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd.. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics from Department of Economics and a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Department
of Business Administration of Xiamen University. He is a
Senior Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in banking, financial institutions management
and capital operations. He is currently the assistant to general
manager of FIDG and the chairman of the board of directors
and the general manager of Vigour Fine Company Limited,
both are the controlling shareholders of the Company. He is
also a director of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd..

He has worked in a commercial bank for a long time. He had
previously assumed the positions of the principal of Lianban
Office, the section chief of the Credit Department and the
general manager of Hubin Sub-branch, the general manager
of Tongan Sub-branch, the general manager of the Business
Department and the Key Accounts Department of Xiamen
Branch of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the
“Agricultural Bank”). He was also served as the secretary of
the Party Committee and the general manager of the
Business Department, the general manager of the Key
Accounts Department and the general manager of the
Institutional Business Department, the Custody Business
Department Fujian Sub-section and the Pension Center Fujian
Sub-center of Fujian Provincial Branch of Agricultural Bank.
He was also a senior specialist of Fujian Provincial Branch of
Agricultural Bank.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HON Hau Chit, aged 50, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2016. He is
currently the president of Citychamp Dartong Advanced
Materials Co., Ltd. (“Citychamp Dartong”) (Stock code:
600067, formerly known as Citychamp Dartong Company
Limited), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He joined Citychamp Dartong in December 2004 as the
deputy managing director and has been appointed as the
managing director since April 2006 and the president since
June 2024 respectively. He is currently the vice chairman and
the secretary general of the 3rd standing committee of Fujian
Shizhu Charity Foundation, the vice chairman of the
executive committee of Fujian Province Fuzhou Municipal
Federation of Commerce and Industry, the vice chairman of
Development Committee of Fujian Real Estate Association
and a member of the Standing Committee of Fuzhou
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

27



28

EENRSREEASEAGE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FMTES

BAXRITERE 4157 B2024F 6 ABELE
BARNFIFNITES - tIFHEEPIRBLERE
BESTREESETEM - WAPBEKRES
MACER R SETENETE - B EEN S/
T E2HETE  PBKEENDGXEE
KB o AR R RIERBRRBREIEELEE
CRMEAPLEML - R AREES BRI
BERETRAIMITES  EFERERARR
K18 REEEEREREESERARE
EURERAMEERERETATMNIT
BE EATERERA Z=ZXAAIALRRQRE
BREREREEBENMNEB AR - KRG
CBMERBRRBRMDAER AR 2ES KGIKE
EEXEREECEEARAFRESEER -

1l B RN T R RT CRBESBIRTTA
MBERAR) ERELEEAESH - MEHE
TREREFZEEARESBHNEDME
BEREFE SeEBY  BREREEEE
BB —REERE  ELEEPLERRE
TEE BE2EESATE BMBEHE
BEERESHEEDPOLTE  EEEE
AR RREIARE MBI AAKIE -
EREREZERBELNERREELAES
REAEREKA °

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr ZHOU Tianxing, aged 41, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2024. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in
Economics of Xiamen University. He is a Senior Economist
and an Accountant in the Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in the financial industry, fund settlement
management, financial management and corporate
management. He is currently the director-general of Financial
Capital Centre of FIDG, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. He is also the executive director, the legal
representative and the general manager of 1224 @IZIKE
BRE M2 F] (Fujian Futou Investment Company Limited*),
a director of Fujian Industrial Equity Investment Fund Co.,
Ltd. and the executive director, the legal representative of &
EAmMEEREREMTAR (Fujian Financing Guarantee Co.,
Ltd.*), which are the subsidiaries of FIDG, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also a director of Haixia
Goldenbridge Insurance Co., Ltd. and the vice chairman of
Haixia Capital Management Co., Ltd..

He had previously assumed the position of the credit review
staff member of the Credit Approval Department of Fuzhou
City Commercial Bank (currently Fujian Haixia Bank Co., Ltd.).
He was previously the staff member of the fund management,
the capital operation and the general management of Capital
and Finance Department of Fujian Investment and
Development Corporation, the general management staff,
the senior fund management staff of Fund Settlement Centre,
the senior head of fund management, the deputy general
manager of Capital and Finance Department and the director
of Fund Settlement Centre, the deputy general manager and
the general manager of Fund Management Department and
the general manager of Capital and Finance Department of
FIDG. He was also the chairman and legal representative of /&
B EEHE AR E T2 7 (Fujian Strait Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd.*).

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms YOU Li, aged 46, has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since June 2024 and has also been
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee since
March 2025. She holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics of
Xiamen University. She is a Senior Accountant in the Mainland
China. She has extensive experience in financial
management, corporate financing, taxation and corporate
management. She is currently the general manager of Capital
and Finance Department of FIDG, the controlling shareholder
of the Company. She is also the chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Zhongmin Energy Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 600163) and the
deputy general manager and chief accountant of fRiE& @I
#% & B R & £ 2 7] (Fujian Futou Investment Company
Limited*).

She had previously assumed the positions of the auditor of 1&
B2 A RS B 2= 75 P B BR & £ & Bl (Fujian Shuitong
Taxation Advisory Co., Ltd.*), the staff member of fund
management of the Finance Department of Fujian Branch of
Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China,
Ltd., and the financial controller and finance manager of & &

Hﬁﬂfﬁlﬁ &) (Fujian Hongshun Leasing Co., Ltd.*). She
was previously the deputy general manager and the general
manager of Capital and Finance Department, the assistant to
the general manager of Fujian Venture Investment
Management Co., Ltd., a member of the Party Committee and
the financial controller of Zhongmin Energy Co., Ltd., and the
deputy general manager of Capital and Finance Department
of FIDG.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr IP Kai Ming, aged 73, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the
guest senior lecturer of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd..
He is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has
over 40 years' extensive experience in banking and finance.
He is also a director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce. He
was the chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2021 and the senior
advisor to the board of directors of Luso International
Banking Limited from 2016 to 2022. He has a Master of
Science degree in Corporate Governance and Directorship
from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, aged 54, FCCA, CPA, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee since April 2017 and has
also been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company since April 2018. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in
Accountancy in 1993 and the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a MBA degree in 2003. He is also a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has accumulated over 20 years of experience
in professional accounting, business consulting and
corporate management. He was the executive director and
the chief financial officer of Greenland Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited,
Stock code: 337) from 2011 to 2012 and from 2009 to 2012
respectively, the group financial controller of Nine Dragons
Paper (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 2689) from 2007 to
2008, and the group financial controller and the company
secretary of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 882) from 2000 to 2003, all these companies are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, aged 59, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in laws with honors. He is
qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and a China
Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry of
Justice of the PRC. He is currently a partner of Woo Kwan Lee
& Lo and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
1991. He was the chief representative of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
Beijing Office. He has accumulated extensive experience in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions and commercial
law and has been involved in various listing and acquisition
transactions of Chinese H Share companies and red chip
companies. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Medical System Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 867). He was an independent non-executive director of
China Communications Construction Company Limited (Stock
code: 1800) from January 2011 to November 2017, China
National Materials Company Limited (Stock code: 1893) from
July 2007 to May 2018, SSY Group Limited (Stock Code: 2005)
from October 2005 to May 2023 and China Coal Energy
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1898) from June 2017 to
March 2023, respectively. All these companies are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr SU Yuecai, aged 42, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in December 2023. He is also the vice
chairman of the board of directors of Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He graduated in the major of Mathematics and
Applied Mathematics from University of Science and
Technology Beijing. He is an Economist in Mainland China. He
has extensive experience in financial investment and assets
management. He served as the general manager of the
Securities Investment Business Department of Fujian Venture
Investment Management Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary of
FIDG, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and the
senior director of capital operations and the deputy general
manager of Financial Investment Management Department
of FIDG.

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu, aged 54, is the Deputy General Manager
and Financial Controller of the Company. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company, the Chief
Representative of the Fuzhou Representative Office of the
Company, and a director of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., Sanming
Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited and
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Company
in April 2000 and was appointed as Deputy Financial
Controller in July 2004, Financial Controller in January 2008,
Deputy General Manager in March 2014 respectively. He was
the Company Secretary of the Company from May 2019 to
August 2021. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce in
Accounting and Professional Diploma for Company Director.
He is a Certified Public Accountant, a Fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Senior
Associate of Australian and New Zealand Institute of
Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF) and a Certified ESG Planner.
He is also a committee member of the Corporate Governance
Policies Committee of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and a Technical Specialist of the Institute of Risk
Management. Before joining the Company, he had worked
for various listed companies in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr WU Xubin, aged 47, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 2017. He is also a director and the
Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, which
holds a general insurance licence and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. He holds a Master Degree in
Engineering, Economics and Management from University of
Oxford. He is certified as a Construction Project Manager
(Senior) by China National Offshore Oil Corporation and a
Fellow of Australian and New Zealand Institute of Insurance
and Finance (ANZIIF). He has extensive experience in
comprehensive corporate management and served as a
corporate controller for over 12 years. He served as the
general manager (controller) of CNOOC (Ningde) QOil Storage
Co., Ltd., CNOOC (Ningde) Petrochemical Jetty Co., Ltd. and
CNOOC Fujian Marketing Co., Ltd. respectively, and was the
Acting Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited
from February 2018 to February 2023.

Ms WENG Wei Jian, aged 54, joined the Company as Group
Chief Auditor in January 2018. She is also the supervisor of
Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited. She graduated in the major of
finance and accounting from Minjiang University and in the
major of law from East China University of Political Science
and Law. She is a Senior Accountant in Mainland China. She
has over 27 years’ extensive experience in risk management
and control, accounting, asset management and financial
management. She is also a director of Samba Limited, which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company, and a non-
executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited (Stock code:
181), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHEN Yanxing, aged 53, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in January 2024. He is also the vice
chairman of the board of directors and the general manager
of Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., the chairman of the
board of directors, the legal representative and the general
manager of Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited. He graduated in the major of financial
accounting from Fujian Agriculture University and in the
major of finance from Fujian Institute of Financial
Administrators. He is a Senior Economist in Mainland China.
He has extensive experience in banking and capital
operations. He has worked in Agricultural Bank for a long
time. He had previously assumed the positions of staff
member of the Credit Management Department, deputy
general manager of Customer Department, deputy general
manager of Small Business Finance Department and the
general manager of Corporate Business Department of
Business Department of Fujian Provincial Branch. He was also
served as the secretary of the Party Committee and the
general manager of China (Fujian) Pilot Free Trade Zone
Fuzhou Area Branch, the general manager of Business
Department, Corporate Business Department and senior
specialist of Fuzhou Branch, the secretary of the Party
Committee and the general manager of Jinan Sub-branch
and senior specialist of Fuzhou Branch.

Mr YU Xing, aged 40, joined the Company in December 2023
and has been appointed as Assistant General Manager in
January 2024. He is also the deputy chief executive of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited, and a director of Fujian Minxin
Investments Co.,Ltd. and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He graduated in the major of accounting from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics. He is an Auditor in
Mainland China. He has extensive experience in accounting
and risk management. He has served as an audit assistant,
project assistant and project manager of Fujian Branch of
Zhongrui Yuehua Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership). He was also served as the capital
management supervisor of Capital and Finance Department,
the senior supervisor and the senior internal control and risk
supervisor of Audit Department of FIDG, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also a director of Samba
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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PREIBHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Director(s)”) of the
Company is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance with a view to achieving
business objectives and sustainable development of the
Company. The Company has adopted the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Board will continue to monitor and periodically review
the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group is committed to promoting a core corporate spirit
with integrity, innovation and pragmatism. The Group is
committed to establishing a sound corporate culture that is
people-centered, risk-prevention-oriented, legally compliant
and steady progress by integrating the cultural characteristics
of Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau. The Group strives to
build up a comprehensive financial service platform that
integrates the resources and characteristics of Fujian, Hong
Kong and Macau driven by the two wheels of finance and
industry. Focusing on the development direction, the Group
will continue to seize opportunities, innovate development
models, create outstanding performance and strive for the
greatest benefits for the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and stakeholders.

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

35



36

EREIBHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PHEXI (18)

AEBRFURBEL/PL - MRFAEE
1F - IBREE  BYAXN - HEMNE RS
BRE HETMRENERFBBAKEN
REEREBHMBEMEZ - AR £EF
EMEET  AEETEHNRARERE
B RERVRENER AR EES
BEBBEENREREE)  (BHEBEK)
AR BABR)ESHBR @ [HEHER
SENXE - RHETBERBANEE K
ABLEXE  AEERMEMETRED
EXAeMERABIE - LAGEE L EER
EAREENEEED - TESMIBRINA NS
FiDENBESD -

BEmME  EFECERAKENED - B
EBMRREYRBEN AR RBNERE -

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

CORPORATE CULTURE (Continued)

The Group adheres to customer-centric, strengthens
industrial co-operation and operates steadily; builds up an
effective, continual and regular communication channel to
exchange new ideas and suggestions of the Group’s
strategies and businesses with the staff and the stakeholders.
Also, with the Board’s oversight, the Group continues to
strengthen compliance and risk management control and
establish a sound compliance and risk prevention
mechanism. The Group promotes its culture continuously by
setting out various policies, including but not limited to the
Whistleblowing Policy, the Anti-corruption Policy and the
Shareholder Communication Policy. In order to assist
employee to integrate into the Group and familiar with the
corporate culture, the Group provides corporate culture and
compliance knowledge training to all new employees, and
the corporate culture is articulated in the operating practices,
workplace policies as well as relationship with stakeholders.

In summary, the Board has reviewed the mission, value and
strategy of the Group and considered that they are in
alignment with the Group’s corporate culture.
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LINKAGE BETWEEN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group recognises the significance of sound
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) practices and
is committed to the protection of the environment, provision
of quality workplace and serving the wider community. The
ESG considerations are reflected in the policies, procedures
and processes that are relevant to the daily operations of the
Group. The Board plays the key role in ESG strategy and
oversight in order to create long-term growth and
sustainable value for the stakeholders of the Group. The
Group had established a ESG governance structure to advise
and oversee the Group's sustainability and ESG-related issues,
opportunities and risks. The ESG management approach and
policies are overseen by the Board. The Board identifies and
evaluates the material ESG issues related to internal and
external stakeholders (including risks to the Group’s
businesses). With the everchanging ESG-related risks and the
growing prominence of ESG-related issues to stakeholders,
the Group will continue to uphold and strengthen the risk
management system in order to cope with the changing ESG-
related risks and opportunities. The ESG policies and
performance of the Group are contained in a separate ESG
Report, which will be available at the Company’s website
under the Environmental, Social and Governance Reports and
the website of the Stock Exchange on the same publication
date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of
eight members, with two Executive Directors, three Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Board Composition (Continued)

The composition of the current Board members represents a
balanced mixture of skills, experiences and qualifications.
Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and
professional expertise. The Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors have extensive experiences in banking,
financial institutions management, corporate development
and management, capital operations, financial management,
corporate financing and taxation. The appointment of two
Non-executive Directors (including one female Director)
during the year brought new ideas and diverse expertise to
the Group and enhanced the gender diversity at the Board
level. The three Independent Non-executive Directors possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and
have experiences in banking, accounting, legal, corporate
finance and mergers and acquisitions which would contribute
to the long-term development of the Company. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors have shared their
experiences and expertise to the Board and demonstrated
their ability to provide independent view and judgement in
the Group’s affairs.

The Board has adopted a policy setting out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) with the aim of enhancing Board
effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving
our business objectives and sustainable development.

The Board recognises and embraces the benefit of having a
diverse Board. Board diversity has been considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, required expertise, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Nomination Committee has the primary
responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board and, in carrying out such
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board diversity
and the Board Diversity Policy and believes that the current
composition of the Board is balanced and diverse in terms of
gender, professional background and skills, satisfies the
Board Diversity Policy and demonstrates a thorough
consideration of the factors for achieving board diversity, and
the Board Diversity Policy continues to be effective.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Board Composition (Continued)

B R R B A

An analysis of the Board’s current composition at 31
December 2024 is as follows:

5=
Directors
AE Aot
Number Percentage
B Designation
BWITESE Executive Directors 2 25.0%
FHEE(FE) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman)
BEXMEE (FIFEFE Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman
ABAETE ) and General Manager)
(R2024F 3 29 HZ(F (Appointed as the General Manager
IAEREIE) on 29 March 2024)
EMITES Non-executive Directors 3 37.5%
PREESLL Mr HON Hau Chit
FARITRAE Mr ZHOU Tianxing
(R2024F6 A19HZ(F)  (Appointed on 19 June 2024)
MR L Ms YOU Li
(R2024%F6 H19HZ(T)  (Appointed on 19 June 2024)
BYFTES Independent Non-executive Directors 3 37.5%
HRUAEAE Mr IP Kai Ming
RIE A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi
2AINE % £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun
%50 Gender
St Male 7 87.5%
7 Female 1 12.5%
F AR Age Group
71-80 7% 71-80 years old 1 12.5%
51-60 7% 51-60 years old 4 50.0%
41-50 5% 41-50 years old 3 37.5%
BEXQARESENES Directorship with the Company
(F8) (Number of years)
B3 20 Over 20 years 1 12.5%
1-10 4 1-10 years 5 62.5%
DR1F Less than 1 year 2 25.0%
EEHM LT ARNES Directorship with other listed companies
(AEEE) (Number of companies)
1 1 2 25.0%
0 0 6 75.0%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

An updated list of Directors and their roles and functions
together with the information of their roles as Independent
Non-executive Directors is posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management on pages 25 to 34 of
this annual report. Independent Non-executive Directors are
also identified as such in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of the Company’s Directors. Save as
disclosed under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships
between Board members.

The Company has a formal procedure for the appointment of
new directors. Any proposed appointment will be first
reviewed by the Nomination Committee of the Board, taking
into account the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the proposed appointment will then
be reviewed by the Board and, if thought fit, approved by the
Board or by the Shareholders in any general meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All retiring directors are eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Any new
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or appointed as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual
general meeting of the Company following his appointment,
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Role and Function of the Board

The Board determines the Group’s overall corporate
objectives, business strategies and operational policies. The
Board continuously monitors and evaluates the Group’s
operational and financial performance, maintains effective
oversight over the management, risks assessment and
controls over business operations. The Board also decides on
matters such as annual budgets and business plans, major
transactions, appointment of new directors, re-appointment
or re-designation of directors, dividend distribution and
accounting policies, and ESG management approach and
strategy. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies and
managing the daily operations of the Group’s businesses to
the General Manager Meeting which is led by the General
Manager of the Company, who is also an Executive Director
of the Company.

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company'’s
corporate objectives, business strategies and operational
policies through independent, constructive and informed
advice. They gave the Board and the Board Committees on
which they served the benefit of their skills, expertise and
experiences through regular attendance and active
participation.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Role and Function of the Board (Continued)

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policies of the Company. During the year, the
Board developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and made recommendations
as below:

. To review and monitor the corporate culture, mission
and value of the Company;

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
directors and employees;

. To review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report; and

. To develop and review ESG management approach and
strategy, including but not limited to the endorsement
of ESG philosophy and governance structure, the
determination of ESG targets, the evaluation and
determination of ESG-related risks, and the review and
approval of the ESG Report.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their
offices held in other public companies or organisations, other
major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is critical
to constitute good corporate governance. The Company has
established different channels through formal and informal
means to ensure independent views and input are available
to the Board. The Board reviews the channels on an annual
basis, including the proportion and independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, and their contribution
and access to external independent professional advice.

During the year under review, three out of the eight Directors
are Independent Non-executive Directors, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents at least one-
third of the Board. All Independent Non-executive Directors
have made annual confirmation of independence to the
Company as required under the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee has assessed the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and the continuing independence of
the current long-serving Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Board considers all its Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.

All Directors actively participated in the Board and Board
Committees meetings and expressed their views in an open
and candid manner. The Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) will meet with the Independent Non-executive
Directors at least annually without the presence of other
Directors and senior management and all Directors have
been provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, including but not limited to seeking legal or
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

The Board is of the view that the channels to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board are
effective and the Board has a strong independent element
and operates effectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year, to
review business development and performance of the Group
and additional meetings will be held as and when required.
Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to
facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited
to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss or
propose at such meetings. The Company Secretary assists the
Board in preparing the agenda for meetings. Directors or
Board Committee members receive the meeting agenda and
accompanying Board papers or Board Committee papers at
least three days before the date of Board meeting or Board
Committee meeting. Management also supplies the Board
and the Board Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before the
Board and the Board Committees for review and approval.
Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated to all the
Directors and Board Committee members for their comments
and records respectively. Minutes of Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.

All Directors have full access to business documents and
information of the Group on a timely basis. Furthermore,
management provides all Directors with monthly updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties under the Listing Rules. The Board and
each Director has separate and independent access to senior
management and Company Secretary of the Company.

Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense upon
making requests to the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Board Meetings (Continued)

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the
development of strategy, policies and decision-making by
attending the Board meetings in person or via telephone/
video conferencing.

The attendance records of five scheduled Board meetings
held in 2024 and the annual general meeting of the Company
are set out below:

HER SR SRR
Attendance/Number of Meetings
RRBFARE
g Annual
Board General
EEpnE Name of Directors Meetings Meeting
WiITES Executive Directors
EIRELE(ERE) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) 5/5 11
BEXMEE (FIEEFE Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman 5/5 11
fEAETE ) and General Manager)
(R2024F 3 29 HZ(F (Appointed as the General Manager
FIHEAETE ) on 29 March 2024)
BRFEE Mr CHEN Yu 2/5 11
(R 2024 4 3 A 29 HEHE (Resigned as the General Manager
AAAETE N7 2024 F 6 H 19 H on 29 March 2024 and resigned as
BIT#HITEE) an Executive Director
on 19 June 2024)
FEHITES Non-executive Directors
BERESLL Mr HON Hau Chit 5/5 11
AXRITHEE Mr ZHOU Tianxing 3/5 TEAN/A
(R2024F 6 A19HZ(F) (Appointed on 19 June 2024)
MR L Ms YOU Li 3/5 NEFAN/A
(R2024F6 A19HZ(F) (Appointed on 19 June 2024)
BB E Mr YANG Jingchao 2/5 1/1
(R2024%F 6 A 19 HEHT) (Resigned on 19 June 2024)
BYFTES Independent Non-executive Directors
HRUA AL Mr IP Kai Ming 5/5 11
SRIE A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 5/5 11
A8 5 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 5/5 1/1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Chairman and Chief Executive

The positions of the Chairman and the General Manager
(acting in the capacity of the Chief Executive) of the Company
are held by separate individuals with a view to maintain an
effective segregation of duties regarding the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses.

During the year, the position of the Chairman of the Board
was held by Mr WANG Fei and the position of the General
Manager was held by Mr CHEN Yu until his resignation which
took effect on 29 March 2024. Mr HUANG Wensheng has been
appointed as the General Manager of the Company with
effect from 29 March 2024.

One of the important roles of Mr WANG Fei, the Chairman, is
to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman ensures
that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has
delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for
each Board meeting to the General Manager, Mr HUANG
Wensheng.

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, supported by senior management, is
responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,
including the implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors and senior
management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

More than one-third of the members of the Board consist of
Independent Non-executive Directors and at least one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and their independence have been assessed with reference
to the criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board has affirmed that all
Independent Non-executive Directors remain independent.

The re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years will be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board will
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and state the reasons why the Board considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are still independent
and recommend the Shareholders to vote in favour of the re-
election of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Directors’ Training

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. In 2024, the Company
has arranged two seminars for the Directors and senior
management with topics covered Climate-Related Financial
Risk Reporting, and Ethical Governance and Anti-Corruption
Laws and Regulations. The Company has also provided
training materials to the Directors and senior management
with the emphasis on the updates on corporate governance,
internal control and ESG matters.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the

=T

Directors received trainings in the following areas:

H E A FEER
Attended Read
EEpnE Name of Directors seminar materials
WITES Executive Directors
FIHREE(EE) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) v v
BEXMEE (FIFEFE Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman v v
ABAETE ) and General Manager)
(R2024F3 29 HZ1F (Appointed as the General Manager
FIHBAETE ) on 29 March 2024)
BRFEE Mr CHEN Yu ANEF N/A v
(R 2024 9F 3 A 29 HEFF (Resigned as the General Manager
ST N7 2024 F 6 H 19 H on 29 March 2024 and resigned as
BIHEHTESE) an Executive Director
on 19 June 2024)
FEHITES Non-executive Directors
PREESA Mr HON Hau Chit v 7
AXRITHEE Mr ZHOU Tianxing v/ /%
(R2024F6 A19HZ(F) (Appointed on 19 June 2024)
MR L Ms YOU Li v v
(R2024F6 A19HZ(F) (Appointed on 19 June 2024)
THEREA S A Mr YANG Jingchao TEAN/A %
(R 20244F 6 A 19 HEHF) (Resigned on 19 June 2024)
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HRUA AL Mr IP Kai Ming v/ 7
RIE A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi v v
2 £l IE 5 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun v/ v

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued])

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on directors’ and officers’ liabilities against possibility of legal
action to be taken against the directors and senior
management. No claim under such insurance policy was
made in 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Each of the Board Committees has its terms of reference with
defined powers and authorities given to the Committee
members to discharge their duties. The terms of reference of
all the Non-executive Board Committees have been made
available on the Company’s website and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent Non-
executive Directors. Majority of the Remuneration Committee
members and the Nomination Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors while the Executive
Committee comprises all Executive Directors. The General
Manager Meeting set up by the Executive Committee and
endorsed by the Board comprises the General Manager, who
is also an Executive Director, and the senior management of
the Company.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of two Executive
Directors, namely Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) and Mr HUANG
Wensheng.

Mr CHEN Yu has resigned as a member of the Executive
Committee with effect from 19 June 2024.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

To further improve the work process and enhance the
effectiveness, the Executive Committee has set up the
General Manager Meeting which has been endorsed by the
Board to exercise the authority and responsibility delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee. The General
Manager Meeting meets at least once per month and
operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Executive Committee. It exercises the
powers, authorities and discretions as directed by the
Executive Committee in so far as they concern the
management and daily operations of the Group in
accordance with its terms of reference and such other policies
and directives as the Executive Committee may determine
from time to time. The General Manager and the senior
management of the Company report periodically to the
Executive Committee for the daily operations and
management status of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi. Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. The other members are Mr IP Kai
Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing, among
other things, the Group’s financial reporting and ESG
reporting, the nature and scope of audit, the effectiveness of
the systems of internal control and risk management, and
compliance relating to financial reporting and ESG reporting.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, removal and remuneration of the Group’s
external auditor. The Audit Committee meets regularly to
perform its duties and has a separate meeting with the
external auditor in the absence of management to discuss
any audit issues and any other matters the external auditor
may wish to raise. The Audit Committee can perform its
duties with unrestricted access to both the Group’s external
and internal auditors. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Audit Committee to discharge its duties including but not
limited to obtaining legal or other independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
alia, the following:

reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2024 and recommended to the Board for approval
respectively;

reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes of
changes from the previous accounting period, effects
on the application of new accounting policies, and
compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation;

reviewed the activities of the Group’s risk management,
compliance management and internal audit functions
and their findings and recommendations as laid down
in their respective reports;

oversaw the ESG issue of the Group and reviewed ESG
Report for the year of 2023;

reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2024;

reviewed the risk management system, risk appetite
report and risk management work plan for the year of
2025;

recommended the Board regarding the re-appointment
of the Company's external auditor;

reviewed the audit plan for the year of 2024;

considered the adequacy of resources, professional
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting, risk management,
internal control and internal audit functions, and their
training programs and budget; and

held a meeting with the external auditor, in the absence

of management, to discuss any audit issues and any
other matters the external auditor may wish to raise.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

In 2024, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The

B attendance record of each Committee member is set out
below:
HERESRAH
REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
BYIFRTES Independent Non-executive Directors

RIBRE () Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chairman) 3/3
HRUA L Mr IP Kai Ming 3/3
2 £l IE 5 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 3/3

HnMEEe Remuneration Committee
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BRERXERE  RANREE  mXME
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20 HAEAERK o
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FAERBRARTXM
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
Committee members, the majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the other members are Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, Mr HUANG Wensheng and Mr
CHAN Kwong Yu.

Mr CHEN Yu has resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Mr HUANG Wensheng has been appointed as
a member of the Remuneration Committee, both with effect
from 29 March 2024.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy, and the formulation and
review of the remuneration packages of all Directors and the
senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year and reports to the
Board on the decisions or recommendations following each
meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Remuneration Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.



HHEEE (18)

RER FHEZESRTT (APEFB)AT

B
BB NES T ERERARNRE -
WEHEFRAE -

BE204FENESTHE TEHE
FERE K

ERMZIEFTNESTHE  YRNEF
SHEREL -

FHER SN 0UFERTTRARSE - &
RIp% B 2 R s RSIIm T -

EFREGHS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to the
senior management and recommended the same to the
Board for approval;

reviewed the directors’ fees for the year of 2024 and
recommended the same to the Board for endorsement;
and

considered the director’s fees for the newly appointed
Directors and recommended the same to the Board for
approval.

In 2024, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of each Committee member is set out
below:

HEREFRRE
REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
BYFRITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERUBSEE(FE) Mr IP Kai Ming (Chairman) 2/2
RIE A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 2/2
2 Al I8 5 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 2/2
WiITES Executive Director
BEXMEE(FIEE Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman
FRAALTIE ) and General Manager)
(R20244F 3 29 HZ(F) (Appointed on 29 March 2024) 1/2
BRFEE Mr CHEN Yu
(2024 % 3 A 29 HEHT) (Resigned on 29 March 2024) 1/2
BHREBAE Senior Management
PREF L Mr CHAN Kwong Yu 2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed on an
individual basis and are set out in Note 11(a) to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
set out in Note 11(c) to the consolidated financial statement
of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four Committee
members. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr WANG
Fei, the Chairman of the Board, and the other members are
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr IP Kai Ming,
Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations,
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and Board
Committee members in accordance with the Company’s
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy sets out the
procedures, process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers and reviews, among other
things, the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board, the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the
candidates, independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, re-election of retiring Directors, term of
appointment and time commitment of Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
and the membership of respective Board Committees. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for developing
and reviewing measurable objectives for the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and
reports to the Board on the decisions or recommendations
following each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to
the Nomination Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,
inter alia, the following:

reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy and the structure, size and
composition (including but not limited to the skills,
knowledge and experiences) of the Board in accordance

with the Board Diversity Policy and reported to the
Board;
et RETZ BN FEITE SR HB L reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors;
B RMESSHBEZENES & reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
appointment of new Directors; and

RE RBREEFE N 2024 FRITHR
REFAS L HBERRTES -

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting held in 2024.

REZEEN2024FRITTMAGE - B

FXB 2 HEREEHTIMT

In 2024, the Nomination Committee held two meeting. The
attendance record of each Committee member is set out

below:
HEREFRAH
REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
WiTES Executive Directors
FHEE(ERE) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) 2/2
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HRUA AL Mr IP Kai Ming 2/2
SRIE S Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 2/2
2 £l IE 5 4= Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Code of Conduct”) on
terms no less exacting than the required standard in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors and all Directors of the Company have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set
out in the Model Code and the Company’s Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

The Group recognises the importance of diversity not just at
the Board level but throughout the Group. The Group is
committed to promoting diversity across the organisation
and the gender diversity across the Group for 2024 has been
largely consistent with that of 2023. As at 31 December 2024,
approximately 45.7% of our employees (including senior
management) are male, 54.3% of our employees (including
senior management) are female and one of the six senior
management is female. The Group will strive to maintain an
appropriate balance of gender diversity so that it will have a
pipeline of diversified gender for senior management and
potential successors to the Board going forward.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board aims at making a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects. The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of consolidated financial statements of each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and its subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period and of their financial performance and cash
flows for that period then ended. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024, the Directors selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards which are pertinent to its operations
and relevant to the financial statements, made judgement
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and prepared
the accounts on a going concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Financial Reporting (Continued)

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company on a going concern basis. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
audited by the external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
and reviewed by the Audit Committee. At 31 December 2024,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which might cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 90 to 97 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
and overseeing an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
management and internal control systems will monitor the
material aspects of the Group's business and operations and
also to safeguard its assets. Such systems are designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile,
rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board has adopted the Risk Management Policy which
covers the Group’s risk appetite and risk management
framework at strategic and operational levels in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks including but
not limited to credit risk, market risk, insurance risk,
operational risk, investment risk, compliance risk and ESG
risk, the details of which were set out in the Risk Management
and Internal Control Report on pages 65 to 72 of this annual
report and a separate ESG Report, which will be available at
the Company’s website under the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reports and the website of the Stock Exchange
on the same publication date of this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued])

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

The Board oversees the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems with the assistance
of the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Department of the Company. Risk Management Department
developed the risk registers and risk management manual for
implementing risk management and internal control
practices. The Manager of Risk Management Department is
also responsible for reviewing the risk management status in
the Group, to monitor and review the execution of and
compliance with the established risk control policies and
measures. Regular audits or reviews are conducted to provide
assurance that the risk controls are in place in business and
operational units of the Group. The Manager of Risk
Management Department presents reports to the members
of the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board also delegates the responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee monitors the Group's risk management processes
and internal control systems through the Internal Audit
Department. The Internal Audit Department performs
ongoing assessments and regular independent reviews of all
material controls of the Group, checks for compliance with
policies and standards and evaluates the effectiveness of
internal control structures across the Group.

The Audit Committee has considered and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all material controls, including
financial, operational, compliance, ESG and risk management
functions during the year, the resources allocated to risk
management and internal control operations, and the risks
that we may be faced in the operations. The Audit Committee
has reported the review result to the Board following each
Audit Committee meeting. The Board has reviewed and
considered, and was satisfied with the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the risk
management functions are effective, adequate and in
compliance with the risk management and internal control
code provisions of the CG Code.

The Group will continuously follow changes in regulations
regarding climate-related disclosures, to identify emerging
transition risks and opportunities, and closely examine the
effects of climate change on our insurance business in order
to assess and mitigate risks.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the fees paid or payable to the
external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
for statutory audit services (including services for the
statutory audit of the Risk-based Capital regime), agreed-
upon procedures (in relation to interim financial statements
issued by the Company) and tax and consultancy services
were HK$3,722,000, HK$323,000 and HK$266,000
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Tse Ching Wah is the Company Secretary and an
Authorised Representative of the Company. Ms Tse is a full
time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She should report to the
Chairman, Vice Chairman and the General Manager and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
She confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours
relevant professional training to update her skills and
knowledge during the year 2024.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting (“"GM”)

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meetings may request the Directors of the
Company to call a GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

() may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and

() may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening a General Meeting ("GM”) (Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the Directors
to proceed to convene a GM within 21 days from the date of
the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held on a date
not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the GM.

If the Directors fail to convene a GM within 21 days from the
date of the receipt of the request, the shareholder(s) who
requested the GM, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
the receipt of the request.

A GM so convened by the shareholder(s) concerned shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to
convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”).

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“"AGM")

Shareholders of the Company may request the Company to
give, to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) atleast 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) (Continued)

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received by the
Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to which the
request relates; or if later, the time at which notice is given of
that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of the resolution at
the Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If shareholders of the Company would like to express their
views to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or
other business to be dealt with at a GM, they can submit a
written statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to that matter or business and request the Company to
circulate their written statement to the shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of GM. Such shareholders
must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the

meeting; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders having the relevant right to
vote at the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings
(Continued)

The shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in relation
to a proposed statement concerning a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution, a right to vote on that resolution at the
meeting to which the requests relate; and (ii) in relation to
any other statement, a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requests relate.

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to the
Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii) must
identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company will circulate the statement to
each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company to
send a copy of the statement at the same time as it
gives notice of AGM. Otherwise, the shareholders
concerned have to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned
not later than 7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an AGM), the
shareholders concerned have to deposit a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned not later than 7 days before the
GM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a
retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at a GM. The procedures for such proposal are
available on the website of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication
Policy aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication
amongst the Shareholders, the Board and the senior
management of the Company through various official
channels so that the Shareholders can access the Company’s
public information equally in a timely manner. Information
would be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications, such as interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, and annual
general meetings, as well as disclosures on the website of the
Company. The Shareholders are provided with contact details
of the Company in order to enable them to make any query
that they may have with respect to the Company. They can
also send their enquiries to the Board through these means.
In addition, the Shareholders can contact the Company’s
share registrar if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.

The Board is of the view that the Shareholders Communication
Policy promotes effective communication between the
Company and the Shareholders, and the Shareholders
Communication Policy continues effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted the Dividend Policy which has set
out the principle and procedures for the payment of dividend
to the Shareholders to provide stable and sustainable returns
to the Shareholders and to share the profits of the Company
with the Shareholders. The Board may decide from time to
time to declare interim dividend or to recommend the
payment of final dividend and special dividend to the
Shareholders which is subject to the Shareholders’ approval
in an annual general meeting. The Company intends to
provide the eligible Shareholders with approximately 10% to
20% of the Group’s consolidated profit for the year
attributable to the Shareholders as dividend, the remaining
consolidated profit for the year will be used for the future
development and operations of the Company.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

The Group has zero tolerance for bribery and corruption. The
Group has adopted the Anti-corruption Policy, which aims at
requiring employees of the Group and the stakeholders and
third parties who deal with the Group to comply with any
applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to anti-bribery
and anti-corruption, including but not limited to the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), relevant guidelines issued by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and other jurisdictions in
which the Group operates, or in any applicable case, similar
laws and regulations. To encourage employees of the Group
and the stakeholders and third parties who deal with the
Group to raise concerns and report in confidence about
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in any matters
related to the Group, and providing with reporting channels
and guidelines, the Group has also adopted the
Whistleblowing Policy. The Audit Committee is responsible
for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Anti-
corruption Policy and Whistleblowing Policy and the actions
resulting from any investigation.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There has
been no change during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The internal audit

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company ”) and its
subsidiaries (the “"Group”) strive to establish a sound risk
management and internal control system to achieve
sustainable development and be responsible to shareholders.
The Board of the Company (the “Board”) has the overall
responsibility for maintaining the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system. The senior
management is charged with the responsibility to establish
and implement such system to control risks arising from
business activities within an acceptable level via an effective
risk management process.

During the year under review, the Group complied with the
above principles and the code provision D.2 as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The details are summarised
as follows:

&2 R EAR
Figure 2 : Risk Appetite Framework
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Note:  Five core principles include: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong liquidity position; Preserving
good reputation; Complying with regulatory and compliance management requirements; Matching
between risks and returns.
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Figure 4 : Risk Management Process
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 1)

The Group has established a risk management framework to
define its risk management objectives, risk appetite, risk
monitoring and reporting mechanism to enable the effective
implementation of the risk management process by the
Group. If any material risk is identified that could have a
significant impact on the Group, it should be immediately
reported to the senior management or notified to the Audit
Committee to take appropriate risk management action
against the material risk.

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 2)

The Group's risk appetite is based on five core principles,
including: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong
liquidity position; Preserving good reputation; Complying
with regulatory and compliance management requirements;
and Matching between risks and returns.

The senior management shall design risk indicators and risk
limits based on the five core principles and operating
environment. The senior management shall also report its
implementation status to the Board on a regular basis.
Meanwhile, a risk appetite statement report should be
compiled at least once a year and subsequently submitted to
the Board for approval.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

The Group has adopted a systematic risk management
approach to implement a top-down management
mechanism. The current risk management organisational
structure comprises the Board, the senior management and
the business divisions.

. The Board is the highest steering committee for risk
management, and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, it evaluates the risks that the Group is
willing to accept in achieving its strategic goals, so as to
ensure the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

. The senior management is responsible for formulating
risk strategies, risk policies and risk management
framework; establishing the risk management culture;
and implementing and supervising the risk management
and internal control system.
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

(Continued)
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Table 1: Three Lines of Defense

Business divisions (and subsidiaries)
serve as the first line of defense.
They shall be responsible for
managing the risks arising from
business activities. At the same time,
they shall formulate relevant
regulations and processes in
accordance with risk management
policies, carry out specific risk
management work, as well as
provide risk indicators to the risk
management function on a regular
basis to track the performance of
risk management. In addition,
business divisions (and subsidiaries)
shall work with the compliance
management function to ensure
that the design of various policies
was in conformity with the related
regulations of competent
authorities.
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The risk management function and
the compliance management
function are responsible for the
second line of defense. The risk
management function is responsible
for collecting key risk information,
managing the implementation status
of its risk indicators as well as issuing
risk warnings when those risk
indicators are close to exceeding the
risk limits. The compliance
management function is responsible
for managing the Company's internal
systems, monitoring whether each
business divisions has complied with
relevant internal policies in business
operations, duly performing
supervisions and inspections such as
compliance check and compliance
examination, and conducting
inspections on the compliance
practice in business operations.
Meanwhile, the risk management
function and the compliance
management function shall report
the implementation status of risk
management to the senior
management, the Audit Committee
and the Board on a regular basis.

The internal audit function acts as
the third line of defense. The Board
and the Audit Committee are
responsible for leading the internal
audit function in inspecting and
evaluating the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system regularly,
and requesting for enhancements
where appropriate.
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)
(Continued)

. Each business division is an implementation unit of its
respective business activities, and shall regularly
provide risk indicators to the risk management
department or internal audit function of the Company,
or corresponding function in the subsidiary level for
conducting risk management activities.

At the same time, in order to implement the risk management
and internal control system effectively and to achieve the
goal of “To be risk-oriented and to comply with the laws”, the
Group has set up a “Three Lines of Defense” model (Table 1)
to ensure that the operational management and business
processes of the Group have been embedded with risk
management activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS (FIGURE 4)

The Group conducts risk management by adopting the
following risk management steps:

Step 1: Risk Identification - Identifying the significant sources
and types of risks faced by the Group;

Step 2: Risk Analysis — Evaluating the identified risks;

Step 3: Risk Monitoring - Setting key risk indicators to
identified significant risks based on the risk appetite
framework and monitoring changes in risk on a regular basis;
and

Step 4: Risk Reporting - Concluding and analysing the results
of risk management and reporting the results to the senior
management, the Audit Committee and the Board. The report
also outlines the following items:

. Implementation of risk indicators and limits; and
. Risk assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS FACED BY THE GROUP

The Group has identified significant risks in its principal
businesses, which can be categorised as: Associated company
risk, Insurance risk, Credit risk, Market risk, Operational risk
and ESG risk. The summary of the risks and related
management measures are as follows:

Associated Company Risk

“Associated company risk” is the risk of difficulty in realisation
of its equity interests of an associated company.

The most significant investment held by the Group is its
equity interests in Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB").
Therefore, the Company conducts risk management by
nominating a director to the board of directors of XIB and
continuously monitoring long-term investment performance
to reduce uncertainty.

At the end of 2024, the total assets of our banking business
accounted for 71% of the Group’s total assets.

Insurance Risk

“Insurance risk” refers to the risk of losses resulting from
unexpected changes in the claims settlement costs and
related expenses in accordance with the contract after
receiving premiums and starting to undertake the risks of the
insured in the insurance business.

In order to reduce the risk, Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”) focuses on high-quality new
businesses with mature underwriting policies, and adopts
appropriate claim procedures to reduce the risks in claims
processing due to improper operations or negligence.
Besides, Min Xin Insurance has arranged reinsurance
arrangement to control risks within an acceptable range.

At the end of 2024, Min Xin Insurance’s exposure amount (i.e.,
insurance revenue under HKFRS 17 was HK$187.38 miillion, a
decrease of 2% as compared to HK$191.13 million at the end
of 2023.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS FACED BY THE GROUP
(Continued)

Credit Risk

“Credit risk” is the risk of potential financial loss due to
counterparty or debtor failing or declining to perform
contractual obligations.

The credit risk of Min Xin Insurance is mainly from the risk
that the treaty-reinsurer fails to perform the reinsurance
treaty, causing financial losses to Min Xin Insurance and the
Group. Min Xin Insurance has selected treaty-reinsurers with
credit ratings of A- or above from Standard & Poor’s (or
equivalent) as business partners prior to arranging
reinsurance and has regularly monitored their credit ratings.
There were 15 treaty-reinsurers cooperating with Min Xin
Insurance, and their credit ratings were all above A- as at 31
December 2024.

The credit risk of Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro
Credit Company Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”) arises from
the debtor failing or refusing to repay the loans and resulting
in an impairment of the Group’s consolidated assets. Sanyuan
Micro Credit has stopped its business and will continue to
adopt proactive measures to recover its non-performing
loans.

Market Risk

“Market risk” is the risk due to price changes in financial
instruments which affect the value of the Group’s financial
assets and in turn create losses.

The Group’s risk management objective is to increase
shareholders’ value while ensuring that the risks will be
controlled within the Group’s acceptable range. The risk
exposures of the Group in major financial instruments at the
end of 2024 were: Stocks and Capital Security: HK$545 million
(market value), Funds: equivalent to approximately HK$11.2
million (market value), Structured deposits: RMB83 million
(equivalent to HK$88.3 million) (principal).

Besides, some of the investment products are denominated
in Renminbi. The Group may have exchange risk in the
conversion of Renminbi into Hong Kong dollars. After
considering the application of fund, the Group did not have
any significant market risk resulting from the exchange rate
volatility as at 31 December 2024.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS FACED BY THE GROUP
(Continued)

Operational Risk

“Operational risk” is the risk of losses due to improper or
mistake of internal operation, personnel and system, or
external events.

The Group manages and controls the risks through methods
such as effective work division and balancing mechanism,
sort out key business segments and set up formal policies.

Environmental, Social and Governance Risk

The Group consolidates the Group's risk management culture
and strengthens the balance between risk control and
business development by identifying, assessing and
managing the major ESG risks that may be faced in the course
of operations.

The Group reviews and identifies climate-related risks every
year in order to identify the impact of climate risks on related
businesses and formulate countermeasures to improve our
management and control of specific climate risks.

During the reporting year, the Risk Management Department
has conducted the ESG risk assessment. According to the ESG
risk assessment result, ESG risks faced by the Group fell into
“medium” and “low” levels and were Cybersecurity risk,
Corruption and fraud risk and Physical risk and ESG disclosure
requirements.

INSIDE INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

The Group has adopted the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policy” which has set out strict regulations on the scopes of
disclosures such as the definition of inside information, the
requirements for the release of inside information, the roles
and responsibilities of the Board and the senior management
on inside information management, the procedures and
internal control for processing and issuing inside information
as well as public communication. The announcement of the
disclosure of inside information shall be submitted to the
Board or an authorised officer for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s internal controls are designed to improve the
operational efficiency, prevent misuse and unauthorised
processing of assets, maintain proper accounting records to
deliver a true and fair view of the financial statements, and
ensure the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

In accordance with the CG Code D.2, the Board and the Audit
Committee reviewed the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and ESG functions. The senior
management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee that the current risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are adequate and effective.
Based on the review results and the senior management’s
confirmation, the Board and the Audit Committee considered
the Group's risk management and internal control systems
were adequate and effective. Details of which are
summarised below:

For the year under review, the Board reviewed the Group's
risk management framework which contained risk
management objectives, risk appetite framework, risk
monitoring and risk reporting.

The Board was of the view that the risk management and
internal control system has been continuously improved by
the Group. The Group will strive to enhance and standardise
the risk management methods, including the enhancement
of risk appetite system, risk indicators and risk limits, and risk
monitoring system for the Group in the future.

The Group has adopted the Anti-corruption Policy and the
Whistleblowing Policy. The Group will continue to strengthen
the management and implementation of risk management
and internal control system in order to comply with the
provisions in the CG Code and the recommended best
practices.
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SEBHRS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, property
investment and strategic investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 36 and 18 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the revenue and results of the Group by
operating segment during the financial year is set out in Note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 98
to 101.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: final
dividend of 9 HK cents per share totalling HK$53,753,152.68).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
including a fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2024, an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using
financial key performance indicators, a discussion on the
Group's environmental policies and performance, the Group's
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group, and an account of the key
relationships with its stakeholders that have a significant
impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends, are provided in the Five-Year Financial Summary,
Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis,
Corporate Governance Report and Risk Management and
Internal Control Report set out on pages 5 to 24 and pages 35
to 72 respectively of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 35 to
64 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Further discussions on the environmental policies and
performance of the Group, and our relationships with key
stakeholders are contained in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which will
be available at the Company’s website under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reports and the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the same publication date of this
report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and
Vote at the 2025 AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Thursday, 26 June 2025 (the “2025
AGM”), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 20 June 2025 to Thursday, 26 June 2025,
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the right to
attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17th Floor, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 June 2025.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
5to7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the Group are set out in Notes 15
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 272.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 102 and in Note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2024,
calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$420,965,000 (2023: HK$536,955,000).
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DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

The changes of Directors during the year are as follow:

Mr CHEN Yu has resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 19 June 2024.

Mr YANG Jingchao has resigned as a Non-executive Director,
Mr ZHOU Tianxing and Ms YOU Li have been appointed as
Non-executive Directors, with effect from 19 June 2024.

Mr ZHOU Tianxing and Ms YOU Li have obtained a letter of
advice from Deacons, our legal adviser as to Hong Kong Law,
on 7 June 2024, (a) enclosing therewith a memorandum
which gives an overview of the main requirements relating to
a listed issuer and/or its directors; and (b) setting out the
possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving
false information to the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
complying with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules. They have
also obtained details for accessing and viewing a directors
training video prepared by Deacons on 7 June 2024. They
have confirmed to us that they understood their obligations
as a director of a listed issuer.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr WANG Fei, Mr HON Hau Chit
and Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi will retire by rotation at the 2025
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 88 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr ZHOU Tianxing and Ms YOU Li have been
appointed as the Non-executive Directors, both with effect
from 19 June 2024, each of them shall hold office only until
the next annual general meeting of the Company, and shall
then be eligible and offer themselves for re-election at the
2025 AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM has any
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the Company still considers
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in
the Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
of this annual report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
the information of the Directors required to be disclosed
since the publication of 2024 interim report of the Company
up to the date of approval of this annual report is set out
below:

Mr ZHOU Tianxing has been appointed as the vice chairman
of Haixia Capital Management Co., Ltd. with effect from 16
August 2024. He has also been appointed as the executive
director, the legal representative of @24 B EERBR ST
2x 7] (Fujian Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.*) with effect from
25 March 2025.

Ms YOU Li has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee since 27 March 2025.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the directors who have served on the boards of
directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are set out below:

Mr HUANG Wensheng
Mr SU Yuecai

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu
Mr WU Xubin

Mr CHEN Yanxing
Mr YU Xing

Mr SHIUNG An Tai
Mr LAM Chi Sing
Mr QIU Peng Zhong
Mr CHEN Yu ete
Mr GUO Xiang ™Note2)

Notes:

1. Mr CHEN Yu has resigned as a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company with effect from 16 January 2024, 13 May 2024, 19 July 2024
and 25 July 2024, respectively.

2. Mr GUO Xiang has resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 16 January 2024.
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By (BEBENESE) ([(BHERBEK
BIY]) EBXVEETIEME &) MR - BERD
MEHPEEBRIB(GES RBAEKRD)E 352
BAEFHETHELMAARRSHBIRC TR
AZCEMBEITAETETELRRINIRE
SR ([GEESFRND ) BRI ARG KB
Frz s FoRRINT ¢

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Listing Rules were as
follows:

EAERFEBITRE
ZHHABEDL
EERMEE  Approximate percentage
EEHE ERME Number of of the issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company
RARRRERRD 2 TR
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
A (NG $
IP Kai Ming Personal interest 865,800 0.14%
Br EXFrEEEEEIN - 20245 12A318 - Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2024, none of the

ARBEFTRITRAHBEEARNRBREL
I RBOEE (RBCRE LB R H1)%E Xv &
FrigmER) MR - HBERONESFTHEE
ARB(E S R EHRD)E 352K AT HF
B & R AT RC S SR IFCRE ST RI DA E R
DA R EEmSORE  EFHRE
FZEBH18FA T FRNFRIERSF
EAENMARBARBNBSFRETEZS
R o

2R A 2K E AT AR B /B 2~ B A YA o] E T 3R
BERFIEAARBESZABRBARRRIHE
fa] EL AR A B 88 2 B £ 2K 15 25 T BXUAS Al 22 )

1% °

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they did not have any interests
in business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company or an entity connected with a Director had, directly
or indirectly, a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him
in the execution and discharge of his duties or in relation
thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance for its Directors and other
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The terms and
extent of the coverage are reviewed and renewed annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2024, substantial shareholders and other
persons (other than Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follow:

RN
ERITRE
2B
Approximate
percentage of

BFEROHE the issued share
28 &% et Number of capital of the
Name Capacity Notes shares held Company
RARRE BB 242
Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) EREAA 1 144,885,000 24.26%
Beneficial Owner
BEEERAR(ER]D BERBEAANK LR S 1 355,552,883 59.53%
Vigour Fine Company Limited Beneficial Owner and interest
(“Vigour Fine") of Controlled Corporation
BEARBERNEEEAREMEAR RIPEERES 2 355,552,883 59.53%
([ERREEE])
Fujian Investment & Development Interest of Controlled Corporation
Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG")
Haidian-Creation International BB A 3 11,922,000 2.00%
Limited (“Haidian-Creation”) Beneficial Owner
=M EEE(FE)BRLA  ERmfAA 3 2,100,000 0.35%
(IEHBt=E 1)
Bendura Wealth Management Beneficial Owner
(Hong Kong) Limited
(“Bendura Wealth")
EHRITRINER AR RErERR 3 2,100,000 0.35%

([ZH3RT])

Bendura Bank AG (“Bendura Bank”) Interest of Controlled Corporation

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER

(7&) PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)
RN
BRITRAE
2D
Approximate
percentage of
FERGEE the issued share
25 &% ifz3 Number of capital of the
Name Capacity Notes shares held Company
BREFAEEEER LA ERBERANK AR ER 3 90,250,000 15.11%
([EmER )
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Beneficial Owner and interest of
Group Limited (“Citychamp”) Controlled Corporation
HEERRE([EE]) RirEER 4 90,250,000 15.11%
Full Day Limited (“Full Day") Interest of Controlled Corporation
ERERERAT(ERER]) Bafa ARXEEE#ER 4 92,606,000 15.51%
Sincere View International Limited Beneficial Owner and interest of
(“Sincere View") Controlled Corporation
wElRE ([#at]) RIELE R 5 92,606,000 15.51%
HON Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") Interest of Controlled Corporation
MRS (TH% L) ALBe R 5 92,606,000 15.51%
LAM Suk Ying (“Ms Lam”) Interest of Spouse
Hiat - Notes:
1. Samba %58 2K A &) 144,885,000 fx f& (5 H iz - & 1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company were held by Samba. Vigour Fine

= B Samba KRR AR 3R+ 1545 & B Samba AT #
B AR A) 144,885,000 IRk D Mg - BENEE
B RNAR] 210,667,883 IR AR 15 HURERS ©

EERESEERFAEENEBEBITRA -
W% B 7N A 7] 355,552,883 AR A% {7 HIAE S ©

Haidian-Creation B # # A AN 2 7 11,922,000 % fi%
D EYRESS ° Haidian-Creation A 73 3 5 8k 00 2 & Ut
BT T Bk 48 A% A Haidian-Creation FIT
AT 11,922,000 R D HEZ - ST EE
B A N2 F] 2,100,000 f% I 5 MR - BB E
AEMBITHE2ENB AR REMRER S SR
TTH IR AR R - b iRTT R M B SRR A
BB = BT A AN A R] 2,100,000 A% B 15 HOHERS ©
TSR TN E 15 A AN A R) 76,228,000 AR A 15 K4

= e

was the controlling shareholder of Samba and was deemed to be
interested in the 144,885,000 shares of the Company held by Samba.
Vigour Fine also directly held 210,667,883 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine and
was deemed to be interested in the 355,552,883 shares of the
Company.

3. 11,922,000 shares of the Company were directly held by Haidian-
Creation. Haidian-Creation is wholly-owned by Citychamp and
Citychamp was deemed to be interested in the 11,922,000 shares of
the Company held by Haidian-Creation. 2,100,000 shares of the
Company were directly held by Bendura Wealth. Bendura Wealth is
wholly-owned by Bendura Bank and Citychamp was the controlling
shareholder of Bendura Bank. Bendura Bank and Citychamp were
deemed to be interested in the 2,100,000 shares of the Company held
by Bendura Wealth. Citychamp also directly held 76,228,000 shares of
the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes (Continued):

4, Citychamp was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere View and
Full Day and each of Sincere View and Full Day was deemed to be
interested in the 90,250,000 shares of the Company. Sincere View also
directly held 2,356,000 shares of the Company.

5. Mr Hon held the entire issued share capital of Full Day and was the
controlling shareholder of Sincere View, Mr Hon was deemed to be
interested in the 92,606,000 shares of the Company. Ms Lam, the
spouse of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested in the 92,606,000
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2024, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s issued
shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby Vigour Fine agreed to
provide management services to the Company which
included the provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 had
been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant
entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr HUANG Wensheng was deemed to be interested in the
above transaction by virtue of being a director of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined
and the percentage of revenue from rendering of services
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and total revenue
of the Group respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December
2024 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSURANCE
ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is subject to the supervision of
the Insurance Authority and is required to comply with the
relevant provision of the Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) in relation to the amount of gross
premium income limit per annum and the amount of
operating expense payments to specified persons.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 29 July 2024 and 26 September 2024 (the
“Announcement”) and the capitalised terms used herein shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the
Announcement unless otherwise specified.

On 29 July 2024, Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. (“Fujian
Minxin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Partnership Agreement as a Limited Partner with (among
others) REM T EXBREREE TSGR EEBRAER)
(Fujian Local Industrial Equity Investment Funds Partnership
Enterprise (Limited Partnership)*) (“Local Industrial Funds”).
Subsequently on 26 September 2024, Fujian Minxin entered
into the New Partnership Agreement with (among others)
Local Industrial Funds and % & 1% % &= 1% /8 B R (/&8 1)
fRERE & ZPE(BRER) Zjin Mining Chantou Haixia
Qihang (Fuzhou) Equity Investment Partnership Enterprise
(Limited Partnership)*) (the “Partnership”) was established.

Pursuant to the New Partnership Agreement, the total capital
contributed by all Partners to the Partnership shall be
RMB208 million. The capital contribution to be made by
Fujian Minxin is RMB40 million and RMB12 million was
contributed to the Partnership at 31 December 2024.

The investment of the Partnership shall focus on strategic
emerging industries such as new energy, new materials, and
intelligence, and mainly invest in growth-stage or mid-to-
late-stage projects. The duration of the Partnership shall be
six years from The First Completion Date to the date before
the end of the sixth calendar year from the First Completion
Date, which may be extended for two times with the
unanimous consent of all Partners with each extension for
one calendar year. The investment period shall be from the
First Completion Date to the date before the end of the third
calendar year from the First Completion Date.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Local Industrial Funds is owned as to 49.9975% by Fujian
Equity Fund and 0.0025% by Fujian Venture Investment, and
is managed by Fujian Venture Investment. Fujian Equity Fund
and Fujian Venture Investment are subsidiaries of FIDG, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and therefore FIDG,
Fujian Equity Fund, Fujian Venture Investment and Local
Industrial Funds are connected persons of the Company. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Partnership
Agreement and the New Partnership Agreement constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of
the transactions under the Partnership Agreement and the
New Partnership Agreement (the “Transaction”) was more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Transaction was required to
be reported in this annual report. For details of the
Transaction, please refer to the Announcement issued by the
Company.

The Directors confirm that the related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 as disclosed in Notes 24 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the
case may be) under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has, where applicable,
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the significant related party
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024 as disclosed in Notes 34 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
(as the case may be) under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the term loan and revolving loan facilities
(collectively, the “Loan Facilities”) entered into between the
Company and certain banks, among other things, the
Company undertakes to procure that there is no adverse
change on FIDG and FIDG shall beneficially own (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the issued share
capital of the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management control over the
Company during the terms of the Loan Facilities. Breach of
such undertakings will constitute an event of default and all
amounts (including principal and interest) due and owing by
the Company to the banks under the Loan Facilities shall
become immediately due and payable.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 May 2024. As disclosed in the announcement, the
public float of the Company has fallen below the minimum
prescribed percentage of 25% as required under Rule 8.08(1)(a)
of the Listing Rules.

At 31 December 2024 and the date of this annual report, the
aggregate percentage of shareholding interests in the issued
share capital of the Company held by the core connected
persons of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(being FIDG, Mr HON Kwok Lung and Mr IP Kai Ming who is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company) was
approximately 75.18%. Thus, the percentage of shareholding
interests in the issued share capital of the Company held by
public was approximately 24.82% and was below the
minimum prescribed percentage of 25% as required under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

The management of the Company is in the process of
working out with relevant parties to identify feasible
measures to restore the public float. Further announcement
will be made by the Company on the restoration of public
float as and when appropriate.
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DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
and community purposes amounted to approximately
HK$5,000 (2023: HK$15,000).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Fei
Chairman

HONG KONG, 27 March 2025
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98
to 271, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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FAREtEIR
The Key Audit Matter

HBENARBENETRE

Accounting for interest in an associate

EEEMFEPIERRT REME QT (5l
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The Group’s approximately 8.689% interest in
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “XIB
Group”) is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity
method.

BE_ZT-_WNF+_A=+t—BHIFE &
SEELHEREECRERAMNRBNBE
13,0008 7T : EEENEREEZERNERR
BERAEE 632,908 T - FlBEAEE
ZE_E_NEEESEBERREMG GO
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The Group's share of the profit after taxation
from XIB Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 was approximately
HK$130.00 million and the carrying value of
the Group’s interest in XIB Group was
approximately HK$6,329.08 million. This
represented approximately 148.23% of the
Group's profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and approximately
71.0% of the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2024.

EREENVBESNFBERENGEEVBR
xR 18 o

Details of the financial information of XIB Group
are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

B &t 2 R R B R B et F R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN EREEN RN S ZENETIEFBREN
TEIE

Our audit procedures in relation to the accounting for the
interest in XIB Group included the following:

. THREEHEREBEESABRSEZERNIRAR
5 IRFF MBS AR RE B
understanding the Group’'s established policy,
procedures and controls over equity method of
accounting for the Group’s interest in XIB Group;

B

. HEREEMARBNRBRAMBABRED BETT
HEITHZ

B oZBREBREELIHEBANERE
8 UHERNTSEANSHER -

verifying journal entries for equity pick up and
adjustment or reclassification in respect of the interest
in XIB Group against relevant underlying
documentation to ensure compliance with relevant
accounting standard.

. BEEREENMBEL  SHMFEEEEREFEE
EMESERRNFENEIEEN ;
recalculating the Group’s share of net assets and the
Group’s share of profit for the year based on the
financial information of XIB Group;
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AR EtEIA
The Key Audit Matter
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Accounting for interest in an associate
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We identified the accounting for the interest in
XIB Group as a key audit matter because of its
material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements and the complexity and
management judgement applied in the
preparation of the financial information of XIB
Group, in accordance with the accounting
policies aligned with that of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, which
increases the risk of material misstatement in
XIB Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The critical accounting estimates and
judgements are applied by XIB Group to
determine the valuation of level 3 financial
instruments, impairment of loans and
advances, and impairment on goodwill, which
are inherently subjective given the lack of
market-based data and significant estimation
uncertainty and thus increases the risk of error
or potential management bias.

EREEGRS M mE DO EM SRR - &R
pBEBEREREMEEEEEREMBERE
EFXEBANTE -

Any misstatement in XIB Group’ s consolidated
financial statements could have a consequential
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements through the equity method
of accounting.

EREEOBER S EETMAE O FBER
e M BmRAE3T -

Details of the critical accounting estimates
and judgement of XIB Group are set out in
note 3.7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Yo = R S B A0 AZ B ([ AR R EB D AZ BREM ) 45 AN Py 3

gﬁ’ﬂ%%éﬂﬁ%l HEREENVBERNITEE
VEET

instructing the auditor of XIB Group (“the component

auditor”) to perform audit procedures of the financial

information of XIB Group in accordance with the

Group Audit Instructions issued by us;

BARR A D R BIADE TR AT (A2 7 - ARETE B IR &
BB EFERN ERERE R, REETRERE
REE EAN R G, REEKE D%
e R Z SRR EL &

involving the component auditor in the assessment
process to identify significant risks of material
misstatement of the financial information of XIB Group,
including but not limited to the critical accounting
estimates and judgments applied by XIB Group, and
discussing with the component auditor its responses to
address such risks; and

BAARC R D AR BUAD R s LB AT E IR AN - WRAE
BIAEA B D 2 BB TAEE AR - AT ABRAR =5t B I
%’jﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ%é\ﬁﬂ%i&%?&ﬁE’U%%%@}EEW’\%
=
discussing with the component auditor its findings
and conclusions with regard to its audit and evaluating
the sufficiency and appropriateness of the audit
evidence for purpose of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements by reviewing the component
auditor’s working papers.
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REEHNWERLEZEEENTE
Valuation of liability for incurred claims
for insurance contracts issued
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REZTHENERABEAGE 28R
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
liability for incurred claims for insurance
contracts issued (“LIC") under premium
allocation approach (“PAA”) of HK$167,708,000,
representing more than 15% of the Group's
total liability.

HETTRIEARE MRS OHEEHILICES
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The process of estimating LIC of groups of
insurance contracts with appropriate level of
aggregation requires management to select
appropriate actuarial valuation models and
make significant assumptions including
expected loss ratios, future claim development
pattern, discount rates, as well as risk
adjustment for non-financial risk to account
for the uncertainties of these assumptions.
These methods, models and assumptions
involving a high degree of management’s
estimates and judgments, which could make a
significant impact on the valuation of LIC.

ER Eloi  BHAEEHEEEAENG
B RMARESEE -

Based on the analysis above, we have
identified the valuation of LIC as a key audit
matter.

EER4ABEAENTENER G HET A
Eren e 5 AR BB DRI NERE MR R T
o 34,36K21°

Details of the critical accounting estimates
and judgement of valuation of LIC and
movement of LIC during the year are set out
in notes 3.4, 3.6 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BPENRREEVNEHERER DN EMRIMAETIE
XBEATAR

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of LIC
included the following:

.

T BREERARBORENREEANEESE
RERENRATEZEHES

understanding the Group’s processes and the relevant
controls of the valuation of LIC under PAA;

FHE AR BB AR HARERENES
evaluating and testing the relevant controls over the
valuation of LIC;

BN ABBEERF RS NNELIZENEE
RE R A

involving our internal actuarial specialists to evaluate
the appropriateness of the level of aggregation of
insurance contracts and the appropriateness of
actuarial valuation models;

BN ABBEERFEEC ELERER BN ETR
FANEABRENBEMENSGEN  BFEERIBX
T RRRBEREN - FrIRRMIEMBRERER
AR

involving our internal actuarial specialists to assess the
appropriateness and reasonableness of the significant
assumptions used in the valuation of the LIC including
expected loss ratio, future claims development
pattern, discount rates and risk adjustment for non-
financial risk;

ZOMABBEREBBHRBRENNERLERER
EEITBILGE

involving our internal actuarial specialists to evaluate
the calculation results through developing an
independent estimate;

RIS ERE P e 2R AR H) T B IE AR
testing the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying data used in the actuarial valuation models;
and

FHEEB SRR A& (HKICPA) B4 i) BB B i i
ZRFE175 [Riga R | HENKENEE LT D
:|J-Il— s

assessing the appropriateness and adequacy of
relevant disclosures in the context of HKFRS 17
“Insurance Contracts” issued by the HKICPA.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tong, Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ELFE2024F 1231 HIFF/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
TR BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
REEUA Insurance revenue 6 187,383 191,128
BREBRNEFEFE Interest income calculated using
EORAIPSRE PN the effective interest method 13,023 10,847
"EYE Rental income from
ppiEEON investment properties 7,970 8,132
BRAFEGFAEMEEIE  Dividend income from
e R & E financial assets at fair value through
SN ON other comprehensive income 16,357 2,662
BRAFEGFAEMEMEIE  Distribution income from
HEREE financial assets at fair value through
S EA other comprehensive income 1,872 1,880
N R Total revenues 226,605 214,649
H YA Other income 7 36,922 34,239
EE LN Operating income 263,527 248,888
HibEE — F5 Other losses - net 8 (29,481) (6,461)
Rk Hﬁi‘x%)ﬂ Insurance service expenses 6 (148,500) (163,007)
T—rﬁﬁ@ﬁ ROk Net expenses from reinsurance
\FH@%E contracts held 6 (17,461) (16,606)
?*E’ﬂ% (SR OlE0) Finance expenses from
B 7 %ﬂ% insurance contracts issued (4,681) (5,565)
T—rﬁﬁﬁ? RE LI Finance income from
B TS U reinsurance contracts held 531 261
Zfﬂfﬁﬁ'} (Charge for)/write back of impairment
%)E'E K % e WURI) B loss on credit-impaired loans to
E’J/JEKT E518 customers and
(¥BR),#EM@ interest receivable 23 (1,812) 2,845
Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ$uf§_ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬂ&&§ Impairment loss on debt investments
BEEE at amortised cost 20 (167) (150)
THRER Administrative expenses (53,730) (56,566)
el Operating profit 9 8,226 3,639
BhE KA Finance costs 10 (44,165) (41,366)
AN e Share of results of associates 130,804 67,488
BRBR Al % A Profit before taxation 94,865 29,761
IR (1), /B Income tax (expense)/credit 12 (7,169) 9,648
REERR Profit for the year 87,696 39,409
R E Dividend
RNEAAR B Final dividend 13 - 53,753
L JEN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
ERK#E Basic and diluted 14 14.68 6.60
BRERE Dividend per share
REARR B Final dividend - 9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B FE2024F 1231 HIFFE/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2024
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
REE T Profit for the year 87,696 39,409
Hi 2wk Other comprehensive income
FTEEFIBEERER Items that will not be reclassified to
HIEE: income statement:
WMATER ARMEEWE  Equity investments at fair value through
E’\]Hﬁ%&fﬁ other comprehensive income
KR IIERZ A A FE Movement in fair value reserve
s (T A fE3R) (non-recycling), net of tax
2 (58,865) (26,621)
FEAG B 2 N BIAY Share of other comprehensive income
Hip 2wl of associates 1,251 (4,156)
(57,614) (30,777)
HETHEEHIEZEIERER  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
WIER : to income statement:
Tﬁ@i@ﬁ\)\ﬁﬁﬂi\ﬁﬂﬁé Debt investments at fair value through other
E’ﬂﬁ%ﬁx, g comprehensive income
— R E RN RS Released on dilution of interest in an
2 [l associate = 2,962
SNESTHFEF D Exchange translation reserve
Tﬁ‘k EEINIENEINE: Exchange differences arising on translation
NAMNMERRAESE of the financial statements of foreign
E’]ER%%E ‘ subsidiaries and associates (225,668) (225,739)
—REE QAR EEE Released on dilution of interest in an
Bl associate = 4,545
(225,668) (221,194)
FEARE & AR E 2 H Share of other comprehensive income
g of associates 6,820 89,332
(218,848) (128,900)
BNBRHRBRNRNFE Other comprehensive income for the year,
Hib 2 W= net of tax (276,462) (159,677)
AEEZEWNHERE Total comprehensive income for the year (188,766) (120,268)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024F 1231 H#E  Asat 31 December 2024

100

2024 2023
TR BT T BT T
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
EE Assets
/E Y Property, plant and equipment 15 13,110 14,109
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 13,511 13,099
KEME Investment properties 17 165,348 172,329
/NG Associates 18 6,360,035 6,442,096
BAFERTA Financial assets at fair value
Hiph 2wk through other
M REE comprehensive income 19 544,501 630,093
TRESEK AT 2 Debt investments at
WEBKRE amortised cost 20 256,802 156,174
B R SR Pledged and restricted
HI7E BATF K term deposits 25 337,917 354,542
REBEHEE Insurance contract assets 21 3,447 1,461
BRBREYVEE Reinsurance contract assets 22 17,757 15,019
EEERED Credit-impaired loans to
EFRFERK customers and interest
JE R S, receivable 23 11,257 15,102
H i W AR K Other debtors, prepayments
BRRRZS and deposits 33,057 5,573
AU B AN B TR Current income tax recoverable 30 -
BAFERBER Financial assets at fair value
PSR S RLE E through profit or loss 24 112,592 626,443
TEHATF K Term deposits 25 471,378 323,270
RekREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 574,329 415,415
mEE Total assets 8,915,071 9,184,725
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20241231 H#E  Asat 31 December 2024
2024 2023
TR BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
S Equity
A&7 Share capital 30(a) 1,715,377 1,715,377
HFEES Other reserves 30(b) 1,318,872 1,508,881
REBEF Retained profits 4,783,898 4,845,192
AATRREMN Total equity attributable to
RSB shareholders of the Company 7,818,147 8,069,450
=N Liabilities
RpE4aE Insurance contract liabilities 21 169,086 146,260
BREReEE Reinsurance contract liabilities 22 4,790 8,498
B MRS R ESTE R Other creditors and accruals 37,493 36,930
HEAE Lease liabilities 26 2,163 586
IRITIEK Bank borrowings 27 758,497 855,570
PRI R E K Loan from the controlling shareholder 28 78,000 -
JE AN HARE IR Current income tax payable 4,541 4,582
RIEFTSHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 29 42,354 62,849
weE Total liabilities 1,096,924 1,115,275
EEREE Equity and liabilities 8,915,071 9,184,725
F3k WANG Fei
2 Director
B HUANG Wensheng
2 Director
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FORRBERE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ELFE2024F 1231 HIFF/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2024

AR
Other reserves
A AYE  HERE At
ke fEe EMREE  JERE fifEe
R g g (IFER) (FTER)  Leasehold e ] RFESR
e fEe fEe BES  Fairvalue Fairvalue  buildings  Exchange Total  REEA ag
Share  Statutory General Capital reserve reserve  revaluation translation other Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve  (recycling)  (non-recycling) reserve reserve reserves profits equity
BY¥fn  B¥Tn EBRTn EBRTr ERTR B¥fn  BE¥Tn BRTn BRTr BRFn BER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H0BE1A18 At 1 January 2023 17153717 1,104,063 216,601 299,430 (158,635) 373,176 5207 (326,568) 1513274 5032738 8,261,389
TERER Profitfor the year - - - 39409 39409
Efp2@da Other comprehensive income - - - - 79,142 (30777) - (004)  (159677) (159677)
(&) Dividend - - - - - - (n,67) (n,67)
NG Release on dilution of interest
HEREED inan associate - (20310) (3958) (5464) - (249) - - (29.981) 29981 -
B Transfers - 167322 17943 - - - - - 185,265 (185,265) -
R2023E12831R At 31 December 2023 17153717 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (79493) 342,150 5207 (534610) 1,508,881 4845192 8,069,450
EFT Representing:
W3ERERS 2023 proposed dividend - 53,753 53753
Afh Others 17153717 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (79493) 342,150 5207 (534610) 1,508,881 4791439 8,015,697
R2023%512A31R At 31 December 2023 17153717 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (79493) 342,150 5207 (534610) 1,508,881 4845192 8,069,450
H204E1A18 At 1 January 2024 11153717 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (79,493) 342,150 5207 (534,610) 1,508,881 4,845,192 8,069,450
TERER Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 87,696 87,696
Ep2ENE Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,305) (57,614) - (12583)  (276462) - (276462)
HERATETA Disposal of equity investments at
Eth2ElEe fair value through other
Mgk comprehensive income - - - - - (1,756) - - (1,756) 1,756 -
ElE—FEE Share of movement in capital
ErEESEY reserve of an associate - - - (8,784) - - - - (8,784) - (8,784)
R Dividend - - - - - - - = = (53,753) (53,753)
Bt Transfers - 322,969 (225,976) - - - - - 96,993 (96,993) -
R2024 128318 At 31 December 2024 1,115,377 1,574,044 4,610 285,182 (85,798) 282,780 5207 (747,153) 1,318,872 4,783,898 7,818,147
ST - Representing:
Hf Others 1,715,371 1,574,044 4,610 285,182 (85,798) 282,780 5207 (747153) 1,318,872 4,783,898 7,818,147
H2024 128318 At 31 December 2024 1,115,377 1,574,044 4,610 285,182 (85,798) 282,780 5,207 (747,153) 1,318,872 4,783,898 7,818,147
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mOIRENER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B FE2024F 1231 HIFFE/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2024
2024 2023
TR BT T BT T
Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
KETEHRES GRE),FHA  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
FEE operations 33(a) (5,854) 18,025
B U F 8 Interest received 35,900 20,437
EARFE Interest paid (44,268) (39,837)
EAfHIA Tax paid (10,488) (14,622)
REEKTEBRSE Net cash outflow from
piif ep=a: L] operating activities (24,710) (15,997)
REEE Investing activities
BEREEEERERT Placement of term deposits pursuant
i 75 7 & 5E BATF 3R to insurance regulatory requirements (115,778) (129,018)
BERREEERESRT Withdrawal of term deposits pursuant
2 BX &Y 5 BR1F 3K to insurance regulatory requirements 131,778 129,018
EREERHNTHFER Placement of pledged term deposits (15,000) (15,000)
R EE A EBFR Withdrawal of pledged term deposits 15,000 15,000
FHREISA BB =EA Placement of term deposits with
B E HiFE X original maturity over three months (376,072) (298,153)
REREHABA=1EA Withdrawal of term deposits with
#5E BATF K original maturity over three months 228,057 418,446
BRI ARG ER Purchase of debt investments at
BEBRE amortised cost (112,782) (154,150)
HEREHEKATTER Disposal of debt investments at
BRI E amortised cost 8,325 1,972
BAR AT EFTAEM Purchase of financial assets at fair value
PHWENCREE through other comprehensive income (7,202) (33,538)
HEEAFETAEM Disposal of financial assets at fair value
FHWNENEREE through other comprehensive income 17,696 -
BARATES BB Purchase of financial assets
TR R EE at fair value through profit or loss (1,042,716) (2,183,779)
b,/ HERATEER Redemption/disposal of financial assets
B&RIRNERERE at fair value through profit or loss 1,535,662 2,294,670
BAYZE - WS RERE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (1,289) (1,253)
S NEI] ¥ Dividends received from associates = 64,644
KEEBHEERAFE Net cash inflow from investing activities 265,679 108,859
RMETEBARE Net cash inflow before
RAFEEE financing activities 240,969 92,862
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mOIRENER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ELFE2024F 1231 HIFF/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
TR HBMEF T BT T
Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
LA SEE Financing activities
IS IERR R E R Loan obtained from the controlling
shareholder 33(b) 78,000 -
BSIRITE Bank loans obtained 33(b) 960,210 1,606,200
ERBITER Bank loans repaid 33(b) (1,057,300) (1,443,241)
ST E A AR AR Other borrowing costs paid 33(b) (457) (690)
K2R B Dividend paid 33(b) (53,753) (71,671)
HENFK Lease payments 33(b) (849) (247)
BMETFEHRE GRH),RA  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
HEE financing activities (74,149) 90,351
ReRkBAELEEY Increase in cash and cash
3 equivalents 166,820 183,213
1B 1BEFH Cash and cash equivalents
HeRESEEY at 1 January 415,415 236,256
EXSHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes (7,906) (4,054)
12A31 B&EN Cash and cash equivalents
RERBREZEY at 31 December 25 574,329 415,415
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— &R

MESKEARAR (ARAE]) REHE
RE(HEREIAEE]) TEXES
BRY R MERENARKE

KRB AE—REESBIMHINBER R
7] e AN EEMb U BB B IRAIRE
SHMEENE71E - RAFRMNKRNDER
BEMARZBRAR ([BRAT]) ER
Ee

EERR/ARANERERARRER
BRAR(TEED (—REFBZEMK
VWBRRARE)  MEKEBRRBRE
EERERBREEBEREMERR ([BE
KREEHE]) (—HKEPEARKMBIK
MEVAT]) e

RERE B HRRxBE 1K 20259 3 A 27 H
EEESETE -

mol iR OMBRRBEREA
SHBERER

MRl N A B MR R EANGF R
RENTX - BRBHAN - LEFHE
EFMERNMEFENERER -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in financial services,
insurance, property investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton
Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong. The Company is listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Directors consider that Vigour Fine Company
Limited (“Vigour Fine”), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong, is the immediate holding
company of the Company and Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG"), a company
established in the People’s Republic of China, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board on 27 March 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bl iR SIS IRREEREKXN
SHBERER (18)

2.1 Wbl 2%
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A ERE((RE))) RBEERAR
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622 %) ([KRBEAI)]) Y10 E AR H) o
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HItBEREFETZEMENRER
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BRI A(EBBRARXZAAR AR
EHx LEmRAD (KEMRAD]) #9EA
BER RS

RILEFEEMBRERE - ARAERS
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RSEERAFELENSHER -

BRAFEFAEMCEZEAKGEHNERE
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ERRE = KAE RG]

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have been aligned with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The Directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, investment properties, insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for the
leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with the HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SHBERER (18)
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(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standards and amendments
to standards

The Group has adopted the following amendments to
standards issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-Current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

- Amendments to Non-Current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants

Supplier Finance
Arrangements

- Amendments to
HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback

None of the adoption has had a material effect on how
the Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standards and amendments
to standards (Continued)

Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the following
new standards and amendments to standards which are
not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31
December 2024 and which have not been early adopted
in these consolidated financial statements:

- Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability'
HKAS 21

- Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or

Joint Venture*

- Amendments to Amendments to the
HKFRS 9 and Classification and
HKFRS 7 Measurement of

Financial Instruments?

- Amendments to Contracts Referencing
HKFRS 9 and Nature-dependent
HKFRS 7 Electricity?
- HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements?

- HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures?

- Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 112

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

S W N =

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

109



110

RO RIS IR E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standards and amendments
to standards (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements aims to give users of financial statements
more transparent and comparable information about an
entity’s financial performance. It will replace HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements but carries over
many requirements from this HKAS unchanged. In
addition, there are three sets of new requirements
relating to the structure of the income statement,
management-defined performance measures and the
aggregation and disaggregation of financial
information.

While HKFRS 18 will not change recognition criteria or
measurement bases, it may have an impact on
presenting information in the financial statements, in
particular the income statement. The Group is currently
assessing the impact before developing a more detailed
implementation plan.

The application of other new standards and amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates
made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it has power over the investee, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investments are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the investments. The
cost of the investments include purchase price, other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investments, and any direct investment into the
associates that forms part of the Group's equity
investments. The investments are adjusted for the post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investees’ net assets including profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and any impairment losses
relating to the investment. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The accounting policies of the investees have been
aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(Note 2.8). In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that investee are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

When the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
but significant influence is retained, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the interest reduced in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the
consolidated income statement. In addition, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)). The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition
date.

If, after reassessment, (ii) is greater than (i), then this
excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.9(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of that asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net sale proceeds with the carrying
amount and is recognised in the income statement on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold land and Over the unexpired term of
land use rights held the lease
for own use

Buildings held for Over the shorter of the
own use unexpired term of the lease
and 30 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years to 10 years
office equipment

Computer equipment 2 years to 5 years
and software

Motor vehicles 4 years to 5 years
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9(b)).

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, and are
not occupied by the companies within the Group.

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of that asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other losses — net”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

(a) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not to
separate non-lease components and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. For the
Group, the low-value assets are typically office
equipment. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

- payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or a rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or a lease contract is modified and
the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease according to the lease modifications policy. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use asset also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Notes
2.5 and 2.9(b)), except for the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are carried
at fair value in accordance with Note 2.6.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities as a separate line item in the statement of
financial position. The current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting date.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

- the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)
(a) As alessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liability by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

(b) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note
2.16(b).

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modifications

Changes in consideration of lease contracts that were
not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)
(b) As alessor (Continued)

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

For rent concession under which the Group legally
releases the lessee from its obligation to make
specifically identified lease payments, of which some of
these lease payments are contractually due but not paid
and some of them are not yet contractually due, the
Group accounts for the portions which have been
recognised as operating lease receivables (i.e. the lease
payments which are contractually due but not paid) by
applying the expected credit loss and derecognition
requirements under HKFRS 9 and applies lease
modification requirements for the forgiven lease
payments that the Group has not recognised (i.e. the
lease payments which are not yet contractually due) at
the effective date of modification.

Sublease

If the Group is an intermediate lessor, the Group
accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two
separate contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance
lease or an operating lease based on the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, rather than the
underlying asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments

(a) Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets (including regular-way purchases
and sales of financial assets) and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(b) Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at (i) amortised cost, (ii) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or (iii) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”").

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day
of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as
FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI as measured at FVPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

li)

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the
business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Group’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVPL.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(i) Assessment whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for
the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate,
including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

= features that modify consideration of the time

value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

liii] Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVPL: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the
income statement includes any interest earned on the
financial asset at FVPL and is included in the “Other
losses — Net”. The net gain or loss recognised excludes
the dividend income which is included in other income.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends and
distributions are recognised as dividend income and
distribution income from financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends and
distribution is established, unless the dividend and
distribution clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(iv] Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. All financial liabilities of the
Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Derecognition
(il  Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control
of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)

[i]  Financial assets [Continued)

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by
the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is
created or retained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset (other than FVOCI),
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
derecognised (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of equity investment
securities designated as measured at FVOCI is not
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities, and will be transferred to retained profits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)
(i)  Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit
or loss.

(d) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as “active” if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received. If the Group determines that the fair
value on initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique for which any
unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in
relation to the measurement, then the financial
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to
defer the difference between the fair value on initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no
later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short
positions at an ask price.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature is not less than the amount payable on demand,
discounted from the first date on which the amount
could be required to be paid.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of that date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment
(a) Non-derivative financial assets

(i]  Financial instruments

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) model on financial assets
(including loan to an associate, debt investments at
amortised cost, credit-impaired loans to customers and
interest receivable, other debtors and deposits,
dividend receivable and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECLs represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECLs
represents the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowances equal to
12-month ECLs, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECLs. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECLs should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risks of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status, credit
risk ratings and collateral types.



RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WA GOUBFREXBEREX
(=] D+Ek%i§\+‘l (ma)

2.9 WiE (&)
(a) FTEERMEE (1)
lii] EERRBZSIEN (&

nemEEDRBAI0KR  NEBRKRRK
ZEREEMNEERREBELN - B
3%%EHAEE‘I;E/%*J{E%EH'I%M@E
priafl

liii) ERIBIE

AEERBTINBATEREER
EH

- TERDAEEEZERELITESOM
SREMm(WFH) BT
fERABERAAEETBEEL
EEEME =

- SHREEAHEAKX  BRIEXR
EEALETEANBATE BE
B AT AEE o

livl FRHiiEE#R51E

BHMEEBENAERROME ([2Y
BE]) ENBRX(EHEKX] (A
REFEENONBRBE) MEHRRR
B(EORRRE]) MK - ZOBMER
ME BRI EERE L& R AR
HEH - BREEEHBEMNGETRRT )
FEEBREEONRR SEERTEER
MR IER R -

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

[ii]  Significant increase in credit risk [Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

(iii] Definition of default

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

liv] Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD")
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default (“EAD"). The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECLs reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

[ivl Measurement of ECLs [Continued)

Generally, the ECLs are the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial assets’ credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECLs amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.

[v] Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

[v] Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial restructuring; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(vi] Basis of calculation of interest income on
credit-impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2.16(a) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the financial asset.

(vii] Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the
statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets except for debt investments at
amortised cost, and loans to customers and interest
receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)
(viii) Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition and any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in the income statement.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is
impaired. Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
have not yet been available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10lnsurance contracts

(a) Definitions and classifications

Products sold by the Group are classified as insurance
contracts when the Group accepts significant insurance
risk from a policyholder by agreeing to compensate the
policyholder if a specified uncertain future event
adversely affects the policyholder.

This assessment is made on a contract-by-contract basis
at the contract issue date. In making this assessment,
the Group considers all its substantive rights and
obligations, whether they arise from contract, law or
regulation.

The Group determines whether a contract contains
significant insurance risk by assessing if an insured
event could cause the Group to pay to the policyholder
additional amounts that are significant in any single
scenario and only if there is a scenario with commercial
substance in which the issuer has a possibility of a loss
on a present value basis upon occurrence of the insured
event, regardless of whether the insured event is
extremely unlikely.

The Group also issues reinsurance contracts in the
normal course of business to compensate other entities
for claims arising from one or more insurance contracts
issued by those entities.

For reinsurance contracts held even if a reinsurance
contract does not expose the issuer to the possibility of
a significant loss, the contract is deemed to transfer
significant insurance risk if it transfers to the reinsurer
substantially all the insurance risk relating to the
reinsured portions of the underlying insurance
contracts.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(b) Level of aggregation

Insurance contracts are aggregated into groups of
contracts for measurement purposes. Groups of
contracts are determined by identifying portfolios of
insurance contracts, each comprising contracts subject
to similar risks and managed together, and dividing
each portfolio into annual cohorts and each annual
cohort into three groups based on the profitability of
contracts:

- any contracts that are onerous on initial
recognition;

- any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no
significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently; and

any remaining contracts in the portfolio.

The Group divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts
held applying the same principles above, except that
the references to onerous contracts shall be replaced
with a reference to contracts on which there is a net
gain on initial recognition.

When the contract is recognised, it is added to an
existing group of contracts or, if the contract does not
qualify for inclusion in an existing group, it forms a new
group to which future contracts are added. Groups of
contracts are established on initial recognition and their
composition is not revised once all contracts have been
added to the group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)
(c) Recognition

The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts
issued from the earliest of the following dates:

- the beginning of the coverage period of the group
of contracts;

- the date when the first payment from a policyholder
in the group becomes due (in the absence of a
contractual due date, this is deemed to be when
the first payment is received);

- the date when a group of contracts becomes
onerous.

A group of reinsurance contracts held is recognised on
the following dates:

- reinsurance contracts held that provide proportionate
coverage: generally later of the beginning of the
coverage period of the group of reinsurance
contracts held, or the date on which any
underlying insurance contract is initially
recognised;

- other reinsurance contracts held: the beginning of
the coverage period of the group of reinsurance
contracts held.

However, if the Group recognises an onerous group of
underlying insurance contracts on an earlier date and
the related reinsurance contract held was entered into
on or before that earlier date, then the group of
reinsurance contracts held is recognised on that earlier
date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Contract boundaries

The measurement of a group of contracts includes all of
the future cash flows within the boundary of each
contract in the group.

Cash flows are within the boundary of a contract if they
arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist
during the reporting period under which the Group can
compel the policyholder to pay premiums or has a
substantive obligation to provide insurance contract
services.

A substantive obligation to provide insurance contract
services ends when:

- the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the particular policyholder and can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects those
reassessed risks; or

- the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the portfolio that contains the contract
and can set a price or level of benefits that fully
reflects the risks of that portfolio; and the pricing
of the premiums for coverage up to the
reassessment date does not take into account risks
that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

The contract boundary is reassessed at each reporting
date to include the effect of changes in circumstances
on the Group'’s substantive rights and obligations and,
therefore, may change over time.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Measurement

The Group generally uses the premium allocation
approach (“PAA”") to simplify the measurement of
groups of contracts where the coverage period of each
contract in the group of contracts is one year or less.
The Group also uses PAA for measuring groups of
insurance contract issued and groups of reinsurance
contract held with coverage periods of greater than one
year when there is no material difference in the carrying
amount of the liability for remaining coverage (“LRC") at
each reporting date under PAA and the general
measurement model (“GMM”) for a particular group of
contracts.

On initial recognition of each group of contracts, the
carrying amount of the LRC is measured at the
premiums received on initial recognition minus any
insurance acquisition cash flows allocated to the group
at that date and adjusted for amounts arising from the
derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously
recognised for cash flows related to the group.
Insurance acquisition cash flows will be amortised over
the contract’s coverage period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e} Measurement (Continued)

Subsequently, the carrying amount of the LRC is
increased by any premiums received and any
amortisation of the insurance acquisition cash flows,
and decreased by insurance acquisition cash flows paid,
the amount recognised as insurance revenue for
coverage provided and any investment component paid
or transferred to the liability for incurred claims (“LIC").
On initial recognition of each group of contracts, the
Group expects that the time gap between providing
each part of the coverage and the related premium due
date is not significant. Accordingly, the Group has
chosen not to adjust the LRC to reflect the time value of
money and the effect of financial risk.

If at any time during the coverage period, facts and
circumstances indicate that a group of contracts is
onerous, then the Group recognises a loss in profit or
loss and increases the LRC to the extent that the current
estimates of the fulfilment cash flows that relate to
remaining coverage (including the risk adjustment for
non-financial risk) exceed the carrying amount of the
LRC as loss component. In subsequent periods, unless
facts and circumstances indicate that the group of
contracts is no longer onerous, the loss component is
remeasured at each reporting date as the difference
between the current estimates of the fulfilment cash
flows that relate to remaining coverage (including the
risk adjustment for non-financial risk) and the carrying
amount of the LRC without loss component.

Accordingly, by the end of the coverage period of the
group of contracts the loss component will be zero.

The Group recognises the LIC of a group of insurance
contracts for the amount of the fulfilment cash flows
relating to incurred claims. Related future cash flows are
adjusted for the time value of money, since the claims
of the insurance contracts issued by the Group and
measured under the PAA typically have a settlement
period of over one year.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Measurement (Continued)

The Group applies the same accounting principles to
measure a group of insurance contracts or reinsurance
contracts held under the PAA.

The Group calculates the loss-recovery component by
multiplying the loss recognised on the underlying
insurance contracts and the percentage of claims on the
underlying insurance contracts the Group expects to
recover from the group of reinsurance contracts held.
The Group uses a systematic and rational method to
determine the portion of losses recognised on the
group to insurance contracts covered by the group of
reinsurance contracts held where some contracts in the
underlying group are not covered by the group of
reinsurance contracts held. The loss-recovery
component adjusts the carrying amount of the asset for
remaining coverage. The Group subsequently reduces
the loss-recovery component to zero in line with
reductions in the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts in order to reflect that the loss-
recovery component shall not exceed the portion of the
carrying amount of the loss component of the onerous
group of underlying insurance contracts that the entity
expects to recover from the group of reinsurance
contracts held.

The Group includes in the estimates of the present
value of expected future cash flows for a group of
reinsurance contracts held the effect of any risk of non-
performance by the reinsurers, including the effects of
any collateral and losses from disputes. The effect of
non-performance risk of the reinsurers will be assessed
at each reporting date and will be recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(f) Modification and derecognition

The Group derecognises the original contract and
recognises the modified contract as a new contract, if
the terms of insurance contracts are modified and the
following conditions are met:

(i) If the modified terms were included at contract
inception and the Group would have concluded
that the modified contract:

is outside of the scope of HKFRS 17;

- results in a different insurance contract due
to separating components from the host
contract;

- results in a substantially different contract
boundary;

- would be included in a different group of
contracts.

(i)  The original contract was accounted for applying
the PAA, but the modified contract no longer
meets the PAA eligibility criteria for that approach.

If the contract modification meets any of the conditions,
the Group performs all assessments applicable at initial
recognition, derecognises the original contract and
recognises the new modified contract as if it was
entered for the first time.

If the contract modification does not meet any of the
conditions, the Group treats the effect of the
modification as changes in the estimates of fulfilment
cash flows within the context of the simplifications
allowed by the PAA. For insurance contracts accounted
for applying the PAA, the Group adjusts insurance
revenue prospectively from the time of the contract
modification.



RO RIS IR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RHGOMBHMEAEENEA 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

S BREN (£8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10RREE (58) 2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(f) (AR IEER (F8) (f) Modification and derecognition (Continued)

RigEHE TINER TR IEH#R An insurance contract is derecognised when it is:

- RBRIE(AMRBRENFRENEBLE - extinguished (that is, when the obligation
Bk ARBR S EUH) ¢ 3k specified in the insurance contract expires or is

discharged or cancelled); or

- HEFEREANE LI D E LR - change in the measurement model or the
REBSMKAENERERER N applicable standard for measuring a component of
BEEHNEHNEERTREG A the contract, substantially changes the contract
Al o boundary, or requires the modified contract to be

included in a different group.

(g) BURAIRE (g) Presentation and disclosure

REBUEFBMRARPDRINRTIER The Group has presented separately, in the statement of

BENDEERBRENES  1EREAE financial position, the carrying amount of portfolios of

HEEHRRAENES  EEEEND insurance contracts issued that are assets, portfolios of

REBRBAVEEURIEABEND insurance contracts issued that are liabilities, portfolios

REBRRAYVESNREE - of reinsurance contracts held that are assets and
portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are
liabilities.
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(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(g) Presentation and disclosure (Continued)
(i)  Insurance revenue

When applying the PAA, the Group recognises insurance
revenue for the period based on the passage of time by
allocating expected premium receipts including
premium experience adjustments to each period of
service. However, when the expected pattern of release
from risk during the coverage period differs significantly
from the passage of time, the premium receipts are
allocated based on the expected pattern of incurred
insurance service expenses.

(ii)  Insurance service expenses

Insurance service expenses arising from a group of
insurance contracts issued comprises:

- changes in the LIC related to claims and expenses
incurred in the period;

- changes in the LIC related to claims and expenses
incurred in prior periods (related to past service);
- other directly attributable insurance service

expenses incurred in the period;

- loss component of onerous groups of contracts
initially recognised in the period;

- changes in loss component in subsequent
measurement of the LRC; and

- amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10Insurance contracts (Continued)

(g) Presentation and disclosure (Continued)

(iii) Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts
held

Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held are
split into the following two amounts:

- amount recovered from reinsurers;
- an allocation of the premiums paid.

The Group selects to present the income or expenses
from a group of reinsurance contracts held, other than
insurance finance income or expenses, as a single
amount.

The Group presents cash flows that are contingent on
claims as part of the amount recovered from reinsurers.
Ceding commissions that are not contingent on claims
of the underlying contracts are presented as a
deduction in the premiums to be paid to the reinsurer
which is then allocated to profit or loss.

(iv) Insurance finance income and expenses

Insurance finance income or expenses present the effect
of the time value of money and the change in the time
value of money, together with the effect of financial risk
and changes in financial risk of a group of insurance
contracts. Insurance finance income and expenses shall
be presented separately for insurance contracts issued
and reinsurance contracts held.
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(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.11Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of within three
months from the date of investment less bank
overdrafts.

2.12Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the lenders.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

2.13Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Where there are a
number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow of economic benefits with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.13Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.14Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.
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(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.14Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
measured at FVPL, are reported as part of the fair value
gains or losses in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments measured at FVOCI, are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

- assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates, unless
these average exchange rates are not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing at the transaction dates. In such
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions; and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.14Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is disposed of or sold, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the disposed of portion of that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to the income statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.15Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case they are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
associates to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15Income tax (Continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2.6, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of that
investment property at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless that investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in that investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.16Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the assets.

(b) Rentalincome from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(c) Dividend and distribution income

Dividend income from equity securities is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Distribution income from subordinated
capital securities is recognised when the right of the
instrument holders to receive payment is established.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.16Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Insurance revenue

The Group recognises insurance revenue for the period
based on the passage of time by allocating expected
premium receipts including premium experience
adjustments to each period of service. However, when
the expected pattern of release from risk during the
coverage period differs significantly from the passage of
time, the premium receipts are allocated based on the
expected pattern of incurred insurance service
expenses.

2.17Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. These pension plans are
defined contribution schemes which the Group pays
fixed contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services rendered in the current and prior
periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefits expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.18Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Employee’s leave entitlements

Employee’s entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee’s entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.19Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.19Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in Note 2.19(a).

a person identified in Note 2.19(a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions concerning the future that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in these consolidated financial statements.
The application of assumptions and estimates means
that any changes of them, either due to changes of
management’s judgement or the evolvement of the
actual circumstances, would cause the Group's financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
Group believes that the assumptions and estimates that
have been made in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
that these consolidated financial statements therefore
present fairly the Group's financial position and results
in all material respects.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group'’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

3.1 Significant influence over Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”, together
with its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (“CYB”) and Luso
International Banking Ltd. (“LIB”), are
collectively referred to as “XIB Group”)

The Company holds approximately 8.689%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB through
its representative on the board of directors of XIB as
well as the participation in policy-making processes
through the representation in committees set up by the
board of directors of XIB even though the Company
holds less than 20% of the voting power of XIB.
Accordingly, the Company considers that XIB Group
shall be classified as an associate of the Company and
the Company’s interest in XIB Group shall be accounted
for using equity method in accordance with the HKFRSs.
Details of XIB Group are set out in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.2 Deferred income tax liabilities

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amounts of provision for income tax
and the timing of the payment of the related income
tax. There are certain transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. In
particular, at 31 December 2024, the Group has
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position a deferred income tax liability of HK$28.31
million (2023: HK$29.27 million) in relation to the
dividends of RMB266.28 million (equivalent to
HK$283.09 million) for the years ended 31 December
2019, 2020 and 2021 (2023: in relation to the dividends
of RMB266.28 million, equivalent to HK$292.64 million,
for the years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021)
which has been proposed by XIB and approved by
board of directors of XIB, subject to approval from the
National Financial Regulatory Administration (“NFRA").
Although the Group has not recognised the dividend
income declared which had not been approved by the
NFRA, the Group has recognised the related
withholding tax in deferred income tax liabilities (Note
29) based on the assessment of probability of tax
exposure. Where the final tax outcome of the matter is
different from the amount that was initially recorded,
such difference will affect the provisions for deferred
income tax in the period in which such determination is
made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.3 PAA eligibility test

The PAA measurement model is used for all the
contracts issued by the Group.

Most of the contracts issued by the Group have a
coverage period that is one year or less and they
automatically qualify as eligible for the PAA. Eligibility
for the application of the PAA must be assessed for each
group of insurance contracts with a coverage period
longer than one year with reference to materiality
determined for such assessment. To conduct PAA
eligibility assessment, the Group will determine the
carrying amount of the LRC at each reporting date
under a range of future scenarios that the Group would
reasonably expect, within the context of the particular
group under the PAA and the GMM. When any
difference between the carrying amount of the LRC of
the group of contracts between the PAA and the GMM
at each reporting date in all scenarios is below a
specified threshold of materiality, then the group is
eligible for the PAA.

When performing the PAA eligibility test, the following
key factors have been taken into consideration by the
management:

- changing expectations of profitability for the
remaining coverage period (e.g. due to changes in
claims expectation); and

- changing market yield curves.

The judgements exercised in setting the thresholds to
determine “material difference” in the above
assessment fundamentally affect the measurement
approach the group of insurance contracts is recognised
and presented in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.4 Level of aggregation

Insurance contracts are aggregated into groups of
contracts for measurement purposes. The level of
aggregation for the Group is determined firstly by
dividing the business written into portfolios. The Group
defines a portfolio as insurance contracts subject to
similar risks and managed together. Contracts within
the same product line are expected to be in the same
portfolio as they have similar risks and are managed
together. Portfolios are divided into annual cohorts and
each annual cohort are further divided based on
expected profitability at inception into three categories:
onerous contract, contracts with no significant risk of
becoming onerous, and the remainder. The assessment
of which risks are similar and how contracts are
managed requires the exercise of judgement.

For each portfolio of contracts, the Group determines
the appropriate level at which reasonable and
supportable information is available, to assess whether
these contracts are onerous at initial recognition and
whether non-onerous contracts have a significant
possibility of becoming onerous. This level of
granularity determines sets of contracts. The Group uses
significant judgement to determine at what level of
granularity the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that is sufficient to conclude that all
contracts within a set are sufficiently homogeneous and
will be allocated to the same group without performing
an individual contract assessment. If facts and
circumstances indicate that some contracts are onerous,
an additional assessment is performed to distinguish
onerous contracts from non-onerous ones. For non-
onerous contracts, the Group assesses the likelihood of
changes in the applicable facts and circumstances in the
subsequent periods in determining whether contracts
have a significant possibility of becoming onerous.

The judgements exercised in level of aggregation in the
above assessment fundamentally affect the
identification of the onerous contracts and the
recognition of the loss component.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

3.5 Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by an independent professional
valuer. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which are set
out in Note 17. The best evidence of fair value of
investment properties held by the Group is current prices
in an active market for similar lease or other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making this judgement, the Group considers
information including current prices in an active market
for properties of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts) adjusted to
reflect those differences, or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those prices. At
31 December 2024, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately HK$165.35
million (2023: HK$172.33 million).

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

165



166

RO RIS IR E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EIEES

R S5t 5t ke FIER (48)
&5t At E BV EZRIR (48)

3.6 EREREBEMIEE

ERAREAEBREEEEERERR
EE’\J?E%@%%%WZ’S o MM B AR BRE R AN
AREERER BB TREMS @ &
EHH,%L,\EET%WT,vT\/\ﬁﬁfk?U(/R%:z
‘:M% EANEZEHD - RRBENK
EJM»UELL@%&@T? BIRBRBHE
,ETD’(% Al 77 A fEH fh EF @
Bornhuetter-Ferguson ;% ([BF A |) ©

1% ENERBENERERSBENRE
%“ T A% B AT R TEURI R 2R B R 8 3

MG ARG ERA - Bt - 7%
vﬁ/ﬂﬁﬂﬁ DATBEFENERLIEH
IR R REH D R DR ENERE
B FPHBRBEENKRAREEHRE -
ELBERREBRENFE - EXX
BRI R ERBIEL DT - EARE
BEEBELER  RRIBEMGEEH
SRR RETERER - ARBRER
KER - ERANBRRESEELBEE
REEY BNIEAR - RHHBEESES
ZRIEE £ E AR AR (20 2 B —
RIEEM - RRYBENEE - KHEE
-~ BREBIRKE - RURRTE RIAF
QI\*B%m%I%E’]“@J A K EE qn 4

- REMGIT R MFE'EE%EJ_\_#W'LB-
%E’J £8)) - S{EREBRINE I H &
EZRBTHAES RO EERERR E
BIEA LR 25 HR AT REH (5T
RARBEIERRAN o

EEBR /A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.6 Estimate of LIC

LIC includes expected ultimate costs of claims incurred
but not reported. It may take a significant period of time
before the ultimate costs of claims can be established
with certainty and for some type of policies, these
expected claims form the majority of the insurance
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The ultimate costs of outstanding claims are
estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims
projection techniques, such as the Bornhuetter-
Ferguson (“BF") method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is
that past claims development experience can be used
to project future claims development and hence
ultimate costs of claims. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
losses, average cost per claim and claim numbers based
on the observed development of earlier years and
expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is
mainly analysed by accident year, as well as by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims
are usually separately addressed, either by being
reserved at the face value based on loss adjustors’
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. The assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development data
on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in future (for example
to reflect one-off occurrence, changes in external or
market factors such as public attitudes of claiming,
economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial
decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such
as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling
procedures), so as to arrive at the estimated ultimate
costs of claims that present the likely outcome from the
range of possible outcomes, taking into account all of
the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.6 Estimate of LIC (Continued)

LIC are discounted using the risk-free yield curves
adjusted by a liquidity premium to reflect the illiquidity
characteristics of the liabilities. Considering the duration
of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held by the Group is less than last liquid point (30
years), the Group adopts the risk-free rates as published
by the Insurance Authority for determination of risk-
based capital (“RBC”), which are based on observable
market information of swaps or government bonds. The
Group considers the adoption of the RBC risk-free rates
is to be market consistent.

LIC includes the risk adjustment for non-financial risk,
which is the compensation that the Group requires for
bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing
of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The
risk adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer
would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that
future cash flows will exceed the expected value
amount.

The Group uses a confidence-level approach at entity
level to determine the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk by applying statistical methods like Bootstrapping.
In estimating the risk adjustment, the Group uses two
applications of the bootstrapping technique to
determine the risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The
bootstrapping technique requires calculating suitably
chosen residuals for the chosen model. The resulting
risk adjustment corresponds to a 75% confidence level.
The confidence-level assumption used is reviewed each
year and updated as necessary.

Further details of the related insurance risk are set out
in note 4.1(a).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.7 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group

The Group’s major associated financial institution, XIB
Group, is principally conducting banking business in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (Note 18). The
management of XIB Group has prepared a set of
consolidated financial statements for XIB Group’s
reporting purposes. In preparing its consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of XIB
Group have been aligned, where necessary, in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with those accounting policies adopted by the Group.
Certain critical accounting estimates and judgement
have been applied by XIB Group as described below:

(a] Fair value of Level 3 financial instruments

The fair values of level 3 financial instruments that are
not quoted in active markets are determined by XIB
Group using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
used include market comparison approach and
discounted cash flows analysis and models. To the
extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as weighted average cost of capital,
credit risks (both own and counterparty), volatilities and
correlations require management of XIB Group to make
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect reported fair values of financial instruments
of XIB Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.7 Critical accounting estimates and judgement
of XIB Group (Continued)

(b) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group adopts ECLs model for measurement of
impairment allowances on loans and advances. ECLs are
a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. When
determining whether the credit risk of a loan and
advance has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, XIB Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on XIB Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information. XIB Group uses watch lists to
monitor credit risk of loans and advances, and conducts
regular assessments at the counterparty level. The
internal guidance used in determining whether credit
risk increases significantly is regularly monitored and
reviewed by the management of XIB Group for the
appropriateness.

The ECLs are the result of the discounted product of PD,
EAD and LGD. XIB Group determines the expected credit
losses by estimating the PD, LGD and EAD of individual
exposure or loan portfolios on a collective basis. The
calculation of PD is based on reasonable and
appropriate statistical models selected by the
management of XIB Group, which are based on market
data as well as internal data comprising both
quantitative and qualitative factors, including historical
data, assumptions and expectation of future conditions.
The management of XIB Group applied judgements to
determine LGD after considering different types of
counterparties, methods and priority of recovering
debts, and the availability of collaterals or other credit
support.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.7 Critical accounting estimates and judgement
of XIB Group (Continued)

(b) Impairment allowances on loans and advances
[Continued]

Both the assessment of the significant increase in credit
risk and the measurement of expected credit losses
involve forward-looking information. Based on the
analysis on historical data, XIB Group identified critical
economic indicators that affect the credit risk and
expected credit losses of all asset portfolios.

XIB Group quarterly monitors and reviews assumptions
related to the calculation of expected credit losses,
including the changes in PD and the value of collaterals
under the different time limits.

[c] Estimation of impairment on goodwill

XIB Group has recognised a consolidated goodwill on
acquisition of approximately 64.31% shareholding in
CYB at the date of acquisition based on the costs of
acquisition and the fair value of identifiable net assets
of CYB. In assessing the impairment of the goodwill, the
recoverable amount of CYB is determined based on the
value in use calculation. The value in use calculation
requires XIB Group to estimate the future cash flow
projections of CYB based on financial budgets with
judgement and assumptions made by senior
management and the pre-tax discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Based on the impairment
assessment performed by XIB Group on such
consolidated goodwill at 31 December 2024, an
impairment loss of RMB48.9 million was recognised.
However, as key assumptions which management of XIB
Group has made in respect of future cash flow
projections are subject to change, an adverse change in
the assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of
insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the
Group within a manageable risk level. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's performance.

The Board, representing the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, is the highest
decision making authority of the Group and has the
ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board
has adopted procedures for evaluating and approving
significant investment decisions. Given the nature of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, their risk
exposures are monitored by the Group primarily on a
qualitative basis.

The General Manager Meeting comprises the General
Manager (“GM”) and senior management of the
Company, is responsible for managing the Group’s
various types of risks, approving detailed risk
management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within its authority delegated
by the Board.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote appropriate internal control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risks under any one insurance contract are the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, these risks are
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the amount of the actual claims exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This
could occur because the frequency or severity of claims
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are
random and the actual numbers and amounts of claims
will vary from year to year from the level established
using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across
the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk and
type of industry covered.

(il Concentration of underwriting risk

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to court that were
inactive or latent for a long period of time. Estimated
inflation is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically required to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

[i]  Concentration of underwriting risk (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
claims handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type
and amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to not to renew a contract, it can impose
deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the
Group to pursue third parties for payment of some or all
costs (subrogation). Unless the legislation requires, the
Group's strategy limits the total exposure of any
individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The group only conducts insurance business in Hong

Kong and Macau, therefore it does not have a significant
concentration of underwriting risk.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

[i]  Concentration of underwriting risk (Continued)

The concentration of insurance risk before reinsurance in
relation to types of insurance accepted is summarised
below, with reference to the carrying amounts of the
insurance contracts issued. The reinsurance arrangement
is mainly focusing on the motor, property damage and
employee benefits:

2024 2023

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

E Motor 64,242 54,433
—MERBE General liability 33,648 31,537
BriE e Property damage 30,534 20,637
BREo A Reinsurance inwards 33,456 35,488
Hh Other 3,759 2,704
165,639 144,799

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled
over a long period of time and a larger element of
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported
claims. There are several variables that affect the
amounts and timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks by individual
contract holders and the risk management procedures
adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts is
the monetary awards granted for bodily injury suffered.
Such awards are lump-sum payments that are calculated
as the present value of the loss of earnings and
rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur
as a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses to
be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original established liabilities.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported and not reported), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio
between the ultimate costs of insurance claims and
insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year
in relation to such claims) and estimates based upon
actual claims experience using predetermined formulae
where greater weight is given to actual claims
experience as time passes.

The estimation of ultimate losses is generally subject to
a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of
the costs of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is
available. In estimating ultimate losses which make
reasonable provisions for the claims, it is necessary to
project future costs of claims and associated claims
expenses and simulate the outcomes of claims liabilities
using models. These models are a simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic
forces and may not be entirely appropriate for the types
of insurance business being analysed. It is certain that
actual future claims and claims expenses will not
develop exactly as projected and may vary significantly
from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of reported
claims not yet paid, the Group considers any
information available from loss adjusters and
information on the costs of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are
assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately
in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of
their development and incidence on the rest of the
portfolio.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of insurance contract
liabilities. This provides a greater understanding of the
trends inherent in the experience being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The
most appropriate estimation technique is selected
taking into account the characteristics of the business
class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

(iii] Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order to
estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice of
selected results for each accident year of each class of
business depends on an assessment of the technique
that has been most appropriate to observed historical
developments. In certain instances, different techniques
or combination of techniques have been selected for
individual accident year or group of accident years
within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s
insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method are
applied. For other classes of insurance portfolio, the
incurred loss development method is used to project
the claims liabilities.

The paid and incurred loss development methods are
used to project the ultimate costs of the claims, and the
BF method relies on a gradual transition from an
estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv] Reinsurance arrangement

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products.
The placement of reinsurance is diversified such that
the Group is neither dependent on a single reinsurer
nor are the operations of the Group substantially
dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. The
Group also considers the long-established business
relationship with the reinsurers.

The Group has also limited its exposure to a certain level
by use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit
exposure to catastrophic events, such as earthquakes
and flood damages. The purpose of these underwriting
and reinsurance strategies is to limit the exposure to
catastrophes to a pre-determined maximum amount
based on the Group’s risk appetite. For a single realistic
catastrophic event, the maximum exposure is less than
5% of the shareholders’ equity of the wholly-owned
subsidiary, Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min
Xin Insurance”), on a net basis.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1
(a)

vl

Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

Insurance risk (Continued)

Insurance claims development tables

The table below summarises actual claims compared
with previous estimates of the undiscounted amount of
the claims. The Group presents information on the gross
and net claims development for claims incurred 6 years
before the reporting period. The Group reconciles the
undiscounted claims liabilities presented in the table
with the aggregate carrying amount of the gross
liabilities for incurred claims.

EHEE Accident year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 #%E Total
BEFT BEFT BFr BEFrT EEFr EEFr | BT
HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000

BEERER Gross claims development
B RERTE Estimate of undiscounted ultimate

BT gross claims
REHFR at end of accident year 19,616 25,069 30,610 33,474 55,171 48,054
—F one year later 12,472 38,899 54,008 54,976 59,826
—F# two years later 11,213 49,072 61,870 57,898
=% three years later 10,252 50,650 60,034
mE% four years later 9,555 49,487
hE#% five years later 9,449
EHME RET Current estimate of cumulative

e claims 9,449 49,487 60,034 57,898 59,826 48,054 284,748
E5BHAR Cumulative payment to date (8,848)  (37,352)  (39,619) (27,315  (17,304) (2,691) | (133,129)
2019 F -2024 FE= Gross liabilities for accident years

FEEMER 2019-2024 601 12,135 20,415 30,583 42,522 45,363 151,619
2019 FERIRIRE Gross liabilities in respect of prior

et years before 2019 747
N RE Claims payable 10,075
FEF R A Effect of the risk adjustment for

[RBR TR non-financial risk 14,564
WHRFE Effect of discounting (9,297)
BREZERREER Gross liabilities for incurred claims 167,708
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B A B 5 R PR EE 32 (78)

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 RIBNREIFERBEE (58) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) RIBREMR (5E) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
vl RIZEEZREE (& [vl Insurance claims development tables (Continued)
EHEE Accident year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 #%8 Total
BT BT BEFr BEFr BEFr BT | B¥Fn
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000 | HK$'000
BEERIE Net claims development
ERFRERITER Estimate of undiscounted ultimate
EFE net claims
REHFR at end of accident year 15,169 21,173 26,673 28,977 43,901 41,533
—Fi& one year later 11,765 34,901 48,899 49,429 49,133
—F# two years later 10,302 43,920 57,042 52,697
=% three years later 9,413 46,573 54,781
mE% four years later 8,727 44,572
HEF% five years later 8,617
BB 25T Current estimate of cumulative
B claims 8617 44572 54781 52,697 49,133 41533 | 251,333
EXC SR Cumulative payment to date (8,035)  (33,482)  (35219)  (24,299)  (12,340) (2,569) | (115,944)
2019 -2024 FEM Net liabilities for accident years
EEREFE 2019-2024 582 11,09 19562 28398 36793 38964 | 135,389
2019 ERIRIRE Net liabilities in respect of prior
R years before 2019 749
ENZE Claims payable 3,391
FEF R A Effect of the risk adjustment for
R HER non-financial risk 13,325
biigsNioh-7 Effect of discounting (8,586)
EREREABEFHE Net liabilities for incurred claims 144,268

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
[vi] Sensitivity analysis

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liabilities claims
are the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However, an
increase or a decrease of 10% in the costs of these
claims would require the recognition of an additional
loss or gain of approximately HK$10.93 million (2023:
approximately HK$10.86 million) net of reinsurance.
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Rz Kt F5RREIR (£8) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 RIBNREIFERBEE (58) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) fREZREBR (58) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
il BRE DT (&) [vi] Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
TREBERNFTERRBEEGHABENEAM The impact of changes in other key variables used in the
BAREHE T NTE FETENRIK calculation of insurance contract liabilities is
ERENNGRFEEBRREREFRT summarised in the table below. These impacts are
o t1lm1bi’3 BEHE - WERHEM presented both gross and net of reinsurance contracts
HHIRITTE o held. Each change has been calculated in isolation,
assuming that there are no changes to any of the other
variables.
2024 2023
HERBADER HRT AR A
mEg e
HRBAER  -NRERR HBRBADEN  -RERR
:0k-7 ®BEFE ofZ ®BFE
2 -E8 Effect on 2 -EE Effect on
R/ (TH) Effecton  profitbefore  t7f/(T¥%) Effecton  profit before
Increase/  profit before taxation Increase/ profit before taxation
(decrease) in taxation - net of (decrease) in taxation - net of
variables - gross reinsurance variables - gross reinsurance
BEAE BYTTT BETT BOH BEFT BT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$000
By Variables
ERAZEER Risk adjustment factor 2 (2,133) (1,906) 2 (2,043) (1,822)
(2) 2,133 1,906 2 2,043 1,822
AEERKBLR Current year ultimate loss
t& ratio 5 (11,089) (9,608) 5 (10,401) (8,849)
(5) 8,873 7,632 (5 8,607 7,308

EEBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The risk includes
potential losses arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

The Group's risk management objective is to enhance
shareholders’ value by maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market
risk is based on restricting individual operation to invest
within a list of permissible instruments authorised by
the Board to ensure all risks arising are thoroughly
identified, properly measured and adequately
controlled.

(i]  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau and is primarily exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations
measured in Renminbi and the United States dollars.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
financial assets denominated in foreign currencies.

In respect of assets held in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are in the functional currency
of the entity taking out the loans. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

[i]  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate
at the reporting date:

2024 2023
BMEE BEEE
HKD equivalent HKD equivalent
AR% Eyn it AR% e ks
RMB usb Total RMB usD Total

BRATFEFALMZ2ENE  Financial assets at fair value through
HERMEE other comprehensive income
REHEKATEMNERIRE  Debt investments at amortised cost
3

BRATEABERFIES  Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss

Hit R Other debtors

TEHER Term deposits

ReRRLFED Cash and cash equivalents

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

BETT  BETT  BMTR | BETT  EETT  EETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 |  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000

491,760 23,370 515,130 580,296 23,101 603,397
- 177,862 177,862 - 152,198 152,198

= = = - 9,250 9,250

74 19,010 19,084 566 651 1,217
124,445 = 124,445 128,636 1,976 130,612
176,491 18,186 194,677 117,678 1,254 118,932

792,770 238,428 1,031,198 827,176 188,430 1,015,606




RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RER A B 5 R PR EE 32 (78)

4.1 RIBRRIESERER (18)
(b) TimmER (7&)

(i)  IMEERR (%)
TRINFAEERZ2HAFEAREE
RN SR g E B M AR EXE R

HAEBOGRBIREN MR EN - A
KgAK D EENROTE

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

[i]  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits,
and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates of Renminbi to which the Group has significant
exposure at the reporting date:

2024 2023

Ex HERLEIR
R/ (TH) RESHNFE GARFINKE

HEDAM R HRREENE  Bsih
L/ (TH) RBENNFE ENFH0FE

Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on

(decrease) in profit after other (decrease) in profit after other

foreign  taxationand  components foreign taxation and components

exchange rate retained profits of equity  exchangerate retained profits of equity

BAk BEFT BETT BAl BT EHTT

% HK$’000 HK$’000 % HK$000 HK$'000

AR® Renminbi 5 12,568 24,588 5 10,307 29,015
(5) (12,568) (24,588) (5) (10,307) (29,015)

ERBRESNIIBRREREHO N2
HRABHERCRERBENTEAEE
FANT R TAMIMNERR - MATAE
R (R RIZHE) AR A& -

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to remeasure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

[i]  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
date. As a result of the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollars and the United States dollars, the
management considered that there would not be
material impact arising from any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollars against Hong Kong
dollars. Accordingly no sensitivity analysis is presented
for the United States dollars. Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table represent an aggregation
of the effects on profit after taxation and equity of each
of the Group’s entities measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2023.

(ii]  Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on investments held
by the Group classified in the consolidated statement of
financial position as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income or at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss comprise listed equity investments, unlisted
investment funds, partnership and principal-guaranteed
structured bank deposits. Decisions to buy or sell these
investments are based on the performance of individual
investment compared to that of the index, expected
return and the Group'’s liquidity needs. Financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise listed equity investments and subordinated
capital securities. These investments have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential or strategic
investment purpose and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectation.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii] Price risk [Continued]

The Group monitors price risk arising from structured
bank deposits by limits established for transactions and
open positions. These limits are reviewed and
monitored on a transaction-by-transaction basis. The
fair value of the structured bank deposits approximated
their respective aggregate of principal plus expected
interest income at the reporting date.

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that if the fair value
of the partnership increased or decreased by 5%, with all
other variables held constant, it would increase or
decrease the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by approximately HK$0.48 million (2023: nil).

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that if the quoted
price of the unlisted investment fund increased or
decreased by 5%, with all other variables held constant,
it would increase or decrease the Group’s profit after
taxation and retained profits by approximately HK$0.42
million (2023: approximately HK$0.8 million).

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that if the quoted
price of the US$200 million 8 per cent. undated non-
cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital
securities (the “Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities”) of CYB increased or decreased by 5%, with
all other variables held constant, it would increase or
decrease the Group’s other components of equity by
approximately HK$1.17 million (2023: HK$1.16 million).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(ii] Price risk [Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits,
and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market index for other listed equity investments to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
reporting date:

2024 2023
EEERSE HRHZEIR HERHMG AERREY HRBEENR R EAM
IH/(TH) RBRANYE ERBINFE  A/(TH) RERAOVE EXSHHTE
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
intherelevant  taxationand components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
=piA BETT BT B BEFT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HKS'000
IHREN Stock market index
KBRS in respect of listed
BE investments
B 1RE Hang Seng Index 5 13 1,208 5 12 1,119
(5) (13) (1,208) (5) (12) (1,119)
LBEEER Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 23,495 5 = 27,105
(5) - (23,495) (5) - (27,105)

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii] Price risk [Continued]

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the
stock market index had occurred and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at the
reporting date. It is also assumed that the fair values of
the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remained constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2023.

(iii] Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities mainly
comprise bank deposits, debt investments at amortised
cost, Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities,
LIC for insurance contracts issued and reinsurance
contracts held, loan from the controlling shareholder
and bank borrowings, bore at fixed or floating rates,
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group
manages these risks primarily through maintaining the
maturity profile of these assets and liabilities within a
short to medium period and monitoring the market
interest rate movements so that the Group can react
accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from its savings accounts carrying interest at
variable rates and fair value interest rate risk arising
from its debt investments at amortised cost at fixed
rates. The Group considered its exposure of the saving
accounts and debt investments at amortised cost to
interest rate risk is not significant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

liii] Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group's profit after taxation and retained profits
in response to reasonably possible changes in interest
rates with all other variables held constant for bank
borrowings, loan from the controlling shareholder,
insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held at the reporting date:

r&E The Group

RITIER Bank borrowings

R R Loan from the controlling
EX shareholder

Insurance contracts issued

Reinsurance contracts held

PlgUREONERIMEEGHENE
BEBERCHEAKRERERAFTA
HFERIM R SR T A - FEORBREH
AEHEBRRS N RER - FB
S NFH100EEE AT REEHEE N —
EFEE2W A IFHEMRBROAEA
REE BRI R ©

MRYELTEA - F - LE2SHR
BEf— AR T EMBBE I o

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

2024 2023
HRB RN R HERIRAR N K
REBNNEE RERNTE
Effect on Effect on
FIES o) profit after MEE profit after
Changein  taxation and Changein taxation and
interest rates retained profits  interest rates retained profits
iy #ETx 2% R
Basis points HKS$'000 Basis points HKS'000
100 (4,675) 100 (4,317)
(100) 4,675 (100) 4317
100 (651) N/A N/A
(100) 651 N/A N/A
100 2,112 100 1,895
(100) (2,200) (100) (1,969)
100 (160) 100 (157)
(100) 165 (100) 162

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments, insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held with
variable interest rates held by the Group at the
reporting date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible changes in interest rates over the
period until the next reporting date.

No sensitivity analysis has been performed for
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities as the
impact is not material.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that
a customer or counterparty will be unable to or unwilling
to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts due to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
loans to customers and interest receivable, insurance
contract assets, reinsurance contract assets, other
debtors, loan to an associate, debt investments at
amortised cost and bank balances.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer/
counterparty and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers/counterparties.

In respect of loans to customers and interest receivable,
the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by screening
the counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquiring
collateral from counterparties. These receivables are
required to meet the Group's established financial
requirements and the Group will obtain third party
guarantees when it considers them necessary.

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECLs
model on credit-impaired loans to customers and
interest receivable individually. After considering
forward looking information, the management
estimates the PD and LGD of credit-impaired loans to
customers based on historical credit loss experience of
the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the customers. The Group has recognised
impairment allowances at amounts equal to lifetime
ECLs for credit-impaired loans to customers and interest
receivable. At 31 December 2024, the Group's
impairment allowances on credit-impaired loans to
customers and interest receivable were HK$148.01
million (2023: HK$153.24 million) and impairment
allowances to credit-impaired loans to customers and
interest receivable ratio was 92.9% (2023: 91%).
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a
good credit rating and concentration of risk which is
subject to annual review. At each reporting date, the
Group performs an assessment of non-performance risk
of reinsurers by reviewing their financial strength and
updates the reinsurance purchase strategy if any.

At 31 December 2024, credit risk on reinsurance
contract assets and insurance contract assets is limited.
Reinsurance contracts were signed with reputable
reinsurance companies with diversification. The majority
of counterparties are major reinsurance companies with
credit ratings of A- or higher (2023: A- or higher)
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. These
reinsurance companies have a low risk of non-
performance.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual insurance debt to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group maintains records of the payment history for
significant contract holders with whom they conduct
regular business. The Group limits its exposure to credit
risk by selecting the counterparties and on-going
monitoring.

The balance of other debtors and deposits of the Group
mainly comprised the deposits with brokers, the
proceeds of the funds redeemed during the year and
receivable from fund administrators with good credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
and the deposit receivable from a reputable reinsurance
company. Accordingly, they are subject to 12-month
ECLs.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's credit risk of bank balances by
geographical location was primarily concentrated in
Mainland China and accounted for 67% (2023: 61%) of
the total bank balances at 31 December 2024. At 31
December 2024, credit risk on bank balances is limited
because bank balances were placed with reputable
financial institutions with diversification. The
counterparties are major institutional banks with credit
ratings of BBB- or higher (2023: BBB- or higher) assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. These
institutional banks have a low risk of default and there
is no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Accordingly, they are subject to 12-month
ECLs.

The credit risk of the Group’s debt investments at
amortised cost mainly came from the investment in the
supplementary capital bonds, which accounted for 60%
(2023: 70%) of the total debt investments at amortised
cost at 31 December 2024. At 31 December 2024, credit
risk on debt investments at amortised cost is limited
because debt investments at amortised cost were issued
by reputable financial institutions or entities with
diversification. The counterparties are major financial
institutions or entities with credit ratings of A- or higher
(2023: A- or higher) assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. These institutional financial institutions
or entities have a low risk of default and there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Accordingly, they are subject to 12-month
ECLs.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date without taking into account of any collateral held
or other credit enhancement is the net carrying amount
of the financial, insurance, reinsurance assets stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. A
summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

2024 2023
BT T M T
HK$’000 HKS'000

EEERENEFEFRK Credit-impaired loans to customers
UK B (it FE23) and interest receivable (Note 23) 11,257 15,102
RN AT EMEBRIRE Debt investments at amortised cost 256,802 156,174
BT —RBENF Loan to an associate 10,717 10,717
HEm BB AR RiZe Other debtors and deposits 31,443 3,350
W MRTTETT Cash and bank balances 1,383,624 1,093,227
RBRENEE Insurance contract assets 3,447 1,461
BREBEVEE Reinsurance contract assets 17,757 15,019
1,715,047 1,295,050

AEENEEERENTFERMER
HEMAME—FBERHNERE23 -

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit-impaired loans to customers
and interest receivable are set out in Note 23.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to raise new funds, sell financial assets quickly
at their fair value, a counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation or an insurance liability
falling due for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash, readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from reputable
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entity within the Group is
responsible for its own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining contractual
value at the reporting date of the Group's financial
liabilities which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay and expected
undiscounted cash flow for LIC for insurance contracts
issued as well as undiscounted cash flows expected to
be received on related reinsurance contracts held.
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(d) REN&E =R (&)

4L INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2024 2023
£-%7 £oF7
BHATE ELER BHFITE FRERA
Bk E-ER (B HE s F-FR (85
Total ZREX  BEWE) Total SEEX  BEWE)
SREE  contractual  Withinone In the second BEE  contractual  Withinone  In the second
Carrying undiscounted yearor  tofifth year Carrying  undiscounted yearor  tofifth year
amount cashflow  ondemand inclusive amount cashflow — on demand inclusive
V-t V-t s EEFR BEFT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000
g Liabilities
it MR Other creditors 8,676 8,676 8,676 - 9910 9,910 9,910 -
BEBE Lease liabilities 2,163 2,294 1,136 1,158 586 600 288 312
FITER Bank borrowings 758,497 762,170 762,170 - 855,570 865,771 666,320 199,451
BRBR Loan from the controlling
B3 shareholder 78,000 79,043 79,043 - - - - -
847,336 852,183 851,025 1,158 866,066 876,281 676,518 199,763
2024 2023
gt 2 %%
BHAKIE ETER BHFITE FTER
BensEE - (B He s F-FR (a5
Total BHREX  EEWE) Total EEX  BEME)
$REE  contractual  Withinone In the second SAE  contractual  Withinone  In the second
Carrying undiscounted yearor to tenth year Carrying  undiscounted yearor  totenth year
amount cashflow  on demand inclusive amount cashflow — on demand inclusive
BETT BETT BEFR BEFT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
BE Assets
BEBRBRAY  Reinsurance contracts held 22,202 2,913 10,859 12,054 17,99 18,934 10,615 8,319
af Liabilities
EEHRBAL  Insurance contracts issued 153,144 162,441 77,329 85,112 148,084 156,079 73,151 82,928

196 (=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management objectives
and policies of the Group’s associated financial
institution, XIB Group, are summarised as below:

(i] Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk
and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously identifies,
evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB Group's aim is to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management. Its senior
management establishes related risk management
policies and procedures under the strategy approved by
the XIB Board, including written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments.
Those risk management policies and procedures are
implemented by various departments after XIB Board’s
approval. In addition, its Internal Audit Department is
responsible for the independent review of risk
management and control environment.
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EEBR /A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans and
advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of XIB
Group are standardised. Credit rating, risk
measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment,
risk warning and risk reporting are measures for
managing credit risk.

liii] Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to ensure the
availability of adequate funds to meet its needs to
funding deposit withdrawals and other liabilities as they
fall due, as well as being able to meet its obligations to
funding loan originations and commitments and to take
advantage of new investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to
assess and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such
indices on a timely basis.

[iv] price risk

XIB Group is exposed to other price risks arising from
the equity investments and precious metal investments
held by the XIB Group. XIB Group considers that the
market risk from commodity prices or stock prices in the
investment portfolio is not significant.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(vl Market risk

XIB Group’s market risk arises from open positions in
the trading book and banking book in interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equities and commodities. The
trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants
on their tradability and held with trading intent, and in
order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk of the
trading book. The banking book consists of financial
instruments not included in the trading book (including
those financial instruments purchased with surplus
funds and managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits and
risk limits to identify, monitor and control market risk.
XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a regular
basis to assess the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk of its trading book and banking book.

— Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business in
Renminbi with other transactions in foreign currencies,
therefore XIB Group is exposed to the fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign exchange rates on its financial
position and cash flows. XIB Group manages its
exposure to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

[v] Market risk [Continued]
— Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group’s assets,
liabilities, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and most
common interest rate risk, arises from the difference
between maturity terms (for fixed interest rates) or
between the re-pricing terms (for floating interest rates)
of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
commitments. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposure to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group controls its interest rate risk primarily
through controlling the distribution of the maturity
date or re-pricing date of loans and deposits and the
asset-liability re-pricing gap.



RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RER A B 5 R PR EE 32 (78)

4.2 EINERER

AEENERNERRE  BRREAEE
RRMERE  RARFIRREHD®RK
REMF[NHESTKSDE - RFERRE
MERRBIABEE KA

EEANEMAR K AEEMNBER
BELREREEN - it RIRRERE
KERABEFERE - BEXBEES
B BARIERAPTFI BB IRITER K
BERBRRER - BEFEREESRAS Y
BARRKRAN SRR R IRR B ERE
REVFRTEARE D ©

20244 - ANEEMKRE 2023 F —
BHERTE OB ERNBEL RER
TE30% 3 A FRIIREEKT o BT 4k
ARG AEBREAHDIKT
AABIRRAI BEEE - BTG -
EEHNEBREINEEENRAE
f% o

2024 F K2 2023F 12 A31H » AEE

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
net assets. Total borrowings comprise all bank
borrowings and loan from the controlling shareholder
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total net assets comprise all components of
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During 2024, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2023, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a healthy level of 30% or below. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders of
the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2024

MERBGBLERNT : and 2023 were as follows:
2024 2023
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS’000
HAETK Total borrowings 836,497 855,570
BEFE Total net assets 7,818,147 8,069,450
EXEELR Gearing ratio 10.7% 10.6%
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(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(a] Capital risk management of Min Xin
Insurance

The capital requirements of Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, are mainly set and
regulated by the Insurance Authority and these
requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient
solvency margins. Min Xin Insurance is required to
maintain the value of its assets to be greater than the
aggregate amount of its liabilities and the relevant
amount within the meaning of Section 10 of the
Insurance Ordinance. Min Xin Insurance is also required
to comply with the capital requirement to ensure its
capital base is not less than each of its prescribed
capital amount, its minimum capital amount and HK$20
million.

In addition, the Macau Branch of Min Xin Insurance is
required by the Macau Insurance Ordinance to set up
technical reserves and to maintain a margin of solvency
sufficient to meet the liabilities arising from its activities
in Macau. The technical reserves shall be guaranteed by
equivalent and congruent assets located in Macau,
unless authorised by Autoridade Monetdria De Macau
to utilise overseas assets.

Min Xin Insurance also maintains healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business objectives and maximise
shareholder’s value. Min Xin Insurance may adjust the
dividend paid to the Company or issue new shares to
the Company to fulfill these requirements.

Min Xin Insurance manages its capital requirements by
assessing any shortfalls between the reported and
required relevant amounts on a regular basis. Min Xin
Insurance fully complied with the externally imposed
requirements of the Insurance Authority and Autoridade
Monetdaria De Macau during the reported financial
periods.



RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RER A B 5 R PR EE 32 (78)

4.2 :’III-_\E“‘ éi@ (mE)

(b) BEERMBBNERERE
i

EREENERERBRERE © ()ET
EREBMEMEERBRENERE
k(i RIBEEREBFEL LR

L/{@iliﬂ“?%ﬂxﬁkf B - A& E
NSRRI E AR ER ¢ K (i) (RIS HE [ A
BAERW  XFHEREBNEBERE -

EREBEEEREBESRHETARFIE
MEEETES|  BEREEANTRERER
B e

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(b) Capital risk management of associated
financial institution

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i) to
comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within XIB
Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to continue
as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by NFRA for
supervisory purposes.

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

203



RO RIS IR E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 RIRRIIFERER (18)

43 ERTAANYE

(a) CARFEYISROERTE

AFEERRES BT ANRIERNE
TSR R ERRE - Rt

2 EEE o AR E L THIH DR
EHEDFE

- EEREERRGEEMER
BESIABRERTISHRER
BREAEATE-

- FEIER EABERE—FR
WEANNEE (BER) M
(BIRBER) ISR BENHBE
HAEAFTE - BERHITANUT
SIAHRFE : tEUTAEREEER
MSEMEN TS WE : AR K
ﬁMIﬂEfTE%m%H =)

5B HMEERN - M
&:ﬁ@ﬁfﬁ%%%ﬁé%@
BRAEEXMAERTSERM
FHER -

- BZFR ERAFREASE
m%%ﬁm%ﬁﬂTT%m%F)
AEAYE - WEANTAGR
B (£ ) BRI FEAR IR ] R AR
mBBENEERN - EZFD
ABERBEBEAIASEEELEEX
TE - NERBEREEUT R
TENMEREFENTR  E
PEHEZ2ELHEATAEBRENAR
FIBR ARBRTEERMTAEZ
I

204 BB AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant
market information. The Group measures fair values
using the following hierarchy of methods:

- Level 1: fair value measured using only unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
instruments at the measurement date.

- Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

- Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category
includes instruments that are valued based on
quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as listed equity securities measured at
FVPL and FVOCI) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the Subordinated Additional Tier 1
Capital Securities held is measured at quoted price
provided by the security brokers. The Group adopted
the quoted prices as their fair value at the reporting
date and these financial instruments are included in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is measured
at quoted price provided by the fund administrators or
published by the fund management companies. Such
quoted prices represent the net asset value per share of
the investment funds which are derived from the fair
value of the underlying assets and securities measured
using value or price provided by independent verifiable
pricing sources. The Group adopted the quoted prices
of the funds as their fair value at the reporting date and
these financial instruments are included in Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the partnership is measured at net
asset value provided by the general partner of the
partnership. As the assets of the partnership only
consist of bank balances as at the reporting date, the
partnership is included in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.
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Rz Kt F5RREIR (£8) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
43 ERMITERFE(E) 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)
(a) R FEIRMNEMTH (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(%&) (Continued)
FHRA A B At A T iR 1T 89 [E E HARR &% The fair value of fixed-term and principal-guaranteed
REGEBERITFHIRERANAFE structured bank deposits placed with certain banks in
EOEXBMNASMERFERAR Mainland China were approximate to their respective
o ZzEemIANQFEL2EREE aggregate of principal plus expected interest income at
BT Wt AAFEEBENE-F the reporting date. The fair value of these financial
o instruments are determined with reference to the
change of index and are included in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.
FRNeMITRAISARATFERENS During the year there was no transfer of financial
—ERRE_ZHREERE - HEAL instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
EBHNFEEENE=ZH - value hierarchy, or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
TRABRB=ASEZEZNERALEE The following table presents the carrying value of
REUATEGFENSHITAKREE - financial instruments held by the Group at the reporting
FE2BTANAFEZRBESRERR date measured at fair value across the three levels of the
B ATEFEREENEIBIENA fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of each financial
FEREESE - instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement:
2024 2023
E-34 B R g FER -0 F-ER pk|
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B¥Fr  BEFT  BEFL  BEFr | A¥Tr BT B¥Tr BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
REHEMATLE  Recurring fair value
itE measurement
BE Assets
ERFEFTAEML  Financial assets at fair
FEKEN value through other
TREE comprehensive income 521,131 23,370 - 544,501 606,992 23,101 - 630,093
EATEEERRZ  Financial assets at fair value
JIEHERAE  through profit or loss 302 112,290 - 112,592 281 626,162 - 626,443
521,433 135,660 - 657,093 607,273 649,263 - 1,256,536

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RER A B 5 R PR EE 32 (78)

4.3 EMTRAAYE(E)

(b) FUAFENERNEMTE
AV

RBERAENSREEIRRER
B(NE) RIZEHRATENERAE
MEmESEEEEQFERE - &
BENAFERASEROSR T AR
BOREMSNRFRERREOEDNR
EhESE -

mEF A E S WIFEN G - LREBE
REBRMEMARETE  BREEH
BRTHE/SENHRREMFNTE
Al o

EERRAKENEREERERAR
MAFEAESRARZRANEE
A -

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value

The carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
less impairment losses (if any) and financial liabilities at
amortised cost are estimated to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate
their carrying values at the reporting date.

(c) EMTEMNBERLEE&RE (c) Categories of financial instruments and
lease liabilities
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
SRMEE Financial assets
BRATFERG AHMEE S Financial assets at fair value through
MEREE other comprehensive income 544,501 630,093
BRATEBEBERIR Financial assets at fair value through
NEREE profit or loss 112,592 626,443
RN AT ENERMEE Financial assets at amortised cost 1,693,843 1,278,570
BRBERTTENSRHERS Financial liabilities at amortised cost 845,173 865,480
HEERE Lease liabilities 2,163 586
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5 RNEER

AEEZABRETELAKERIS

M E B L ERRBATLREIERE -

SE R RBONB2REN TR —
B T RE A S 0D AR -

AEBREREAZHOAR - DR
EEB HAMBRARRAHRTH
o HREREBRBENRE - 57

LEREMNERD K 2AERI® %

MBREXBERASERANRERE
o HNIREHR - AERERENRE

HRFELEERE -

REBEATINAEZHNE

- TERG: BREEAKERA
MEBEHEARERERDHRN
PEAM - FERPIEERT
X% ERPEAmEE NEE

- R BERFBRAMN K

IRER A

- YERE: BERBEAMLE

BERFE -

- RERE: BRELBEREIKR
MABARAB([FE]ARKE
BIRMIER  RREARTEM
BEHEUARBEREBEENKRE -

NEIRBES - BERMEMAKED

FERE D ENWE MR REEINGE - 1t

PRAEENREDE -

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Board and the
General Manager Meeting that are used to make
strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation
and resources allocation are based on individual
business activity operated and investment held by the
Group. For investees, operating performance evaluation
is based on individual investee of the Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

- Financial services: this segment includes the
engagement of banking business through the
Group’s major associate, XIB Group in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau respectively, and
the provision of micro credit business in Mainland
China.

- Insurance: this segment includes the general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

- Property investment: this segment includes the
leasing of high quality office space in Mainland
China.

- Strategic investment: this segment includes the
investment in A-Shares of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”), high-tech
investments, subordinated capital securities and
bonds, and investment in limited partnership.

Corporate activities: corporate treasury and other
centralised functions which cannot be allocated to each
reporting segment. It is not a reportable operating
segment of the Group.
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nebEd (£8)
(a) NBPFRE - EERKBE

FEFHE D BB R IR Ko 0 BL 7 B H) B R
o NREEEZZERRALRNIIEE
ERREWMNHNESE  BEERAE:

AEERERSEN SRR,
EmEREHRAREZ RN EE D
28 o NE D B BEE S REER
BRADER - EAKBHREIERE - B
BERBEE R RRERAEAR M TR
BEMOEEDE - EmMRBEE
P MR EFIF X 2R [ AR %%
EE | DEHENRZIKERTE=
EREE=—EIZHNRABGHEE - D
BRI AT ST MR AR B R AR EE o

DHEEBREEERFANEIEE
NEBIVEE  BAERENKREFENRE
MRBHRNEEFEMRTREHR
MER - DHAEBREREBRRE
WaE  BNRINESER  BBR
B2 B A PRSI AR TR IR B B
AR EEEER R EZ D A E AR
MER - EREENEEFERER  Z
HEEMABERERNRE -2 - B
FTARRBBRRNOBRENERD BEER
BERINSRIEEE -

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(a] Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision-makers monitor the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments. All
direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped
under respective segments. Indirect costs and support
functions’ costs related to the strategic decision making
and day-to-day management of the business of the
Group and corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and services
are grouped under “Corporate activities”. Transactions
between segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-
segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible
assets held by the business entities, net book value of
investments held and share of net assets of and loans to
investees. Segment liabilities include insurance and
reinsurance contract liabilities, creditors and accruals,
income tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
attributable to respective segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments or directly related to
those segments. An asset and a liability are grouped
under same segment if the liability is collateralised by
the asset. Dividend payable to shareholders of the
Company is treated as unallocated liabilities in reporting
segment assets and liabilities.
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5 NE&ER(58) 5 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) NEPEE - EENERE(8) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
ABEH
SRR RB NERE RHRE AREHED Inter-segment &8
Financial services Insurance Property investment  Strategicinvestment ~ Corporate activities elimination Consolidated

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

BENANBLEE

AREERA
YA
HSHA
BEHA
BREMA
ARBA

S
=
2

T2RARRE
AfpBA

EE LN
A (B8) /4% - 58
RERRER
REERRADNER
bt
REHRRAOH
HHER
HEERRANY
HBRA
BERHENEFEN
RELHE
HEEBR
(1158) /%
REHRATEN
[ERREREER
THER

guR/ (5R)

EhEREARRE

REAER /(58
gt (k) /5

KEERA/ (58

HEAA
KERAEREH

BETT | EETT | BMTR | AHTL | BYTR | BHT | BMTR | BETL | BETFR | BRTL | BETR | BT | BM TR | A TL
HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS00D | HKS00 | HKSOOO | HKS'000 | HKSOO0 | HKS00 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKSO0O | HKS000 | HKS000

Year ended 31 December

Revenue from external customers

Insurance revenue - -| 187,383 191128 - - - - - - - -| 187,383 | 191128
Interest income 2,110 5603| 2,504 1283 - -l 7861 3,961 548 - - -| 13,023 10847
Rental income - -l 5952 5760 2,018 2312 - - - - - - 7970 8132
Dividend income - -l 1,760 2,662 - -| 14597 - - - - -| 16357 2,662
Distribution income - - - - - -

1872 1,880 = - = - 181 1,880

2,110 5603 | 197,599 | 200833 2,018 2372| 24330 5841 548 226,605 | 214,649

Inter-segments - 806 m 280 284 - S| 3188 3188 (4.274)] (4245 - -
Reportable segment revenue 210  5603| 198405 201606 2,298| 2656 | 24330 5841| 3,736 | 3188| (4.274)  (4245)| 226,605 | 214649
Other income 836 1541 9,872 9,39 - 71 - - 26214 23221 - -1 36922 34239
QOperating income 2,946 7150 208,277 | 211,000 2,298 2733 24330 58411 29950 | 26409 | (4,274)|  (4245)| 263,527 | 248888
Other (losses)/gains - net (21,656)] (13918) (2,338)|  1.807| (5582)| (3,208) (23) - 18] 8858 - - (29481)]  (6.467)
Insurance service expenses - - | (148,500)| (163,007) - - - - - - - - | (148,500)| (163,007)
Net expenses from reinsurance

contracts held - -| (17,461)] (16,606) - - - - - - - -| (17461)] (16,606)
Finance expenses from insurance

contracts issued - - (@681)]  (5565) - - - - - = - - (@881)]  (5565)
Finance income from reinsurance

contracts held - - 531 261 - - - - - - - - 531 261
(Charge for)/write back of impairment

loss on credit-impaired loans to

customers and interest receivable

(1,812) 2,845 - - - - - - - - - -1 (1,812) 2,845

Impairment loss on debt investments

atamortised cost - - (167) (150) - - - - - - - - (167) (150)
Administrative expenses (1,743)]  (1901)] (18,841)| (19,805) (780) (820) - -| (36515) (38135)| 4149 4095 (53,730)| (56,566)
Operating profit/(loss) (22,265))  (5824) 16,820 7935| (4064) (1295 24307| 5841| (6447)| (2868)]  (125) (150)|  8226| 3639

Finance costs - - (77) (200) - - - - | (44,154)]  (41350) 66 184 (44,165)| (41,366)
Share of results of associates 129,996 | 65947 - - - - 808 1541 - - - -| 130,804 67488
Profit/(loss) before taxation 107,731 60,123 | 16,743 7735|  (4,064)] (1295 25,115 7382 (50,601)| (44218) (59) 34| 94.865| 29761
Income tax (expense)/credit - (4497 (2938)) (2862 2,930 1,646 | (1,460) -1 (5701 15361 - -1 (71169) 9648
Profit/(loss) for the year 107,731 55626| 13,805| 4873 (1,134) 351| 23,655| 7382| (56,302)| (28857) (59) 34| 87,69 | 39409
Interest income 2874|  7040| 1219 | 10527 - -l 7861 391| 26607 22918 - -| 49,538 44446
Depreciation and amortisation

for the year 198 N4 3M0| 2837 - - - - 1405 984| (1,883)] (1.883)] 2830| 2152

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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kv 18224V AY —3 .
NS (£8) 5 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
kv MR == == (4= . B
(a) NEPEE - EENERE (@) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
ABEH
SRIRE RE HERE RHRE AREREE Inter-segment B
Financial services Insurance Propertyinvestment  Strategicinvestment  Corporate activities elimination Consolidated
2024 03 2024 03 2024 03 2024 03 2024 03 2024 03 2024 03
BEFT | BRI | BETL| BETL| ARTR| BNTT| BETR| BNT| BEFn| BETr| BT BETr| AkFn| ANTr
HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKSOOO | HKS000| HKSOOO | HKS000| HKSUOO | HKS000| HKSUOO | HKS000| HKSOOO | HKS000| HKSO0O
R12A318 At31 December
FRARNEAR The Company and subsidiaries 47,634 | 181670 | 534,400 490793 | 41,047 46614 | 633923 | 706794 | 1,301,749 | 1318852 (3,717) (2,094)f 2,555,036 | 2,742,629
RERENT Investments in associates 6,329,078 | 6411292 - - - -1 30957 30,804 - - - - 6,360,035 | 6,442,0%
EE Total assets 6,376,712 | 6592962 | 534,400 | 490793 | 41,047 | 46614 | 664,880 | 737598 | 1,301,749 | 1318852 | (7M7)  (2.094) 8,915,071 | 9,184,725
FRARNEAR The Company and subsidiaies 1543 979| 191534 | 0| 146 - 1623 sesnon| ssaa7|  Bmm|  (094) 1,096924 | 1115275
Bak Totalliabilities 8563  979| 191534 ue| 1770|1469 S| 16233 sesro| s | MM (2094)] 1,096924 | 1115275
FERETETD Additions to non-current segment assets
NBEE during the year - -l a6 1B - - - BT 15| (529 B 5 ) ]
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5 NbER(18) 5
(b) RS

TREIER () AKERAINAFTFH
WAR () AEBR YR - #as Mk
ERREE  WEMENMRERZ QA
(MEEERBEE]) AEEHER -
B RIZIRHERG R E Y XEN
B - FEEIFREE EPTE MR A
o WE - HBELRE EREEE
AR ENEILEEBEREMED -
REBERRRASERELE D

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

The following table sets out the information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenues from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
properties and investments in associates (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
investment properties and the location of operations in
the case of investments in associates.

B HERH 15| &a
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2024 03 2024 2023 2024 2003 2024 2023
BETT | BUTT | AEFL | BEFT | BETr | BETr | AL | AR
HKS'000 HKSO00 | HKS$'000 HKS000 | HKS$'000 HKS000 | HKS$'000 HKS 000
BENANALEE Year ended 31 December
BERPRA Revenues from external customers 92,910 91,361 18,725 7975 114,970 115313 226,605 214,649
M12B318 At 31 December
NN The Company and subsidiaries 134,816 135,750 56,277 62,640 876 1,147 191,969 199,537
REBRELT Investments in associates - - | 6360035 | 644209 = - | 6360035 | 644209
ERFRBEE Specified non-current assets 134,816 135750 | 6416312 | 6504736 876 1147 | 6,552,004 | 6,641,633

212 B{=5EAME 27 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RIRIRTS R 4E 6 INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
RERUA Insurance revenue 187,383 191,128
R ARTEE Insurance service expenses (a) (148,500) (163,007)
FEBRBRA NN Net expenses from reinsurance
& A58 contracts held (17,461) (16,606)
IR RTS LR Insurance service result 21,422 11,515
(a) RIBARFFER (a) Insurance service expenses
2024 2023
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
BEAREBEREMEEADN Incurred claims and other incurred
R RIS E F insurance service expenses 54,774 62,676
BLiR KRR TS B AR 2L Changes that related to past service
EELREEBENAR Adjustment to the LIC 1,069 6,916
B3 2R AR 75 AR L Changes that related to future service
EEE AR ERE D & Loss on onerous groups of contracts
%18 300 /Y FE (O] and reversal of such losses (1,401) 2,106
RERUIERESRE Insurance acquisition cash flows
i Amortisation 94,058 91,309
148,500 163,007
Hithlg A 7 OTHER INCOME
2024 2023
BYT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
SRITIEFF BULA Interest income from bank deposits 36,453 33,599
EHGHEEE Interest income from sublease of
FEWA right-of-use assets 62 =
BERFEE BB IARA Dividend income from financial assets
ETHMEERSBA at fair value through profit or loss 141 299
I T 4R Government grants 9 4
HAh, Others 257 337
36,922 34,239
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8 HfthEE —B&R

8 OTHER LOSSES - NET

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
BRATEEBEBERYIRDY Net realised and unrealised gains on
PRIEEMNEERKE financial assets at fair value through
AR EFEE (a) profit or loss (a) 9,130 16,575
HEREHK AT ER Loss on disposal of debt investments
BEIEERNEE at amortised cost = (10)
HEYZE - S NERE Losses on disposal of property, plant
E5ia and equipment (33) (13)
RIFERERAREEE Gain on derecognition of right-of-use
e assets 231 -
—KEE N R R EE Loss on dilution of interest in an
R 18 associate = (15,724)
HEYEEHNFE Fair value losses on revaluation of
E518 investment properties (6,981) (1,013)
VE 5 E5 18558 (b) Net exchange losses (b) (31,828) (6,276)
(29,481) (6,461)

(@) ZEERENRRATESBER

TR S mEENF B I A B
9,044,000 7T (2023 4 : 75 16,849,000
JC) °

ZEBERRAEEREANR L =M1
m=rtEBEE N EERERAR(=
TNEDHNBERERE - RV E
WOE K L B0 BEHS 2 BT AE SNEE ST
ERBeNERNELSBEEA
BRESEBERRANERY —AMLE
BHIBE 2193 87T °

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

(b)

The amount included an interest income of
HK$9,044,000 (2023: HK$16,849,000) received from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount included a one-off loss of
approximately HK$21.93 million for the
proportionate share of the exchange losses
previously recognised in the exchange translation
reserve and transferred directly to consolidated
income statement by the Group upon reduction of
the paid-in capital of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited (“Sanyuan
Micro Credit”) during the year.
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¢ 743l 9 OPERATING PROFIT
2024 2023
BT T JBMF T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

EERAMEFT AL KR Operating profit is stated after crediting

THI&IE - and charging the following:
A Crediting
KEMFEE W FER Rentals received and receivable from

e HBREEEAR investment properties less direct outgoings 7,225 7,348

— Hz YA — Rental income 7,970 8,132

— HEEHMH - Direct outgoings (745) (784)
Hkx Charging
BTRA  BIEESEME  Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 40,695 42,517
— Frg  BRLRIEA - Salaries, allowances and bonus 39,162 41,075
— RIKIEFIRL A (b) — Retirement benefit costs (b) 1,533 1,442
ZEEN B & Auditor’s remuneration 4,045 5,157
— EFEME (a) — Provision for current year (a) 3,722 4,434
— K FEEHERD - Underprovision in prior year - 400
— HEIITE ERR /7 — Interim agreed-upon procedures 323 323
PrE R E Depreciation and amortisation 2,830 2,152
— YFE - EERERE - Property, plant and equipment 2,161 1,623
— HEL# R +1{FfHIE - Leasehold lands and land use rights 282 280
—MHERBERNYZE - Properties leased for own use 387 249
EIRE (FFFEE 11(a)(iii)) Management fee (Note 11(a)(iii)) 1,880 1,880
HEYZE - S RERE Losses on disposal of property, plant and

fE518 equipment 33 13
[ B R F 5 Net exchange losses 31,828 6,276
@ BERBAARELRGIENEES (@) Including services for the statutory audit required

STER (2023 F : IRABF BB R
SR FE17ROGEETHERERD

EEEH) -

HKFRS 17).

under the RBC regime (2023: statutory audit of the
consolidated financial statements on adoption of

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

215



RO RIS IR E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 ZXxan (&) 9 OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

(b) 7E20004 11 A30HA  AEEMA (b) The Group contributed to a defined contribution
— I8 A G 8 ([ R T KRG scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available to all
DMK FIEEERNBBE eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30
BEA2M AEHRKGTENE November 2000. The assets of the DC Scheme
ERAEENEESHSE B were held separately from those of the Group in
BUEEEESRE - AE2000F an independently administered fund.
11 A 30 A A E HRE B BIREE Contributions to the DC Scheme by the Group and
il M AR & 5t B R BI DEK 37 #Y 58 employees were calculated at 15% of the
MoBEEE([RESTE) A employees’ basic salary until 30 November 2000
BRREAL AEEKEEHS when the DC Scheme was replaced by a
ER-RGENHEFIBEAEEER mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
REHBAD 2 tHAE - Scheme”) set up under the Mandatory Provident

Fund Schemes Ordinance.
REEG HRRIESD TS A HK The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory
(b AR REEEARNAS and voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each
B2+ (2000569 A30HE&MA employee are calculated at the higher of 10% (or
WEEMHERBRAEERA Y 6% for employees who joined after 30 September
BOZN)HEETABKRANE 2000) of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the
DZANBREEREHE - Wik monthly total income, subject to a maximum
WA RF AR E B = KA S contribution of HK$2,000, HK$3,000 or HK$4,000
7% 2,000 7T ~ & 3,000 7T 3k B based on the internal grading system. The Group's
¥ 4,000 7T © B B BT 2B contributions to the MPF Scheme can be reduced
F) 5 B B 5 02 1R 2 51 2 T 08 N by the Group'’s voluntary contributions forfeited in
W RBEA ARERD AEE R relation to those employees who leave the MPF
sRiES T A B R - 722024 Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
FR2023F12 A3 B EEAE At 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no
AARBAEZU R - material unutilised forfeited contributions.
HPEAMHNEENS  A&H For Mainland China employees, the Group
A RBETT P EA M & L% participates in the employee pension schemes
M [ 200 8 Ho I & 8 B3R IR administered by the respective local government
HE - AKEREEHF SNBSS authorities in various locations in Mainland China
EmtEEESEETSAMK - M where the Group operates. The Group makes
EMBNINREREANEBNA monthly contributions calculated at a percentage
EERRKREHNELE - of the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and
the respective municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of
the employees of the Group.
10 RYE AL 10 FINANCE COSTS
2024 2023
BETF T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
IRITEFOFE T T Interest expenses on bank loans 42,897 41,350
R AR R B A Interest expenses on loan from
B H the controlling shareholder 1,182 -
HEREMNFE N Interest expenses on lease liabilities 86 16
44,165 41,366

216 BB AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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11 BRABASHERFERS
BEHmAAL

(a) EFM=

11

SENIOR EXECUTIVES" EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

ERES FRHEERE
As director As management
& EE
R H RS
RENFIS
Salaries,
housing
and other
EZHWE  allowances, 2024
Directors’  and benefits ®e ok
fees in kind Bonus Total
ERFT  EEFR  EEFR | ERFL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTIEAE(TE) Mr Wang Fei (Chairman) - - - -
BENMHEE Mr Huang Wensheng
(BIFfE) (Vice Chairman) 60 2,779 - 2,839
BRFLAE Mr Chen Yu' 28 498 - 526
FHITES Non-executive Directors
BEREL Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
BXRTHRAE? Mr Zhou Tianxing? - - - -
BRI L Ms You Li2 - - - -
HAEAR A Mr Yang Jingchao? - - - -
BT Independent Non-executive
s Directors
ERmEE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 = = 250
RIGEE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
2RIBE4E Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 - - 250
998 3,277 - 4,275
1 72024 F 3 A 29 H BHE AR R 2024 F 1 Resigned as the General Manager on 29 March 2024 and
6 19 BB EMITES resigned as an Executive Director on 19 June 2024
2 1R 2024F 6 19 BEZTAIENTES 2 Appointed as the Non-executive Directors on 19 June 2024
3 1K 2024F 6 A 19 BEEIEITES 3 Resigned as a Non-executive Director on 19 June 2024
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"N SkiTBEASMEkhERS N

B2 89 @RI AL (

==
]

=] )

SENIOR EXECUTIVES" EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

(a) EBME (8) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
ERES ERERE
As director As management
HERFE
RE A2 EE LA
RENF=
Salaries,
housing
and other
EERS allowances, 2023
Directors’  and benefits %e HokS
fees in kind Bonus Total
BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHEE(FE) Mr Wang Fei (Chairman)’ - - - -
BRIELE(FE)? Mr Yan Zheng (Chairman)? - - - -
BEXMRE Mr Huang Wensheng
(BI£f)’ (Vice Chairman)? 50 1,244 595 1,889
BRAEE(BILE) Mr Chen Jie (Vice Chairman)* - - - -
BFEE Mr Chen Yu 60 1,539 595 2,194
FBITES Non-executive Directors
BEFLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - _ 60
B E Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -
BT Independent Non-executive
EE Directors
EMBLE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - - 250
RIBELE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
|| Ep e Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 = = 250
1,020 2,783 1,190 4,993
1 MR2023F2 A28 AR TEREFERNTE 1 Appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 28
= February 2023
2 7202352 A28 BEHEE B RAITES 2 Resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 28
February 2023
3 202362 A28 AEZERBIERE RIT 3 Appointed as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on
2 28 February 2023
4 7202342 A28 HEHERIFERAITES 4 Resigned as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on 28

218 (=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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ERTBEASMERhERS

)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(b)

ERN@RIALEE)

M= (1&)

ERES  ZFERBEE/LR
RIS EMBARMNERMEMHREY
AR M A RS B o

EREERE : ZFHAEEHE
I N 5% 18 55 5% P 4R 4 O B At AR %
MBS

RARAEERBREEZNERE
BB #1888 T (2023F + B
1888 L) EAERE—HERE
R L EERSE  BIER
HEEFARAZEESNER -

hERsSHMEHNBAL

FRAEAEEFHRSHAREERE—
%(2023%F : MB)EF - HFMFS
FHIN LiERE @R FREKRIEEA
(2023%F : =) FARAEFTHITR
RENHFHRSNREENFEFMFE

LUNN

11

SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i)  Asdirector: The amounts represented emoluments
paid or payable for the services as a director of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

(i)  As management: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Group.

(iii) An amount of HK$1.88 million (2023: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
certain management services which include the
provision of directors to the Board of the Company
pursuant to a management agreement.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees of the Group for the
year included one (2023: two) Director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note (a) above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining four
(2023: three) highest paid employees who are neither a
Director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000

e - BENHAERL Salaries, housing and other allowances,
AR B W F and benefits in kind 6,066 3,159

RRBFIFTE Contributions to retirement benefit

R scheme 96 96
B Bonus - 2,530
6,162 5,785
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1M SRTBAEMERDERES 11 SENIOR EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
B BB RIA L (58) AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(b) hERSMENBA AL (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
(£8)
M EE Emoluments Band 2024 2023
AE A #
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
75 # 1,000,001 7T — &% 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 1 -
75 # 1,500,001 7T — /&% 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 3 2
7B # 2,000,001 7T — A% 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 = 1
(c) SREBAS (c) Senior management
JERtFARARIESMEIRAENNEEE Details of the emoluments payable to senior
HBWT management of the Company by band are as follows:
e sEE Emoluments Band 2024 2023
AE AZ
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
7% 1,000,001 7T — &% 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 3 =
7% 1,500,001 7T — &% 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 3 3
7S ¥X 2,000,001 7T — &% 2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 = 1

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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12 FRSHSTH, (Hi%) 12
AR ERIHOBENT

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
SRR Current tax
ENRULS ) Hong Kong profits tax 371 402
FR A 1 SEFT 1S AR Mainland China corporate income tax 5,551 6,300
RN TRIR PR1S T (a) Mainland China withholding tax (a) 1,460 (17,476)
PR IR Macau taxation 3,136 2,960
10,518 (7,814)
AIFERE Adjustment in respect of prior years
ARG Hong Kong profits tax (9) -
R IE Macau taxation (40) 7
(49) 7
EERIE Deferred tax
EREZENEER Relating to the origination and reversal
o) of temporary differences (3,300) (1,841)
FrEfixH,(ER) Income tax expense/(credit) 7,169 (9,648)

(a) H2012F 128 ERBAERET
AREH AR BERAR B
02FE  AEEBELERE
AL E 20081 A1 BERNADE
FEARKE209(E THERENTE
RATEHAOARE 2038 T(E
B4 B 26038 7T) - KEEH
BERMER AEBHEAER
2023F 12 A BEEXNEER
ERMEEERBED il EATE
RATEHAOAREK 2038 T(E
BEH)BH2,30087T) °

BB TS TR B E N 5T FE s 1 a7
7 R R AR A 1S R FH 2 8.25% [ 16.5%
(2023 4F : 8.25% [ 16.5%) Ie L4 -

(a)

XIB was transformed from a limited liability
company to a joint-stock limited company in
December 2012. The Group had recognised a
withholding tax payable of approximately
RMB20.93 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$26.03 million) in 2012 for the Group’s share of
the capitalisation of XIB’s retained profits after 1
January 2008 of RMB209 million. After considering
the advice from a tax specialist, the Group
believed that they have no further obligation to
pay and have sufficient and reasonable ground to
reverse the withholding tax payable of
approximately RMB20.93 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$23 million) at 31 December
2023.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
8.25% and 16.5% respectively under the Two-tiered
Rates of Profits Tax (2023: 8.25% and 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.
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12 FREMZE, (%) (58) 12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(Continued)
qﬂﬁquﬁ%%%ﬁ)ﬂ;‘?%EWﬁ%ﬁ’é Mainland China corporate income tax has been
%Pq@ﬁﬁ%%&ﬂ&ﬁ% 25% (2023 %F = 25%) calculated at the rate of 25% (2023: 25%) on the
AT © estimated taxable profits for the year.
PR W%WIE’\JW%’AE&&Q%% Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 5% and 10%
= [4 SE ~nhp
Bk B ZK;%@?E}}%'JEJEH&;%\H%)\ on dividend income received from subsidiaries and
i)5% 5 10% B R Bl P TR AR AT1S AR o investees incorporated in Mainland China respectively
when these subsidiaries and investees declared
dividend.
5@?:]557’1%\\!]?’\]%%%KEIJ%,E:’E/-’\ELWJEEM@E\%W& Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the
FTS BRI IRITR R - estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Macau.
%,:E@IE\EZHjéﬁ@%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ;‘?%@ﬁﬁﬁ%%j@iﬁ’g Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
IR - profit at applicable tax rates:
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BR 158 A1 A Profit before taxation 94,865 29,761
1% 16.5% (2023 FF : 16.5%) Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
BYE PTG B R 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) 15,653 4,911
FE(RE & A R AR Tax effect of share of results of
M E associates (21,582) (8,542)
L Ath B 4 [ 1 [R) B R Effect of different tax rates
M & in other jurisdictions (1,499) (265)
BN TRIRATIS T Mainland China withholding tax 1,460 (17,476)
AR A Income not subject to taxation (9,797) (4,063)
ARINBH S B Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 19,849 10,808
AERTRIBNTEHTE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,436 7,482
{2 FA AR AR BE R Utilisation of previously
Op Sz =] unrecognised tax losses (3) -
FIEGIEEEES Adjustment in respect of prior years (49) 7
BEVEMEN Income tax at concessionary rate (165) (165)
Hth Others 1,866 (2,345)
Frisfisd, (%) Income tax expense/(credit) 7,169 (9,648)

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iRR 13 DIVIDEND
2024 2023
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
RERBBBETIRE No final dividend proposed after
2024 FE AR E the reporting date
(20234 : B ol) (2023: 9 HK cents) - 53,753
SRR 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREXRBFZBEEHE2024F 12 A
BNBEIEFEARRARREEN B
8,769.68 71 (20234 : 513,940.987T)
MERNEETRDOMNEFHH
597,257,252 (2023 F : 597,257,252) K% &t

s
= o
Ea

AEBAFEREFEHEDHTAS
SEENHRD - RN EREFENEK
BEANESRERNRNER -

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2024 of HK$87,696,000
(2023: HK$39,409,000) and the weighted average of
597,257,252 (2023: 597,257,252) shares in issue during
the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current year and prior year and therefore
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share for the years presented.
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15 W% - s sk 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
FH - #15 -
BERR
EIMAE
HHE Fumniture,
BRET BB fixtures, office HE
Buildings held Computer  and computer Motor B%
for own use Software equipment vehicles Total
EETT BEFT BB BB EETT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
R2023F1A10 At 1 January 2023
PR Cost 21,021 2,850 8,206 2,583 34,660
23HE Accumulated depreciation
KR ERE and impairment losses (9,729) (2,850) (5,265) (2,230) (20,074)
EHFE Net book value 11,292 - 2,941 353 14,586
HZ2023F12A318  Yearended 31 December
IHEE 2023
HRE %A Opening net book value 11,292 - 2,941 353 14,586
EHEE Translation differences (93) - (1) - (94)
B Additions - - 25 1,008 1,253
TEEHE Charge for the year (629) = (906) (88) (1,623)
= Disposals = = (13) = (13)
HREEFE Closing net book value 10,570 - 2,266 1273 14,109
7202312318 At31 December 2023 and
2024F 1518 1 January 2024
AR Cost 20,901 2,850 8,309 3,556 35,616
ZithhE Accumulated depreciation
RRERE and impairment losses (10,331) (2,850) (6,043) (2,283) (21,507)
REFE Net book value 10,570 - 2,266 1273 14,109

224 (=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RO RIS IR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

B &6
WEER
ERfE
= Furniture,
BERET EMEH  fixtures, office "E
Buildings held Computer  and computer Motor ag
for own use Software equipment vehicles Total
EEFT  EEFL BETR EETR AEFR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
220245128310 Yearended 31 December
LEE 2024
BEmFE Opening net book value 10,570 - 2,266 1,273 14,109
ERES Translation differences (93) - (1) - (94)
R Additions - - 956 333 1,289
REEHE Charge for the year (624) - (1,219) (318) (2,161)
HE Disposals - - (33) - (33)
HAREFE Closing net book value 9,853 - 1,969 1,288 13,110
72024128318 At31December 2024
R Cost 20,770 2,850 8,115 3,849 35,584
ZHE Accumulated depreciation
KR ERE and impairment losses (10,917) (2,850) (6,146) (2,561) (22,474)
REFE Net book value 9,853 - 1,969 1,288 13,110
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16 FPHIESE 16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELTHER
T b AR HESR
Leasehold B AN
lands and Properties
land use leased wE
rights  for own use Total
BEFT  EETFT  BEFR
HKs’000 HKs’000 HKs’000
#2023 1 A1H At 1 January 2023 12,861 767 13,628
NEZHE Charge for the year (280) (249) (529)
F22023412HA31HK  At31 December 2023 and
20241 F1H 1 January 2024 12,581 518 13,099
N Additions - 1,081 1,081
RFEHEH Charge for the year (282) (387) (669)
7"2024F12831H At 31 December 2024 12,299 1,212 13,511

ARG BN ARRET D A K ERE
RREEENRHEREREAEB18ET -

AN ARR—RE2EWMBRAEER
EREARAR ([RERE]) RFRA
EERI—hHEEHE - FETHEEMN
BHENF BN EE34(d)

FAMBEERSRHAEABE48ETT
(20234 : B 268 TT) ©

e —

1288 L (20234 - B HS9B L)
MR EAEEE S K 1218 77t(2023
F:8%528x) KREBAAKREHE
BEMEREZ 2N  HEHZTER
MERRL - HEEETSAEERE
R o

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Group entered into two new leases during the year
and recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
amounted to HK$1.08 million.

In addition, Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. (“Fujian
Minxin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement with Vigour Fine during
the year. Details of the related head lease and sublease
are set out in note 34(d).

Total cash outflow for leases was HK$0.48 million (2023:
HK$0.26 million) during the year.

Lease liabilities of HK$1.28 million (2023: HK$0.59
million) were recognised with related right-of-use assets
of HK$1.21 million (2023: HK$0.52 million) at 31
December 2024. The lease agreement did not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessors. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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16 {EHiES=E (18)

AEBEBOTHERLESE B
SAKEELETEANEERUZA
[REMRESESHELE - AWK
EEEREHAKETE MRS
BEVHBEATTEE ©

AEEDNHEERR B METHE - A
AR IEHEE NG TR LR -

BEAN - AR B R Y S A AR AR I 88
BABRLEEREMHHERNBERNE(LEE
BRIARIBREE NEITER LEEE -
FAABZEHESFIF(20234F « ) o

(@) MHEE LKt HbfE R KREF
BT :

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued])

The Group has termination option in the lease which is
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The termination option held is exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

The Group has assessed at lease commencement date
that it is reasonably certain not to exercise the
termination option.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option, upon the occurrence of either a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of the lessee. During the year, there
was no such triggering event (2023: Nil).

(@) The net book value of leasehold lands and land
use rights are analysed as follows:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000

EEBRFBMELN Leases held in Hong Kong
50 F LA Over 50 years 3,366 3,371
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 8,933 9,210
12,299 12,581
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17 REWMFE 17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2024 2023
BT T JBEMT T
HK$’000 HKS'000

NE At fair value
R1A1H At 1 January 172,329 173,342
NEEEE Fair value losses (6,981) (1,013)
R12A31H At 31 December 165,348 172,329

AEENREVERZRAES TN
T~

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their
carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
EEBREED Leases held in Hong Kong

10F£504F Between 10 and 50 years 119,000 120,000

EEBAIMFEELD Leases held outside Hong Kong
10F £ 504F Between 10 and 50 years 46,348 52,329
165,348 172,329

—XMBRBRFAERNAFEE 11,900
BT (20234 « B ¥12,0008 7T) LR
BB —IHIE B ERNEERLR 2023
F12A3MHEARBREEERTE * A
HEEERBNEBRRTE - RREEE
BRERNBUE G ZINE MENEERZLY
REERENBET  UHEEZROFE
HEERR

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$119 million (2023:
HK$120 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the Insurance Authority pursuant to the
relevant regulatory requirements at 31 December 2023.
The requirement to place in the custody of the
Insurance Authority the title deeds in respect of that
investment property was rescinded during the year and
the title deeds were returned to Min Xin Insurance.
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17 &M% (18)

(a) RFERIE

TEEEEMEI%EE‘J&@%%E ey

MEEAF SN 2024F 12 A31 B AT
B - jﬁﬁﬁé\;‘%ﬁﬂ%#&%ﬁﬁﬂ%nsﬁ
F/&ﬂ?’ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁm%m_i& N EZRE
D R EFESENERIIZER
ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂgﬁm!E&%%IE&

)EO

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of investment
properties held by the Group measured at 31 December
2024 on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique.

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’'000
REMHLAFETE Recurring fair value measurement
E=ZZER Level 3
A B i Mainland China
Pﬁﬁ%%% Commercial properties 39,724 45,119
FEMZE Residential properties 5,316 5,715
B Car parks 1,308 1,495
46,348 52,329
BB Hong Kong
[EEXUES Commercial properties 119,000 120,000
165,348 172,329

REBEFERAFEINRNABEREY

EREARFER T%E’J%——r?&ﬁio
FRALRERN R FERELE =FHNE

%o AEBNBR RN ELEBHNZW
HARBEANRAFERBSSFHRENE

% o

(b) RFERELE=FHER

i

EYERIBY BETGE > F—KF
BeNGERELENERAT
2024 F 22023 F 12 A31 HH A FEE
EE o NEED EB T HET 1aa‘rm
;@EA%E E2MAMLERRMMEES

All the investment properties carried at fair value held
by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on their
fair values at 31 December 2024 and 2023 by an
independent professional valuer, namely Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The Group
has discussed with the independent professional valuer
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results at
each annual reporting date.
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17 =R&EM* (18)

I

(b) ”FERBE=FREN
(&)

URFPBERMEEENE - BUREE
MERN DN FERARABEREET -
ERMERAREe MRENBOTES
o EAGEEFNEZERNABRY
BoRAE: (\BEMENERNMEENT
4258 T 45/E (20234F : 425[F F 45
B) mHSAEENTEETRARE
S2IEAR®E7770(2023F : AR
S2tE AR 76 7T) 5 (i) BAME AR
ZE28[E(20234F : 28E) r mH AR
e REGEEMAR®E6307T (20234 -
AR®63070) : Ki)VTFEWENER
(b= A15/E (2023 : 15F) > MIFAMH
S AREFIRARKE27570(2023 1 A
R#2975T) ©

\

URAEBHEEMEN R FERERA
WABREET ° & AERZE&KE M
REMNFETE - ERGEFENNE
DARAEREEAERLES5E (2023 ¢
sE)RTSARSEFEFRE®K33.1T
(2023 : B%33470) - A EFEHEE
MMeERERLEEFR BEMHAHEESRE
LLREMR o

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of commercial properties, car parks and
residential properties located in Mainland China were
determined by income capitalisation approach. The
current use is the highest and best use. The significant
unobservable inputs applied in valuation measurement
are (i) capitalisation rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.5%
(2023: 4.25% to 4.5%) and monthly market rental
ranging from RMB52 to RMB77 (2023: RMB52 to RMB76)
per square meter for commercial properties, (ii)
capitalisation rate of 2.8% (2023: 2.8%) and monthly
market rental of RMB630 (2023: RMB630) per unit for car
parks, and (iii) capitalisation rate of 1.5% (2023: 1.5%)
and monthly market rental of RMB27.5 (2023: RMB29)
per square meter for residential properties respectively.
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to
the capitalisation rate and positively correlated to the
monthly market rental.

The fair value of commercial properties located in Hong
Kong was also determined by income capitalisation
approach. The current use is the highest and best use.
The significant unobservable inputs applied in valuation
measurement are capitalisation rate of 5% (2023: 5%)
and monthly market rental of HK$33.1 (2023: HK$33.4)
per square feet. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate and
positively correlated to the monthly market rental.
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17 j:ii'lfli:m%(ma)

18

(b) ~FER
(nlE)

RIBBE=FREN

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)

FRNZERA T EEBE=ZSFNEH The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair
AT value hierarchy during the year are as follows:
2024 2023
freng HENE  HEDE \
Residential B B%  Commercial  Residential By g
properties  Car parks Total  properties  properties  Carparks Total
B¥TT  BETr  BRFr | BETT BEFr BEFr BT
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R®ATH At 1 January 5715 1,495 172,329 165,815 5920 1,607 173,342
ATEER Fair value losses (399) (187)  (6,981) (696) (209) (112) (1,013)
B12A318 At 31 December 5,316 1,308 165,348 165,119 5715 1,495 172,329
FRMGABARY  Total unrealised fair value losses
[KfeEE- 78 for the year recognised in
REZNRER the consolidated income
LYEEBELE statement as part of
"Other losses - net”" (399) (187) (6,981) (696) (205) (112) (1,013)
YN 18 ASSOCIATES
2024 2023
BETF T BT
HKS’000 HKS’000
BEKA Cost of investment 972,776 972,776
BRI N & Share of post-acquisition profits and

Ei 2wl other comprehensive income,

R B WA B net of dividend received 5,988,953 5,871,987
bE H 75 B Exchange adjustments (612,411) (413,384)
JE(G & EFE Share of net assets 6,349,318 6,431,379
BT —REZ N F](b) Loan to an associate (b) 10,717 10,717
M12A31H At 31 December 6,360,035 6,442,096
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18 Ht=nal(f&) 18 ASSOCIATES (Continued])

232

EIEES

@ AEBERBEEARNKRESTN (@) The Group's investments in associates are analysed
™~ below:
Ef&KE Hitr 4
XIB Group Others Total
BETTT BYETTT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2023%1 818 At1 January 2023 6,505,079 45,191 6,550,270
] Translation differences (178,551) (559) (179,110)
eI AR R Share of profit after taxation 65,947 1,541 67,488
BB (B1R),/ &5 (Loss)/profit before taxation (114,117) 1,682 (112,435)
FrgHiEe,/ () Income tax credit/(expense) 180,064 (141) 179,923
ERRRE Dividends paid (44,966) (15,393) (60,359)
ATERES (TER) Increase in fair value reserve
bl (recycling) 76,180 - 76,180
NEERES (TURR) (Decrease)/increase in fair value reserve
CRiA) /#4n (non-recycling) (4,180) 24 (4,156)
ﬁfiﬁ?% i Dilution of interest
A BRRNERL Loss on dilution recognised in
BEER consolidated income statement (15,724) - (15,724)
1@7\\[% SR EE R Release of exchange translation
NEERES reserve and fair value reserve
(AIfE3R) BM (recycling) 7,507 - 7,507
R2023F12A318% At 31 December 2023 and
20241718 1 January 2024 6,411,292 30,804 6,442,096
EHER Translation differences (198,346) (681) (199,027)
e F Share of profit after taxation 129,996 808 130,804
BRAR AR A Profit before taxation 84,726 745 85,471
FEHER Income tax credit 45,270 63 45,333
DNFERES (TER) Decrease in fair value reserve
s (recycling) (6,305) = (6,305)
NFERES (TAER) Increase in fair value reserve
$Em (non-recycling) 1,225 26 1,251
FE1E—H ik D A6 Share of movement in capital
BRGESE reserve of an associate (8,784) = (8,784)
20245128310 At 31 December 2024 6,329,078 30,957 6,360,035

EEBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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18 H=E235)(48)

(b)

HER AN EEHZEE QR
BRE YHREER 2ERE
PR E R SRR

AEEELEXBHRE AT RER
THEARBESRMEE  LEF
RERERS RBITHEF(GEE
25) °

EiRR2023F3 KA E =

BITHRMIEBRERA([EENE
B) - ABURR R AT E IR AR
B #)8.8543% 1 # E T 4
8.689% ° N5 & At 7R 2023 F &
BR1S — N MBS B B A B 1,572
St WWIHIREAREEEH = 2022
F12 A31 BIENEEZRE M
BRI REREE20229F12 A31 H
I EBZIGEVBER (AR
NHFEAEENEFTER)FE -
N5 B[R] B 5 B OR A IR A A R
Z#4)8.689% EIEREEREED
TRafEES  BEAREERATE
EBEfftE:S (TAER) & LB
2,998 BT EZARERE G -

RABHEERTHIEEFRE
B APl E P 5 2 R 49 8.689% Ak 7
MEREFRESE  YRAR
EERMNERRGR S ARAGHE

BRENHEROME N EER
RITEERFEN - At AR

ARRERGEBROB/ER
BB E DR - AR ERAY
BaBEERRELVBERELE
APARER G FHAARR ©

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

The loan represented the Group’s investments in
that associate and was unsecured, interest free
and had no fixed repayment terms.

Bank deposits placed by the Group with associated
financial institutions in the normal course of
business are included in cash and bank balances
(Note 25).

XIB completed the issuance of new shares to third
parties to enlarge its share capital in March 2023
(the “Capital Contribution”), which resulted in the
dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB
from approximately 8.8543% to approximately
8.689%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a one-off
loss on dilution of approximately HK$15.72 million
in 2023 based on the audited consolidated
financial information of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the audited
consolidated financial information of XIB for the
year ended 31 December 2022 as adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies. The
Group also transferred directly to retained profits
in total of approximately HK$29.98 million from
statutory reserve, general reserve, capital reserve
and fair value reserve (non-recycling) attributable
to the dilution of the shareholding in XIB to
approximately 8.689%.

The Company had evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its
approximately 8.689% shareholding in XIB after
the completion of the Capital Contribution and
considered that the Company will continue to
have the ability to exercise significant influence
over the financial and operating policy decisions
of XIB in accordance with the terms of the
constitutional documents of XIB. Accordingly, the
Company considered that XIB will continue to be
classified as an associate of the Company and the
Company's interest in XIB will continue to be
accounted for using the equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs.
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k=138 (18)

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued])

(e) MTHEIBEFEMN20234F12 A 31 (e) The following list contains the particulars of those
H}% 2024512 31 BEAEE® associates at 31 December 2024 and 2023 which
XENEEFERTENBE R principally affected the results or assets of the
Al hEERBE2EHARIELTA Group. All of these entities are unlisted corporates
AR AR EEAAR o and are accounted for using equity method.

HRREELY ]
Place of - ERTRARRAHE 5
incorporation ELESS Particulars of issued ARENENER

N Name of associates and operations  Principal activities and paid up capital Group's effective interest

2024 2023 2024 2023

BERE Directly held

EPEREAROERLE  XamenntemationalBank Co,Ltd.  FEARRME  BOREEER | 1704638R | 154966 £ 8.689% 8.689%

FENEAT and it subsidiaies (ARH (ARH
1704637) | 154966 70)
The People’s Banking and 17,0463 15,496.6
Republic of China investment | million shares |  million shares
holding | (RMB17,046.3 | (RMB15,496.6
million) million)
EFERFARAERAF  Luso nternational Banking Ltd. B Br| 30sHEER | 261AER 49023% 42611%
(ame | (2
3057 %1%87)
Macau Banking 3.05 million 261 million
shares shares
(MOP3,050 (MOP2,610
million) million)
ERBITERAT Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. B BT | 21848R | 2084ER 6.0501% 6,0501%
(3% (5
65.71871%7%) | 657875 T)
Hong Kong Banking 2,218.24 22184
million shares |  million shares
(HK$6,577.87 |  (HKS6,577.87
million) million)
EFERRERRAT  Xamen nternational Investment e REZR | car19838R | 64193 ER 8.689% 868%%
Limited (B% (A%
64.1953%7) | 641953 6E70)
Hong Kong Investment 6,419.53 6,419.53
holding | million shares |  million shares
(HKS$6,419.53 |  (HKS6,419.53
million) million)
kA Indirectly held
BEEBRERRDAY  MinFaith Investments Limited ” B REmK 1008 [ 1008 40% 40%
(B%100;) [ (B%1007)
Hong Kong Investment 100 shares 100 shares
holding (HK$100) (HK$100)
(1)  UEBERARWIEREEY . BERTREKE (1) This associate is not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and

REMBEES - BELBEDRANEEF
BEREHAGENAGEAEELRE BED
0.4% 52.0.9% ©

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

its network of member firms. Both the aggregate net assets and
profit before taxation attributable to this associate represent
approximately 0.4% and 0.9% respectively of the Group’s
consolidated totals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

( EXB2ARMBEREE (XK (f)  Summarised financial information of the material
SERMNSFTTERES - WK associate prepared in accordance with the
BER A HRERMBRHEBELYR) # accounting policies adopted by the Group and
BT reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed
below:
EiREE
XIB Group
2024 2023
BEF T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
BENT TR IEEAE Gross amount of the associate’s
BE Assets 1,213,131,717 | 1,231,341,064
BfE Liabilities (1,120,280,010)| (1,136,514,367)
IR AE Non-controlling interests (20,241,156) (21,277,706)
IR e e i Equity attributable to shareholders 72,610,551 73,548,991
B% 8. (i) Dividends (i)
2019 FRAR S Final dividend for 2019 (1,643,360) (1,698,775)
2020 FAREARR B Final dividend for 2020 (479,845) (496,026)
2021 FRERE Final dividend for 2021 (905,290) (935,817)
(3,028,495) (3,130,618)
MEFRRRSENEEFE Net assets after dividend proposed 69,582,056 70,418,373
LONE Total revenues 42,405,992 46,604,858
SRS TR A Profit from continuing operations 1,496,095 758,963
Hip2me Other comprehensive income 100,437 986,431
2HKEERE Total comprehensive income 1,596,532 1,745,394
HIEZAREER Reconciled to the Group's interest
B N\ B R in the associate
HRREE & QA BURAR 518 Net assets after dividend proposed
WEEFE by the associate 69,582,056 70,418,373
REBR A R Group's effective interest 8.689% 8.689%
[EEEESFE Share of net assets 6,045,985 6,118,652
gy Dividends
2019 FREARR E Final dividend for 2019 160,449 165,860
2020 FAREARR B Final dividend for 2020 42,487 43,920
2021 FARHR S Final dividend for 2021 80,157 82,860
REMBREN Carrying amount in the consolidated
FEE financial statements 6,329,078 6,411,292

(i)

ZEBBEAEZE 20195 + 2020 F K 2021 F
12ANBEILEFENRRRE  HEERS
BMEBREEAREMESBOIE - KA
A2 A 2023 FURER 2022 FFARHAM B - EIR
WASIREZE 2023612 A31 BLEFEMNE
AR 8 °

(i)

These amounts represented the proposed dividends for the
years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 that were
subject to approval from the National Financial Regulatory
Administration Xiamen Office. The Company has received the
final dividend for 2022 in 2023. XIB did not declare any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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18 Ht=Z 18 (88) 18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(9) IWIEERIERAEE R RAES (9) Aggregate information of associates that are not
BRHEEAT individually material is disclosed below:
2024 2023
BT T JBMF T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
iR e BRI IE Aggregate carrying amount of individually
(EhEwNE oL lNE] immaterial associates in the consolidated
EOERERIERGES financial statements 30,957 30,804
REEELZEHERT Aggregate amount of the Group's share
T3 & IE4ERE of those associates’
BB SR Profit from continuing operations 808 1,541
Hf 2wk Other comprehensive income (655) (535)
PHE AR Total comprehensive income 153 1,006

19 BAFEFAEMEBWEMRN 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ERIEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
®1H1H At 1 January 630,093 606,943
B Addition 7,202 33,538
k= Disposal (17,696) =
RAFERFEES CRAIEIR)  Fair value losses recognised in
RN EEER fair value reserve (non-recycling) (75,098) (10,388)
M12H831H At 31 December 544,501 630,093
BRATFE At fair value
TR ERE Equity securities listed on
EEBHRFF(a) Shanghai Stock Exchange (a) 491,760 580,296
Bk A2 B Stock Exchange 29,371 26,696
R EAM—AR Subordinated Additional Tier 1
BEATHE Capital Securities listed on
B 22 BT (b) Stock Exchange (b) 23,370 23,101
544,501 630,093

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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19 BRRFESFAHMMEZEBHREMH

EREE (18)

AL B E U FRE R A FEFT AEAM
PEHBSEARLEFRERAREE N
mEFH -

(@) MEBEBEEZSH EMHRESE
FEREAEEFENG6,795 BAvE
REARRIR MR E ¢ BE
48,909 & 7T (ZE 4 A R 46,003
Br) (20234 : 5878% 57,4288
T HEEHARES225587T) ©
FEHEFN 2024 F 2 202312 A31H

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

The Group designated these investments as fair value
through other comprehensive income as these
investments are held for strategic purposes.

(@) The equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange comprised an amount of HK$489.09
million (equivalent to approximately RMB460.03
million) (2023: HK$574.28 million, equivalent to
approximately RMB522.55 million) for the
investment in 67.95 million shares of A-Shares of
Huaneng held by the Group. The particulars of

WEENT : Huaneng at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as
follows:

at it B TEXE ARENARER

Place of Principal Group's

ARER Company name incorporation activities effective interest

ELBEENRD  Huaneng Power International, AR EAE BENEEEN 0.43%

BB Inc. (876,795 BRRARR)

The People’s  Generation and sale (approximately

Republic of China of electric power 67.95 million

A-Shares)

KABR VAR FE SRR R
ItEmBEEREEARE N EH
MERAKRTSEREOTBRME
oo At NEBER2024F 12 A
31 )R B YR E A 2 MUk s A FE
R VWEAFEBES (OB
IR) WO F R A T EEB) IR E
ERFRIEEE - R AR2FE
12023 FE 3t B W EHAN 6% B
EEBREEMHEME Btk I
A RRAREEEMFAEN
R AR R A M BUE B N E A
Bpne o

(b) KBEHM—BEARTEAERE
1T 2022F 10 A THRES R
300 B X TTHERTAMNAFE -
AEB B R FERKE D BEWA 24
EXT(SEEHNBEE1878 L)
(20234 : 24 B0 SELBE

4 —

1888 7T) °

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China
exempted the Company from withholding tax on
the gain from disposal of certain A-Shares of
Huaneng by the Company in prior years.
Accordingly, the Group has not provided any tax
provision against the fair value movements
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) at 31 December 2024. However,
the Company has paid 6% value-added tax and
other surcharges on the disposal gain in 2023 and
expects that the Company will be subject to value-
added tax and other surcharges when disposing of
its A-Shares of Huaneng in the future.

(b) The Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities represented the fair value of the
subscription amount of US$3 million capital
securities issued by CYB in October 2022. The
Group has received the distribution income of
US$0.24 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1.87 million) during the year (2023: US$0.24
million, equivalent to approximately HK$1.88
million).
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20 REEEANGIENEFRE 20 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
2024 2023
BT T JBMF T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
B X FT_ ETAY Debt investments listed on
EFIZE (a) Stock Exchange (a) 181,479 152,005
EHERHTAIIEERE ()  ECLs recognised (b) (317) (150)
181,162 151,855
A BRI 302 () Transferable certificates of deposit (c) 74,420 -
255,582 151,855
JrE 1 2 Interest receivable 1,220 4,319
256,802 156,174
R2024F 12 A31H » NEBIREHEK At 31 December 2024, the Group's debt investments at
A ENEBREY REER - BT amortised cost were unsecured, had fixed maturities
HAH /20255 £ 20335 - EEFF X from 2025 to 2033 and fixed interest rates ranging from
B1.75% % 7.2% (20234 : 1.75% % 1.75% to 7.2% per annum (2023: 1.75% to 7.2%).
7.2%) °
() ZBBEERIEBRIEN2023F6 A7 % (@) The balance included an amount of HK$108.73
1712 2033 2| BBV R B8 £ %8 1,400 million (2023: HK$109.41 million) for the
BETHARERNEFNKRE - investment in the supplementary capital bonds
TEAB 10,873 8L (2023 F : & due 2033 issued by LIB in June 2023 in the
¥10941 Bon) RERESFFES subscription amount of US$14 million and an
62,800 L (FEL BB 2287T) amount of US$2,800 (equivalent to approximately
(2023 % : 51 BT SEABE HK$22,000) (2023: US$0.51 million, equivalent to
396 8B 7T) ° approximately HK$3.96 million) for the bond

interest receivable.
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20 REEMARGFENEHIRSE 20 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

(48) (Continued)
(b) EREREENRNEAEBEES (b) The movement of impairment allowances
ERREEGHEHHNT recognised at amounts equal to 12 months ECL

was as follows:

2024 2023

BT T JBEMT T

HK$’000 HKS'000

®1A1H At 1 January 150 -
EEFERRRERD ECLs recognised in current year's

JEHEERE income statement 167 150

M®12831H At 31 December 317 150

() AlEZEEFZEIEZHRPEH Wiﬁj%’:F (c) Transferable certificates of deposit represent the

RITBETHMARESTENTR certificates of deposit in Renminbi issued by banks

=R EE?J?Z\%Z 15% % 2.35% in Mainland China which carried fixed interest

K ASH 2027 FHH o rates ranging from 2.15% to 2.35% and will be

matured in 2027.
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21 RiRBHNEENKERE 21 INSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
FHRBETER BREREARE
ARAELRE SHBER
- REMET REREZ
X FRAES Estimates of Risk
BXHD Excluding presentvalie  adjustment for
Loss loss of future non-financial a5
component component cash flows risk Total
BEFL BEFL AR BBFT BBFT
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BEE Opening assets - - - - -
EREL Opening liabilities (886) 27,79 (124,629) (5972) (103,754)
ROBE1A1H At 1 January 2023 (886) 27,729 (124,625) (5972) (103,754)
RBIA Insurance revenue - 191,128 - - 191,128
RehEER Insurance service expenses
BRERERLM Incurred claims and other
REREER insurance service expenses - - (58,066) (4610) (62,676)
EREREREY Adjustments to liabilities for
] oz incurred claims - - (3132 (3,784) (6,916)
Bisthiax Loss on onerous contracts (2,106) - - - (2,106)
RBlEELE Amortisation on insurance
B acquisition cash flows - (91309) - - (91,309)
(2,106) (91,309) (61,198) (8,394) (163,007)
ke Insurance service result (2,106) 99,819 (61,198) (8,394) 28121
HENRBAND Finance expenses from
SIBER insurance contracts issued = = (5,565) = (5,565)
BREREN Total changes in the consolidated
2HleE income statement (2,106) 99,819 (66,763) (8,394) 22,556
Reng Cash flows
ehRE Premiums received = (207,704) = = (207,704)
RENEARRE Insurance acquisition cash flows = 100,799 = - 100,799
BREZREMRR  Claimsand other insurance
RBER service expenses paid - - 43304 - 43304
Rengss Total cash flows - (106,905) 43304 - (63,601)
RUBENANA  At31 December 203 (0992 20643 (148084) (14366 (144799)
BRAE Closing assets - 4327 (2,536) (330) 1461
HREE Closing liabilities (2,99) 16,316 (145,548) (14,036) (146,260)
R203%12A318H At 31 December 2023 (2992) 20,643 (148,084) (14,366) (144,799)

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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21 RigBHNEENEE(18) 21 INSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)
ABRRELER BREZEEE
LRC LIC
ARAERE FHERR
BENET fE kR
Ha%EA Estimates of Risk
BxH2 Excluding presentvalue  adjustment for
Loss loss of future non-financial an
component component cash flows risk Total
BETT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE Opening assets - 4,327 (2,536) (330) 1,461
LR Opening liabltes (2992) 16,316 (145,548) (14,036) (146,260)
R2024%1R18 At 1January 2024 (2,992) 20,643 (148,084) (14,366) (144,799)
RBMA Insurance revenue - 187,383 = = 187,383
ReBREER Insurance service expenses
BRERERL Incurred claims and other
REREER insurance service expenses = = (50,874) (3,900) (54,774)
EREREREN Adjustments to liabilities for
K incurred claims - - (4,771) 3,702 (1,069)
BiEAmEL Loss on onerous contracts 1,401 - - - 1,401
REUERERE Amortisation on insurance
acquisition cash flows - (94,058) - - (94,058)
1,401 (94,058) (55,645) (198) (148,500)
R EE Insurance service result 1,401 93,325 (55,645) (198) 38,883
HENRBANN Finance expenses from
S8R insurance contracts issued = = (4,681) - (4,681)
e RERY Total changes in the consolidated
2HeE income statement 1,401 93,325 (60,326) (198) 34,202
BenE Cash flows
ehRE Premiums received - (202,535) = - (202,535)
RBBER RS Insurance acquistion cash flows - 92,221 - - 92,21
BREZREMRR  Claimsand other insurance
RHER service expenses paid - - 55,266 - 55,266
RenEes Total cash flows - (110,308) 55,266 - (55,042)
R2024E128318 At 31 December 2024 (1,591) 3,660 (153,144) (14,564) (165,639)
BRAE Closing assets - 20,373 (15,222) (1,704) 3,447
BRER Closing liabiliies (1,591) (16,713) (137,922) (12,860) (169,086)
#2024 128318 At 31 December 2024 (1,591) 3,660 (153,144) (14,564) (165,639)
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22 BREEHEENEE 22 REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
FHRBETHS BEERELS
Remaining coverage component Incurreq claims component
ARALRE SEBRER
Eat BEM G RIESR R
. BxEs Estimates of Risk
WEELHA Excluding present value adjustment for
Loss recovery loss recovery of future non-financial a5
component component cash flows risk Total
BB BETr BEFT BEFL R
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BaE Opening assets - (1432) 12,269 901 11,738
Bak Opening liabilities - (9252) 395 3 (8,821)
RUBFIAIR At1 January 2023 - (10,684) 12,664 937 2917
BXNERRRE Allocation of reinsurance
PR premiums paid - (25452) - - (25452)
EBRATELNEE  Amounts recovered from reinsurers
BOEREZER Recoveries on incurred claims and
EERR other incurred reinsurance
REER service expenses - - 9,719 79 10438
BEZENED Changes in recoveries for past
HE claims - - (1,229) (@n) (1,69)
BEaON Loss recovery on onerous
WEEXR underlying contracts and
e adjustments 104 - - - 104
104 - 8,494 248 8,846
SEERRANNER  Netexpenses fom reinsurance
it contracts held 104 (25452) 8494 248 (16,606)
REERRALY Finance income from reinsurance
B contracts held = = 21 = 261
GREGEN Total changes i the consolidated
2907 income statement 104 (25452) 8,755 48 (16,349)
i Cash flows
EfRE Premiums paid - B3N - - B30
BUBRAFKED  Amounts received from reinsurers
BRERENEE relating to incurred claims - - (3423) - (3423)
Renees Total cash flows - 3372 (3423) - 19,949
RABENANE  At31 December 2023 104 (12,764) 1799 1,185 6,521
BREE Closing assets 15 (4,099) 17,024 1,179 15,019
BRAE Closing liabilities 89 (8,665) n 6 (8,498)
RBE1A31E At 31 December 2023 104 (12,764) 17,996 1,185 6,521

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RO RIS IR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

HBRRELHD BREZESD
Remaining coverage component Incurred claims component
KRR HE FHERR
£ {E) RENET fERAE
B%H2 Estimates of Risk
WEREH 2 Excluding presentvalue  adjustment for
Loss recovery loss recovery of future non-financial an
component component cash flows risk Total
BETT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
aEE Opening assets 15 (4,099) 17,92 1179 15,019
Bak Opening liabilities 89 (8,665) n 6 (8,498)
ROMETRIR Al January 2024 104 (12,764) 17,996 1185 6,521
EXABRERE Allocation of reinsurance
iy premiums paid - (24321) - - (24321)
EBRATEDNSE  Amounts recovered from reinsurers
BOEREZER Recoveries on incurred claims and
A ERE other incurred reinsurance
RBER service expenses - - 7,164 464 7,628
BEZENEED Changes in recoveries for past
#E claims - - (286) (41) (697)
BEaLH Loss recovery on onerous
WEELR underlying contracts and
HE adjustments n) = = - n
(71) - 6,878 53 6,860
SEERRANNER  Netexpenses fom reinsurance
FE contracts held (1) (24,321) 6,878 53 (17,461)
REERRANY Finance income from reinsurance
B contracts held - - 531 - 531
FABEEN Total changes in the consolidated
2907 income statement (71) (24,321) 7409 53 (16,930)
i Cash flows
ERRE Premiums paid - 26,579 - - 26,579
BUBRAFKED  Amounts received from reinsurers
BRERENEE relating to incurred claims - - (3,203) - (3,203)
Renees Total cash flows - 26,579 (3,203) = 23,376
R20245128318 At 31 December 2024 33 (10,506) 22,202 1,238 12,967
HRAE Closing assets - (4,210) 20,971 996 17,757
BRER Closing liabilities 33 (6,296) 1,231 242 (4,790)
R20245128318 At 31 December 2024 33 (10,506) 22,202 1,238 12,967

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

243



244

RO RIS IR E
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 EESRENEFEMRELN 23 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

=2 AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000

INEEERET Micro credit business
EREX Guaranteed loans 118,158 86,093
HHRER Secured loans 21,165 61,481
HRRERER Pledged and guaranteed loans 10,032 10,467
TR HRRERER Secured, pledged and guaranteed loans 2,930 3,077
EEERENEFPER Credit-impaired loans to customers 152,285 161,118
EE B RVE R IR S Credit-impaired interest receivable 6,986 7,222
159,271 168,340
B ZEH Impairment allowances (148,014) (153,238)
M12A31H At 31 December 11,257 15,102
RNEBDHAED EERENERIEH The Group has initiated litigations against all the
ERARRBFHFR - HEE2WHRA - EFAE borrowers of credit-impaired loans. At the reporting
B A BUSAESERXE  WERE date, all litigations have obtained effective legal
THEITIERT documents and are in the process of performance or
execution.

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RO RIS IR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The movement of impairment allowances recognised at

(a)

ZeHEABEFPREBEAEERED
#:364.3 8 77 (2023 4F : #5975
B mMERRERSEEE 2328
70 (2023 F : ¥ 569.1 L) AKX
RNFEEFIRHOBEINBRERBIB B
2044870 (2023 4F : B 28468
TC) HOFEREE o

R2024F12 831 H  BREEEA
R 4,906.7 &7t (5EEM5,216.6
Bir) (2023F : AR¥ 556528
T EEBK 611628 L) RER
EEIB AR 384798 T (ZEB
¥ 4,0909& 70) (2023F : AR¥E
4191187 - EEB%4,60687T)
MEEERENEFE R ERF
ERERANMELRR - FRER®
ZE B REHREINREEES
#204.4 8 7T (2023 5 © 75 % 284.6
BL)  c AEBBERUZEDEE
EZSFHHBAEERBRHARK
1,058.98 L (HEB1,125.787T)
(2023F : AR¥E13741 8L &
/8% 1,510287T) °

B(EEERE) MBEEENEEH N amounts equal to lifetime ECLs (credit-impaired) was as
™ follows:
2024 2023
BETF T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
M1A18 At 1 January 153,238 170,056
ME 5 ERE Translation differences (4,992) (4,906)
EEFEEREK Charged/(credited) to current year's income
k(528 (a) statement (a) 1,812 (2,845)
ZIHEEERER Write-off of credit-impaired
BIAR% (b) loans principal (b) = (5,964)
ZIHEEERER Write-off of credit-impaired
FEUS T 2 (b) interest receivable (b) = (257)
H At Other (2,044) (2,846)
MW12A318 At 31 December 148,014 153,238

The amount represented a net balance of a reversal
of impairment allowance of HK$232,000 (2023:
HK$5,691,000) due to settlement of the outstanding
balance of HK$3,643,000 (2023: HK$5,975,000) by
customers and an additional impairment of
HK$2,044,000 (2023: HK$2,846,000) for the year.

At 31 December 2024, there are credit-impaired
loans to customers and interest receivable with gross
carrying amount of RMB49,067,000 (equivalent to
HK$52,166,000) (2023: RMB55,652,000, equivalent to
HK$61,162,000) with impairment allowance of
RMB38,479,000 (equivalent to HK$40,909,000) (2023:
RMB41,911,000, equivalent to HK$46,060,000) being
pledged by properties of borrowers. An impairment
allowance provided was HK$2,044,000 (2023:
HK$2,846,000) for these related loans during the
year. The Group has the rights on these properties to
repay these remaining outstanding exposures of
approximately RMB10,589,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,257,000) (2023: RMB13,741,000, equivalent to
HK$15,102,000).
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23 EIE8RENEFamMNER 23 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
=2 (48) AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (Continued)
(b) AEBER2023FEZIEERER (b) In 2023, the Group wrote off loan receivable and

K EWH SRR E 6221 BT - interest receivable with a gross amount of
EERBTERAERBARE HK$6,221,000 as there was information indicating
MBRE B RNEBRBUEETH that the borrowers are in severe financial difficulty
MEFABNEEERENER and there was no realistic prospect of recovery
{§: BEBERNTFERE/NIRER after the Group has taken legal action against the

=203 FERHEMNERER K debtors to recover the credit-impaired loans. The
FEWF BB & 8% R8N 1L & Hl contractual amount of loans and interest
L receivable that were written-off in 2023 are still

subject to enforcement activity.

24 ATV EEBRBERVIRNEA 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

[=1ES THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BAFE At fair value
ETRIEE S Equity securities listed on
B 32 FR Stock Exchange 302 281
RSB Principal-guaranteed structured
R1TFER(a) bank deposits (a) 88,307 605,646
BELZEwD) Partnership (b) 12,736 =
FELETEREES () Unlisted investment funds (c) 11,247 20,516
R12A31H At 31 December 112,592 626,443

246 (=4 E AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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26 RV EEBERYIRNER
&z (18)

—
(Y]
~

(b)

ERSEATRANME THRITR
THEE R RRAEEERIT
FROANARE83068 T(HEN
718,831 8Ir) (2023 4F : AR
55,109 & 7T £ B 475 % 60,565

b —

Bir) e

7R2023F 12 A31 HRRESES
% > Bl E IR &R EITRIRA
EEMRTERNAFESED
}\E%B,sm%ﬁ(ﬁ@%’ﬁ%ﬁ%
14,860 8 7T) °

FHSEATRANMKLINER
AECERSBEERSEEM
(M) REREGRLE(BRE
) ([6RBELEDHAFE &2
HEEREREGEZAH(EFE
BB TEEREREESS
BEE(EREG®)N2024F9A
%EJ4 Binag BUHEBAe
BARBRIABLE -

BREBRERFARNESELERS
HEARKE1,208 T (ZEHB

#1276 B L) - thE B R

ﬁgi@gﬁm19.z3%o 20244 12
1B GBLCETETMNFTER
é BEENFEEARE
98 L(EELYH BEK662028

H\O\ﬁﬂ}}éjﬂ

)o

EReBEALAEEERE &EPI
Nt RBRIELTEREES -
EREEESD %IJLA%TE&AE%
HAE - AEERFANEBERERS
REMNFELTEREES BER
BE126 8 XL (FENBEIT7IE
JL) °

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The amount represented fixed-term and principal-
guaranteed structured bank deposits of
approximately RMB83.06 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$88.31 million) (2023:
RMB551.09 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$605.65 million) issued by certain banks in
Mainland China.

The carrying amount as of 31 December 2023
included the principal-guaranteed structured bank
deposits issued by XIB and CYB respectively with a
fair value of approximately RMB135.21 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$148.6 million).

The amount represented the fair value of a limited
partnership established in the Mainland China,
namely Zijin Mining Chantou Haixia Qihang
(Fuzhou) Equity Investment Partnership Enterprise
(Limited Partnership) (the “Partnership”). Fujian
Minxin, as a limited partner, entered into the
partnership agreement on 26 September 2024
with (among others) Fujian Local Industrial Equity
Investment Funds Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership), pursuant to which all the partners
agreed to establish the Partnership.

Fujian Minxin has made its capital contribution of
RMB12 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$12.76 million) to the Partnership during the
year, representing 19.23% of the total capital
contribution of the Partnership. At 31 December
2024, the Partnership has not acquired any new
investment and the net assets of the Partnership
was RMB62.29 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$66.22 million).

The amount represented unlisted investment
funds subscribed by the Group in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. These investment funds are in
United States dollars and Renminbi respectively.
The Group has redeemed an unlisted investment
fund in Hong Kong with a redemption proceed of
US$1.26 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$9.77 million) during the year.
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25 IRENRITET

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2024 2023
BT T JBMF T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
RERAEEED Cash and cash equivalents
e &FEFEA=MA  Cashand bank balances with original
AR ERIT4E1E maturity within three months 572,021 414,062
JrE 71 B Interest receivable 2,308 1,353
574,329 415,415
TEHTF K Term deposits
FEIEEEBB =M A  Term deposits with original maturity
EHER over three months 450,389 309,652
JrE 1 2 Interest receivable 20,989 13,618
471,378 323,270
B R SR G 8 EHTF 5L Pledged and restricted term deposits
BB REEEERE Term deposits placed pursuant to
R E MR insurance regulatory
TEHATE R (b) requirements (b) 87,320 103,320
B8 E BT () Pledged time deposits (c) 227,630 234,800
FEUFI S Interest receivable 22,967 16,422
337,917 354,542
Re RIRITHETFEEE Total cash and bank balances 1,383,624 1,093,227

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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(a)

RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Re RRITEFOHEH Bt (@) The maturity profile of the cash and bank balances
N was summarised as follows:

2024 2023

BEFT BT T

HK$’000 HKS’000

F—FA Within 1 year 1,383,624 623,544

ZHR—F More than 1 year - 469,683

1,383,624 1,093,227

M2024F12A31H - REBERR
ITHETFAFERZE 0.001% (HEKRE)
% 4.7%(2023 £F : 0.001% & 5.42%)
;I_/E\ °

=} [\

AREER2024F12 A31 HHNE S
MBTHETFEEARETENR
M AR®1038738 L (ZED
110,433 87T) (2023 4F - HAA
R#¥ev6178 T SENBE
76,5098 70) - 82 TR & MIRTT
EHFEBUNETRETAE -

Bank balances of the Group carried interest at
market rates ranging from 0.001% (savings
account) to 4.7% (2023: 0.001% to 5.42%) per
annum at 31 December 2024.

The cash and bank balances of the Group included
RMB denominated balances of approximately
RMB1,038.73 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$1,104.33 million) (2023: approximately
RMB696.17 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$765.09 million) at 31 December 2024. The
remaining cash and bank balances are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars.
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25 IREKIR(TETF (18)

(b)

BERBREEETRMATE  XH
EEMNEERBRELERRBET
DRABEE1,600BTTHES IR
SXETREFRAERBRERA
A BEBRBITFRIEREER
Koo Ak BEERERMR2023F 12
A3BTEREBEB —XBRITUIMRE
¥EEREFRAERRERAT]
AEFIEE1,6008 TN TEHT
HUAREBHEHETE - RREEE
Br2024F 2 ABCEEERE S
EEBER DB 11,6008 THE
U [REEEEREFERERR
BRAR | BEBERBIRITFRAR
T ZTHTFARER2024F8 A
BB @] -

BERE IR 2024512 A31 B
SR8 BT (ZENEK
1,787 870 ) K B 16,9458 70(2023
F R 8 BT FEOB
#7878 ME 69458 7T)
RERTTERIAF A RPIRBRE
SERFIENETHRE -

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance
Authority, Min Xin Insurance shall maintain at all
times a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16
million in the name of “Insurance Authority
account Min Xin Insurance Company Limited” in
bank deposits as a statutory deposit. Accordingly,
Min Xin Insurance has placed fixed deposits of
HKS$16 million in the name of “Insurance Authority
account Min Xin Insurance Company Limited” with
a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment of such
requirements at 31 December 2023. The
requirements to maintain at all times of its funds
of not less than HK$16 million in the name of
“Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” were rescinded in February
2024 and the term deposits were released on
maturity in August 2024.

Min Xin Insurance has also maintained bank
deposits of MOP18.41 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$17.87 million) and HK$69.45
million (2023: MOP18.41 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$17.87 million, and HK$69.45
million) at 31 December 2024 for fulfilling certain
requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance.
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25 IRERIRTTHETF (88)

(c)

7202412 A318  BIEARQT]
FIIMEREENHE  —R2
ENBARICERE = F R
FH AR 20,0008 7T (ZELNH
¥ 21,2638 7T) (2023F : ARM
20,000 8 7T © £ {E %75 21,980
BIT) TERBITRRR A —
RDIT WEZDTHEEUBRK
RITAZ=EANERERE -

BEEE—REBITHAZAEARR
AN—XRE2EMBRARERTIEA
SHRRBHENBRRARAR
mANEBEREAENESR B
202412 A31H » Z2EBMEA
AIEFEA—EE11,500870(2023
F B E1,5008 0) MERTTE R
VERERERBENERR -

26 THEBE

==

MN2024%F12 310 HREMENTH
WENFGA ORISR mT

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(@)

At 31 December 2024, a wholly-owned subsidiary
has pledged its three-year bank deposit of RMB200
million (equivalent to approximately HK$212.63
million) (2023: RMB200 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$219.8 million) to a branch of
the lending bank in Mainland China for the
issuance of a standby letter of credit in favour of
the lending bank pursuant to the requirements of
the loan facility entered into by the Company.

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of
credit issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of
a reinsurance company that has entered into the
Non-life Reinsurance Facility with a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, that wholly-owned
subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of HK$15
million (2023: HKS$15 million) as a collateral for the
standby letter of credit at 31 December 2024.

26 LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2024, the remaining contractual
maturity profile of the present value of the minimum
lease payments was summarised as follows:

2024 2023

BETFT HBETFoT

HK$’000 HKS'000

E—FR Within 1 year 1,051 278
ZR—FEIRME More than 1 year but less than 2 years 864 308
ZRMEERLRESF More than 2 years but less than 5 years 248 -
2,163 586

M2024F12A31H BARHEHEERE
B INAE gL EEHFIEA23EE6.2
B (20234 : 23[E) o

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities was 2.3% to 6.2% (2023: 2.3%)
at 31 December 2024.
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27 RITERR

27 BANK BORROWINGS

2024 2023
BT M T
HKS’000 HKS'000

REASRITER Long-term bank loans

A @) Secured (a) 198,597 198,580

BIR R ERITE R Revolving and short-term bank loans

Hik# () Secured (b) 285,880 223,530

R () Unsecured (c) 274,020 433,460
559,900 656,990
758,497 855,570

REBPATAMIRTTERGABEEE -

AR 5 SR ERE P A E BRAE K
TTIERB B BBt T

B8R

All of the Group’s bank borrowings are in Hong Kong
dollars. The maturity profile of the bank loans based on
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

facilities was summarised as follows:

2024 2023
BETFT BT

HK$’000 HKs'000

E—FN Within 1 year 758,497 656,990
ZR—FERAMENRN More than 1 year but within 2 years - 198,580
758,497 855,570

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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I {H=xh

e (EE)

IRITE R AN TR 2022 F [
H— KRBT = FHEFE T
REHERNREEE -

ZTEBREFAERBITRAFRHR
MO —R2TEENERERSZ
EARARABTERELNIEK
B ZERERERARRRE
BN —KR2EWE QR H
B MR2024%F 12 A31H  ZME
NAIBEERE=ZFHERITHERA
R #20,0008 T( S BE X B &
21,2638 7T ) (2023 : A R ¥
20,000 8 7T © 5 {E 475 21,980
E7T) FTEKFETRFBERNHA—

B

2 E HE R B B E R R &t
o R2024F 128310 BRE
FZEAE2.7E(20234F : 2.7E)

RIFZBRBEENGRR - BER
ERENEEREHATEER

SR A AL A B BT RAM
519 b4 RO B a5 - ISHEAE A
e

27 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

The bank loan represented the outstanding
balance of the three-year fixed-rate term loan
obtained from a bank in London by the Company
in 2022.

The term loan was secured by a standby letter of
credit issued by a branch of the lending bank in
Mainland China for the fulfillment of the
Company’s repayment obligations. The standby
letter of credit was applied by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China. That
subsidiary has pledged its three-year bank deposit
of RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$212.63 million) (2023: RMB200 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$219.8 million) to
the branch of the lending bank in Mainland China
at 31 December 2024.

The term loan bore interest at fixed rate and the
effective interest rate was 2.7% (2023: 2.7%) per
annum at 31 December 2024.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, if FIDG
ceases to directly or indirectly hold more than 51%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of the
Company during the tenor of the loan facility, this
will constitute an event of default.
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27 R

(b)

I {Hxh

T (E8)

ZLRITETIA—RE2ENB AR
BBEMREENE ARERMEE
HH - ZEFYER2024F12 A
BNEMEAFELNEESNE T
(2023 4F : #8378 TT) ° 122024
F12A318 ZUWENLFEES
7 1 21,0008 JT(2023F - B
24,0008 7T) °

ZERITEROF BIEEBRIT
REFENMBEZEFTE 1120244
12A318 ERFEF XN F58
[EZE6/E(2023F : 6.2EE7.2E) ©

IR 7% L SR 1T 18 SRR AV IR 5R
ARRAEREREREREA
PRRXLEIRTT B TR RR R A A 1 (
WEZKER) BAERRACET
IR D 35% H) B 5 1 2w N T
BYHARBTE(EREZLH
B)BEEEFINEN

ZURITERAEER - FIBIR
BERRITRAERBNBZTE -
MN2024%F12 A31 8 » BEFF=R
BN T47E E63E (20234 :5
EE76E) -

IR 7% L SR 1T 18 SRR E D IR
ARRAEREREREREA
X LEIRTT S KRR E A A A 15 (
WEZKER) BERRRCEIT
PRARA DI 51% B B 25 4 58 N
BYHARBTE(ERERLHE
®) BT eE S -

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

27 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

These bank loans were secured by the self-use
office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$8.11 million (2023: HK$8.37
million) at 31 December 2024. The fair value of the
property was HK$210 million (2023: HK$240
million) at 31 December 2024.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the
effective interest rates ranged from 5.8% to 6%
(2023: 6.2% to 7.2%) per annum at 31 December
2024.

Pursuant to the terms of these bank loan facilities,
the Company shall procure FIDG to maintain
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 35%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of the
Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company during the tenor of
these bank loan facilities.

These bank loans were unsecured, bore interest at
a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
and the effective interest rate ranged from 4.7% to
6.3% (2023: 5% to 7.6%) per annum at 31
December 2024.

Pursuant to the terms of these bank loan facilities,
the Company shall procure FIDG to maintain
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 51%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of the
Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company during the tenor of
these bank loan facilities.
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28 ERRARTRGTK

NNDNFR2024F8A30H B EE %]
BRRERBEE((REER]) - BUHE
ERERAARRGRE LR ABE141E
THEER L IFAEERREREE -
HAPR B 2024 F9 A1 B £ £ 2027F 8 A
31 ALk e ARARRFRIEM—ER/RE
RAEM78008 T ZERBR=(EAR
WNEIER R (EE -

MEEZRFEIZL3EABBRITEER
Bin1.6%stE - M2024512A31H
ERFEFERA6E -

FRABREERNEBANE L BB
1M8E T MmMN2024F12 A31H &
FEMFBAEBEET -

28 LOAN FROM THE CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDER

The Company has entered into a shareholder’s facility
agreement (the “Shareholder’s Facility”) with Vigour
Fine on 30 August 2024, pursuant to which Vigour Fine
has agreed to make available to the Company an
unsecured and uncommitted revolving facility of up to
HK$140 million from 1 September 2024 to 31 August
2027. The Company drew down a revolving loan of
HK$78 million during the year and such loan will mature
and is repayable within three months.

The Shareholder’s Facility bore an interest of 3 months
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.6% and the
effective interest rate was 6% per annum at 31
December 2024.

The related interest expense of the Shareholder’s
Facility was HK$1.18 million for the year and the related
interest payable was HK$0.11 million at 31 December
2024.
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29

EIEES

HRFE P IS e

BEAMSHRAABREINEREZRIES
5 0 T8 8 B % 16.5% (2023 4F : 16.5%)
Ko R B g A5 TE A B % 259% (2023 4F ¢
25%) ER 8B e - ERETEREF AT
EMHEAEREHTEAERY N
NEIBEEFTSHRS KB — TR 5 B 4 )
—RERRELRE - AR GELEFERE
EHREMSHAETAKIE -

EEFTISHEE,(AFE)MZ et
I

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2023: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) was summarised as follows:

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
R1A1H At 1 January (62,849) (49,340)
MEH ZRE Translation differences 962 883
TEFEERKRLEN Deferred income tax credited to
EEFTIS L current year's income statement 3,300 1,841
AT EFEER CPAER) Deferred income tax credited/(charged)
(FRBR),FNBR IR E P57 to fair value reserve (non-recycling) 16,233 (16,233)
R12A318 At 31 December (42,354) (62,849)

BEFTBREETYAEABREFER
B AR 3B R K FE RR B 0 B B3R M LA
M IEIERR - 12024412 A 31
B - REERERE A AKE AR R ER
Hiom A AR 1B 408 15,9218 70 (2023 4F -
#)7E¥5.8118 ) - MR BWEPRE -

EEBR /A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the
related tax benefits through future taxable profits is
probable. At 31 December 2024, the Group did not
recognise tax losses of approximately HK$592 million
(2023: approximately HK$581 million) that can be
carried forward against future taxable profits and have
no expiry date.
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29 IRFEPRISTHR (18)

R PR IE AT (G BUE R B M
(52— U0 1) 5 B S0 A1) B 21

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the

N same taxation jurisdiction) during the year was
summarised as follows:
RIEFRISHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
MEFERER BENTH BRATE BRATE
RENEEH RIRRE FARMREREN FRERIEN
Accelerated tax (HR18) SREELTRAR  CHEENTESEE
depreciation Proposed dividend  Fair value adjustment  Fair value adjustment
and revaluation of of associate for financial assets for financial assets ag
investment properties (Note 18) measured at FVOCI measured at FVPL Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
BETL | BRFT | BETL | BN | BETFR | BETr | BEFR | BETL | BETFR | BETL
HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000
R1A1H At 1 January 18,795 20,651 29,265 30,140 16,233 - 286 297 64,579 51,088
ERZE Translation differences 1 - (955) (879) - - (8) @ (962 (883)
FEERERR Credited to current year's
2% income statement (3,146) (1,856) - - - - (114) By (3,260) (1,859
ELTERES (Credited)/charged to
(TR fair value reserve
(%)% (non-recycling) - - oe233)| 16233 - - 63| 16233
R12B318 At31December 15,650 18,795 | 28310 29,265 - 16,233 164 26 | 44124 64,579

ZZUFFIR Annual Report 2024

257



NSEIE e
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 RIEFRSIR (§8) 29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
RIEFTSMEE Deferred income tax assets
et & H8 ag
Accrued expenses Tax losses Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
BETrx BEFTL BEFR BETT BETT BEFL
HKS$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS 000
W1A1H At 1 January (319) (319) (1,411) (1,429) (1,730) (1,748)
EEER (Credited)/charged to
BaEE current year's
(28),/ Nk income statement = - (40) 18 (40) 18
R12A831H At 31 December (319) (319) (1,451) (1,411) (1,770) (1,730)
EETABERBEEEMSHEEREGE The following amounts, determined after appropriate
% THSEEGEAHBERILRANT offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
-~ are shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
BESHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 42,354 62,849

258 (=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited




30

RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SaRKiEEE

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) AR (a) Share capital
2024 2023
REGEE BT T B8 H BT
No. of shares HKS$’000 | No. of shares HKS'000
BRI R KA Ordinary shares, issued
) AR and fully paid 597,257,252 1,715,377 | 597,257,252 1,715,377

RIBCRFUEDIDE 135K » AR E
BRI IR EE -

C WHEARRNRRAG EREREA
EHREE - AT BRRNE AR
AMBEERAR SR -

BBBFA AR BB KE IR KX
g8

(b) GEREHMSERARE
il ZEEEE
AERBEZEERR

- TRBEESREBRECRIE
T RS R RVAEBIEURE EF
BENTASEAEERES ©

- —REECREEBRE IR
MK EEESTIRE RN
S5 (B4 [2012] 2058 ) s ~7 89— A%
- MEBERAFIBS R
BE 32 - W 1E & RR R ME 2 4 AR BB
5 FLATRA M R A B E R
B8 -

- - EBESRABRBE SR
IR R 185 4R 2R B 1
EERE -

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not
have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
shareholders of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i]  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

- Non-distributable reserve set aside by an
associated financial institution from its retained
profits in accordance with the Financial System
Act of Macau.

- General reserve established and maintained within
shareholders’ equity of an associated financial
institution pursuant to Caijin 2012 No. 20
“Regulation on Management of Financial
Institutions for Reserves” issued by Ministry of
Finance. The general reserve was established
through the appropriation of income to cover
unidentified potential impairment losses.

- Regulatory reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.
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30

EIEES

aRKFEEE (&)
(b) fEfEEMSRAE(18)
lii] Bi@téfkEE

BREESDRRBENELILE—R

I mR

liii) BRbEEE
CRNE AR DR R

- 20011 A1 BURISEREF R
REBE RN MEENEERA
SEEGHEKBENAZHE
E -BEMIARBEBEOHAFFEFE
SRR AEREEE

- BERXFRLEWMEBLRRREMK
AR R B A XA T AR B 0 ) B
wWEEANL

- EREBEARETEBEEEMN
B 2 A2 IR 4 0 2 BB R A M
DELES- TR

livl 2 FEREE (TER)

NHERES (UER) BRREHHR
FBEEAFEFAREE KT ER
BEHREN R A FEZBFHE R
MRRERIAS )

vl 2 FEREE (NUER)
NHERES (TAER) 8RR 2%
AEAEEREAFEFAEMEER S

AAENBREREN RS AT EZEFR
(FURARREE R AT )

EEBR /A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

lii] General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.

liii] Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

- goodwill and the excess of the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of business combination and the investments
in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

- capitalisation of retained profits and reserves for
the purpose of increasing the share capital and
capital reserve of associates and their subsidiaries;

- share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in their
subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control.

(iv] Fair value reserve (recycling]

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt
investments measured at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

(v] Fair value reserve [non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated as measured at FVOCI (less
related deferred tax charge) held at the end of the
reporting period.
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RO RIS IR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERNHES (8)

(b) RBENUESRARE(1E)
lvi) THEREEGFEE
HEEEEMREECREHEEERME
TERYEETOBAKREYWE BN
EAMATEEDFE-

vii] INEFTERFBEE
INEITEREESBIEBREBINTBE AR
FEtE RNRMPBEREREARNFE|RE
MEEENAERY =% -

THRIE

(a) ENAGE

MR2024F12 A31 B » KEBWHE K
BT

30 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

31

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi] Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vii] Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising on translation of the

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.

COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2024, the Group had capital
commitments as follows:

2024 2023
BETF T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000

BELBREE Contracted but not provided for
— REME - investment properties 176 182
— W% - MBS NERE - properties, plant and equipment = 469
176 651

(b) FREAIE

BIEEEREN2024F9 A26 B3]
A BmE - N2024E12 8318 [
EECERABLEBNAZARKE

i —

2,800 BT (5EX)BH 2977 87T) °

(b) Investment commitment

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement entered into by
Fujian Minxin on 26 September 2024, the commitment
of capital contribution to the Partnership was RMB28
million (equivalent to approximately HK$29.77 million)
at 31 December 2024.
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32 KEHELH

B A

32 OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENT

MR2024F12 8318 AEERETA]
TS B 48 2 FE B T A AR 2R R UK ER B SR K

As lessor

At 31 December 2024, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

MENRET : cancellable operating leases as follows:
2024 2023
BT T BMF T
HK$’000 HKS$’000

i E Land and buildings

E—FR Within one year 9,660 8,197
£ In the second year 9,601 9,073
£= In the third year 8,039 9,048
Epikes In the fourth year 6,252 7,674
EBRF In the fifth year 4 5,760
33,593 39,752

AEERBKEHELHFHEREREY
% HERFIZLENHEN XS
— RDIEERFART - BE—F2N\F

MHEHAREERRANEERESE -

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Group leases its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of terms and conditions, including tenures
ranging from one to eight years and fixed rentals

throughout the tenures.



RO RIS IR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 REIRERESRTE 33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) PRI AARNMEEESFENIRE (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

CRE), TR P EEHER net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations

2024 2023

BYEFT BEFT

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

BRE AT F Profit before taxation 94,865 29,761

HE Adjustments for:

YN E Share of results of associates (130,804) (67,488)
BREMEE-RATEE Fair value losses on revaluation of

BB investment properties 6,981 1,013
RIERREAREERR Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets (231) -
TE L Depreciation and amortisation 2,830 2,152
EEEREDN Charge for/(write back of)

RPEFRRELHE impairment loss on credit-impaired

RUREEE loans to customers and

Mk (Bm) interest receivable 1,812 (2,845)
BEENATENERRE Impairment loss on debt investments

REEE at amortised cost 167 150
—REE DAL Loss on dilution of interest

WEENER in an associate = 15,724
HEME  BEREE Losses on disposal of property,

BB plant and equipment 33 13
SN Interest income (47,366) (38,843)
EEERENEFER Interest income from credit-impaired

FEMA loans to customers (2,110) (5,603)
FIESH Interest expenses 44,165 41,366
BRATEERBRR Net realised and unrealised gains

SREEMEERK on financial assets at fair value

AERWEFH through profit or loss (9,130) (16,575)
B EEFE Net exchange losses 31,828 6,276

RBELEHEN Changes in working capital:
RBEHEELEN Increase in insurance contract assets (1,986) (1,461)
BRIERANEEEMN Increase in reinsurance contract assets (2,738) (3,281)
EEERENEFEN Decrease in credit-impaired loans to

REKFISRD customers and interest receivable 3,577 5,975
HipEWEE - AR Increase in other debtors,

RiE&EM prepayments and deposits (17,730) (2,174)
RBREDHAEEM Increase in insurance contract liabilities 22,826 42,506
BRRAKNEERD Decrease in reinsurance contract liabilities (3,708) (323)
HA IR R AT B A3 Increase in other creditors and accruals 865 11,682

BEEHRS (Rd),/RAFE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations (5,854) 18,025
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33

mE xRtz (18)

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) "NEEBAMREEFMFIELES (b) Changes in the Group'’s liabilities and pledged
BNREREHEFERONEEF term deposit arising from financing activities,
g BEIRENIEIRE S EN including both cash and non-cash changes
2024 2003
ERRRER
Loan gA ER
fifiEn  fomthe HERE  EHFR EMRS SR HERE  EEEM EARS
Bank  controlling Lease  Pledged  Dividend ] Bank lease  Pledged  Dividend 58
borrowings shareholder liabilities term deposits payable Net  borrowings liabilities ~term deposits payable Net
BEFr  EEFn B%Tn ABETn BEFn BTn| BEFn B¥Fr B¥Tn BT EETn
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
MAA At 1 January 855,570 - 586 (233,964) - 622,192 692,594 833 (233,034) - 460393
HERSR Changesfrom financing
29 cash flows
DEERRR Loan obtined from the
B3 controlling shareholder - 78,000 = 5 5 78,000 - - - - -
DEHaER Bank loans obtained 960,210 - - - - 960,210 | 1,606,200 - - - 1606200
BEROER Bank loans repaid (1,057,300) - - - - (1,057,300 (1443241) - - - (31
THEMERAE  Other borroving costs paid (457) - - - - (457) (6%0) - - - (690)
R Lease payments - - (849) - - (849) - (47) - - (247)
XfkE Dividend paid - - - - ) (37%) - - - e men)
HERLR Total changes from
288 financing cash flows (97,547) 78,000 (849) - (53,753) (74,149) 162,269 (247) - (1,671) 90,351
FReEY: Non-cash changes:
EXZR Translation differences - - - 7170 - 7170 - - 6570 - 6570
ERTUHRE Increase in lease liabilites
Tis& e from entering into new
figaf lease during the year - - 2426 5 5 2426 5 5 o - -
JEiAIE Increasein
#m interest receivable - - - (7,000) - (7,000) . = (7500) = (7.500)
Biika Dividend declared - - - - 53,753 53,753 = = = 71671 71671
Efpfamma Amortisation of other
37 borrowing costs 474 - - - - 474 707 - - - 707
SREEYEE Total non-cash changes 474 - 2,426 170 53,753 56,823 707 - (930) 767 71448
R12A318 At 31 December 758,497 78,000 2,163 (233,794) - 604,866 855,570 586 (233,964) - 622192

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RABHRX %

BRI AER A M R B By B SN
AEBAELTEBBENETHEKREE

ki

(a)

RHWMEWT -

MN2024%F12 8318 REBETF
RER - ERFEBIR(E2IMAEARE
BB S S BB ) MTERAE RS
#51,201 BT (2023 4F : 751 21,863
B WERFROFEA—KE
¥FEGFTE  ASEBRFANAL
FREE AT B U A BB 956 BT
(20234 : B¥87&ETT) °

REARN XEE—XR2EMBA
A AR B & 2 Bl RS A0 IR B o Uk
BB HENERBERASR
B HEA22 8 T (20234 ¢ 7B #5453
Bn) HWEREEARNEEARE
ME=FEFMEFNARMIK
BNERER - ZMBRF IR
FAR— KRB L om@EE N %
BITAEEMEZINEEEE

1,694 & 70 (2023 F : B 11,7428
JC) ©

MiERRN2024FIAEBER
BEEEN—FKWBAREFMBERKR
BERBAER QR (TEFERKR])
RIMN—IRBER - B EFIE
RABRENRRRZGERERE
REAMTRES - KEARK1538T
(FENEE1638T) - HERR
RERREMERZNREER
AREBET(FENEE1008
JT) °

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the normal
course of the Group’s business are as follows:

(@) At 31 December 2024, the Group had deposits
with XIB, CYB and LIB, all are associated financial
institutions of the Group, totalling HK$512.91
million (2023: HK$218.63 million). These deposits
carried interest at normal commercial rates and
had generated interest income of HK$9.56 million
(2023: HK$8.27 million) to the Group during the
year.

(b) A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
underwrote insurance policies with gross
insurance premiums less discounts of HK$4.22
million (2023: HK$4.53 million) to the associated
financial institutions of the Group at prices and
terms not less favourable than those contracted
with other third party customers of the Group
during the year. That subsidiary also paid
commissions of HK$16.94 million (2023: HK$17.42
million) to an associated financial institution for
business referred to the Group during the year.

() Min Xin Insurance entered into a service
agreement with Xiamen Mintou Technology
Service Co., Ltd. ("Xiamen Mintou”), a subsidiary of
FIDG, pursuant to which Xiamen Mintou agreed to
provide office system and information technology
development services at a consideration of
RMB1.53 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1.63 million) in September 2024. Min Xin
Insurance paid the service fee of RMB0.93 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1 million) to
Xiamen Mintou during the year.
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34 RAMEF/IRR 7 (78)

(d)

REMEN2023FERAMET &
BEEEALENTRI —HEER
& BEREBREERE©LEL
RE2amMNmn—ERamE
(THEYMX] - "EEEXRRA
tEREHET BREERKRDER
RE([FEER]) ERAET R
Ax—hilERZ  REEER
BRATEEROEEEYE -

TREERSBRERESENNE
NA BERESBREEAR
RABRERERR - Lt HE
B TETHRZEBEA R RO

it EENM B e

(d)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Fujian Minxin as the lessee has entered into a lease
agreement with Vigour Fine as the lessor whereby
Vigour Fine has agreed to lease an office property
located in Fuzhou, Fujian Province (the“Leasehold
Property”) to Fujian Minxin in 2023. Fujian Minxin
as the lessor has entered into another lease
agreement with Zhongmin Energy Co., Ltd
(“Zhongmin Energy”) as the lessee whereby Fujian
Minxin has agreed to lease the Leasehold Property
to Zhongmin Energy on the same day.

Zhongmin Energy is a subsidiary of FIDG and both
FIDG and Vigour Fine are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The transactions
under the above lease agreements constitute
continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

The financial impacts of the sublease mentioned
above were summarised as follows:

2024 2023
BT T M T
HK$’000 HKS'000

EHGHEEE Interest income from sublease of
FEKA right-of-use assets 62 -
HEBEMNEXZE Interest expenses on lease liabilities (52) =

RIFERERAEEE Gain on derecognition of

W sk right-of-use assets 231 -
241 -

(5B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Al AR5 (£8) 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
2024 2023
BT T JBEMT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
RITHBEER K Undiscounted lease payments
FE—FNA Within 1 year 538 -
ZR—FERMER More than 1 year but within 2 years 554 -
1,092 -
REBFBUWA (i) Unearned interest income (i) (51) -
1,041 -
A A As Intermediate leasee
HEBE Lease liabilities (885) -

(i) FKERFBWAFREBENTERE
4.75% (2023 4F : %)

(e) FEEEBAE

SRITHABEE 20244 K 2023F 12
A31BIEFENMEST

(i) The interest rate implied in the unearned interest
income was 4.75% (2023: nil)

(e) Key management personnel

The senior executives’ emoluments for the year ended
31 December 2024 and 2023 are detailed as follows:

2024 2023

YT BT

HKS’000 HKS’000

Y0k Directors’ fees 998 1,020
= BENMEMER  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

AR B WF = and benefits in kind 11,899 7,241
RIREFETEIE R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 96
ZE Bonus - 4,140

12,993 12,497
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35

EIEES

R A SRR R

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

BARRBIRERFRNHBRAKE Information about the statement of financial position of
SN the Company at the end of the reporting year is as
follows:
2024 2023
BT T BMF T
HKS’000 HKS'000
BE Assets
M - HEE REE Property, plant and equipment 3,767 3,348
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7,713 4,600
wEYHE Investment properties 45,535 51,719
ER=PNST Subsidiaries 1,353,512 1,499,551
/N Associates 972,776 972,776
BRATFER AHMEE S Financial assets at fair value through
MEmEE other comprehensive income 512,455 597,383
RN AT EMEBRIRE Debt investments at amortised cost 108,754 113,369
E M EUERER - TR Other debtors, prepayments and
Kiz& deposits 10,473 702
BAFEEBRERS R Financial assets at fair value through
WEmEE profit or loss 302 9,531
TE BT Term deposits 124,445 130,627
ReMReEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 199,328 179,353
HEE Total assets 3,339,060 3,562,959

EEBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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THE COMPANY (Continued)

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
E Equity
N Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377
HiFES Other reserves 267,815 336,510
RER & A Retained profits 472,434 594,206
BT Total equity 2,455,626 2,646,093
=K Liabilities
HihENERRESER Other creditors and accruals 28,801 26,620
MEAE Lease liabilities 5,628 2,563
RITIERK Bank borrowings 758,497 855,570
RN E R Loan from the controlling shareholder 78,000 -
RIEAGHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 12,508 32,113
weE Total liabilities 883,434 916,866
ERREE Equity and liabilities 3,339,060 3,562,959
T3k WANG Fei
EE Director
BEXM HUANG Wensheng
2 Director
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35

R EE SRR R (78)

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

() FRAFARREREHEEHEN (@) Information on the movement of the total equity
wn during the year is as follows:
Rftfks
Other reserves
MYE HEER B
e Eftfike 2

(FAER) Leasehold ag RS

R& Fair value buildings Total RERH g

Share reserve revaluation other Retained Total

capital  (non-recycling) reserve reserves profits equity

EEFT  BETR BETE EMFL BRTR ERTR

HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

RBE1A18 At1 January 2023 1,715377 359,963 2,340 362,303 627911 2,705,591

REEGRH Profit for the year - - - - 37,966 37,966
Ef2E Other comprehensive

Yo income - (25,793) - (25.793) - (25793)

RE Dividend - - - - (71,671) (71,671)

$2023%12A318  At31 December 2023 1715377 334170 2,340 336510 594,206 2,646,093

R2024%F1R18 At1 January 2024 1,715,377 334,170 2,340 336,510 594,206 2,646,093

TEEFB Loss for the year - - - - (68,019) (68,019)
Ef2E Other comprehensive

W income - (68,695) - (68,695) - (68,695)

it Dividend - - - - (53,753) (53,753)

120245128318  At31December 2024 1,715,377 265,475 2,340 267,815 472,434 2,455,626

(=B AR AR Min Xin Holdings Limited
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36 SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 and 31 December

EXBERE BB AR - 2023 which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group.
il RER £48
Lk HRRAFE it 4o

Place of Particulars Group’s IEEK

incorporation of issued and equity Principal

NAIER Name of company and operation paid up capital interest activity
BERE Directly held

SEERBRAA Dorfine Development Limited 3 2R (E%27) 100% VESIE

Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment

RRACREERARMY Fujian Minxin Investments Co, Ltd," hEARANE EWER 100% AR

(7%1,048951,7007T)
The People's Paid-in capital Investment holding
Republic of China (HK$1,048,951,700)

BERRERAR Min Xin Insurance Company Limited Bk 5500 &k 100% &R

(B%235ET) —RiRb £

Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general

(HK$235 million) insurance business

SHh=EREME Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin EARLAE ElER 100% REMEER

ERRA 00 Micro Credit Company Limited-® (AR®186T) REFENER

The People’s Paid-in capital Provision of

Republic of China (RMB180 million) micro credit and

entrusted loans

ABERAA Take Chance Company Limited Bk R (E%2) 100% VESE

Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment

EBEARAA Thousand Limited B 1R (A% 17) 100% RERR

Hong Kong 1 share (HKS1) Investment holding

RS RERAT Welljet Development Limited Bk R (EE27) 100% VIESE

Hong Kong 2 shares (HK$2) Property investment

m AR B AR R EENINEBERE m Wholly foreign-owned enterprises incorporated and operated in

@ AR AB R 2024 F i FERZ T R AR E
A R % 16,000,000 7T ( 5 (B 7% ¥ 17,516,900

TO)BERZ T ARNERER o

® =NERDERE ARG ERFEE R 2024 F
SA7EESHE - =T/ ER2024F 4 5
HAXBEHARE12(87T  M=x/\&
NERERRLEARKE1.8ET °

Mainland China.

@ The Company has capitalised the dividend receivable from this
subsidiary of RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$17,516,900) as
the paid-in capital of the subsidiary in 2024.

&) The application for the reduction of the paid-in capital of
Sanyuan Micro Credit was approved on 7 March 2024. Sanyuan
Micro Credit remitted RMB120 million to the Company in April
2024 and the paid-in capital of Sanyuan Micro Credit was
decreased to RMB180 million.
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REBEHENEZYRERMER
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

AEBER2024F12A31BFEEERENE Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for

EYEERFBNOT

g

investment as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

LS 3] B
BY Jef s ARk

ERE Group’s Approximate
Lease attributable  gross floor REAZ
Location expiry interest area Existing use

1 JUER T b B 3R 48 847-865 57
KEERE M N EAL 75 R 8%
BeHENEE 1ER2E
2B

2 PEARAANEEREEMT
AWE 158 RIRES 212
(PEE1RERHER)

R 23

3 REARANEEREEMNT
AME IS8 FREES T =8
BRISEE #0245 428 [ #42 5 #48

4 HREAREMEBERLEMNT
HEB N RERAE
BEQEDET

Aokt%  FrRsq f.

Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 17,190 [E
store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
the whole of 1st and 2nd floors

Winfield Building

847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei

Hong Kong
22/F (excluding partial area of unit no. 1) 2044 100 37,090 [E
and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza Commercial

158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China

Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,227 [E
Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People's Republic of China

Unit C2 & D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 2,450 Fx
121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential
The People’s Republic of China
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